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Honeywell
101 Columbia Road
Morristown, NJ 07962

Federal Express

March 30, 2007

Attn: Document Control Desk
Director, Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Washington, DC 20555-0001

Subject: HONEYWELL METROPOLIS WORKS (DOCKET NO. 40-3392)

Dear Sir or Madam:

Please find enclosed our letter in support of Honeywell's use of the self-guarantee test to demonstrate
financial assurance, as specified in 10 CFR Part 40.

Please contact Jeffrey Neuman at (973) 455-2945 should you have any questions or concerns regarding
this letter.

Sincerely,

?aý7ýý ýA t cwvvvý_
Sarah Glickman
Assistant Corporate Controller
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Honeywell

David J. Anderson Honeywell Global Headquarters
Senior Vice President and Honeywell
Chief Financial Officer 101 Columbia Road

Morristown, New Jersey 07962

973-455-3472
973-455-3821 Fax

March 30, 2007

ATTN: Document Control Desk
Director, Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Washington, DC 20555-0001

Subject: HONEYWELL METROPOLIS WORKS (DOCKET NO. 40-3392)

I am the Chief Financial Officer of Honeywell International Inc. (Honeywell), 101 Columbia
Road, Morristown, New Jersey, a corporation. This letter is in support of this firm's use of the
self-guarantee financial test to demonstrate financial assurance, as specified in 10 CFR Part 40.
This firm has no parent company holding majority control of its voting stock.

This firm guarantees, through the self-guarantee submitted to demonstrate compliance under 10
CFR Part 40, the decommissioning of the following facilities owned or operated by this firm.
The current cost estimates or certified amounts for decommissioning, so guaranteed, are shown
for each facility:

Honeywell Metropolis Works
2768 North US 45 Rd.
Metropolis, Illinois
NRC License No. SUB-526

Cost Estimate: $156,440,898

I hereby certify that Honeywell is currently a going concern, and that it possesses positive net
worth in the amount of $8,473,000,000, comprised of tangible net worth in the amount of
$70,000,000 and goodwill in the amount of $8,403,000,000.

This fiscal year of this firm ends on December 31 st. The figures for the following items marked
with an asterisk are derived from this firm's independently audited, year-end financial statements
and footnotes for the latest completed fiscal year, ended December 31, 2006. A copy of this
firm's most recent financial statements is enclosed.

This firm is required to file a Form 1 0-K with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission for
the latest fiscal year. This firm has at least one class of equity securities registered under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934.



This firm satisfies the following self-guarantee test:I

Honeywell International Inc. (the Company) - NRC Financial Assurance Test
For Year-End December 31, 2006

Current decommissioning cost estimates or certified amounts
a. Decommissioning amounts covered by this self-guarantee
b. All decommissioning amounts covered by other NRC or Agreement

State parent company guarantees or self-guarantees
c. All amounts covered by parent company guarantees, self-guarantees,

or financial tests of other Federal or State Agencies (e.g., EPA)

$156,440,898

$1,125,000

$498,047,986

$655,613,884TOTAL

2. Current bond rating of most recent unsecured issuance of this firm
Rating "A"
Name of rating service Standard & Poor's

3. Date of issuance of bond 3/15/2007

4. Date of maturity of bond 3/15/2017

*5. Net worth' (if any portion of estimates for decommissioning is

included in total liabilities on your firm's financial statements, you
may add the amount of that portion to this line)

*6. Total assets in U.S. (required only if less than 90 percent of firm's

assets are located in the U.S.)

$8,473,000,000

$20,346,000,000

YES NO

7. Is line 5 at least 10 times line 1? X

8. Are at least 90% of assets located in the U.S.? (a) If not, complete line 9

9. Is line 6 at least 10 times line 1?

X

X

10. Is the rating specified on line 2 "A" or better? x

x
11. Does the Company have at least one class of equity securities registered

under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934?



*Denotes figures derived from financial statements.

I he c ify that the content of this letter is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.

Dawfd). A derson

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
March 30, 2007

This test differs from that in 10 CFR Part 30, Appendix C, in that the sum of tangible net worth plus goodwill
(rather than tangible net worth only) must be at least 10 times the current decommissioning cost estimate. This
test is based on an alternate financial test contained in Honeywell's December 1, 2006 request for an exemption
from the NRC's decommissioning funding assurance requirements. That exemption request is still pending. In
a telephone conversation between Brian Smith, NRC, and Jeffrey Neuman, Honeywell, on November 9, 2006,
the NRC stated that it will regard Honeywell's pending exemption request as interim/temporary satisfaction of
the financial assurance requirements. Honeywell recognizes that it will be required to obtain alternate financial
assurance within 88 days in the event that its exemption request is denied (i.e., within 120 days of the official
notice date of October 30, 2006 less the number of days between that date and the submission of the exemption
request).
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PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
400 Campus Drive
P. 0. Box 988
Florham Park NJ 07932
Telephone (973) 236 4000
Facsimile (973) 236 5000

Report of Independent Accountants

To the Board of Directors of
Honeywell International Inc.

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by
Company management, relating to the accompanying letter dated March 30, 2007 from
Mr. David J. Anderson, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, addressed to the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission in compliance with the
financial requirements of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission Financial Assurance Test
of Federal Register, Volume 58, Number 248 (the "Test") solely to assist you in
evaluating the financial data that the Test specifies as having been derived from the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006 in the
Company's Current Report on Form 10-K dated February 16, 2007. Company
management is responsible for the Test. This agreed-upon procedures engagement was
conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the
responsibility of those parties specified in this report. Consequently, we make no
representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the
purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose.

The procedures we performed are summarized as follows:

* We recalculated the amount shown as "Net worth" in Item 5 in the Test utilizing
balances contained within the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2006 in the Company's Current Report on Form 10-K dated
February 16, 2007.

" We compared the amount shown as "Total assets in U.S." in Item 6 in the Test to
reporting schedules prepared by the Company from which the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006 in the Company's Current
Report on Form 10-K dated February 16, 2007 were prepared and found the amount
to be in agreement.

* We obtained the amount of the Company's total assets from the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006 in the Company's Current
Report on Form 10-K dated February 16, 2007 and calculated ninety percent of such
amount. We compared the calculated amount to the amount shown as "Total assets in
U.S." in Item 6 in the Test and noted the calculated amount was greater.
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We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination, the objective of which
would be the expression of an opinion on the specified elements. Accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might
have come to our attention that would have been reported to you.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and
management of the Company and the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

March 30, 2007



H eya

on wel

Perfomanc



Financial Highlights

(Dollars and Shares in Millions, Except Per Share Amounts) 2006 2005 2004

Sales ................................. $31,367 $ 27,652 $ 25,593

Net Incom e ............................ $ 2,083 $ 1,638 $ 1,246

Diluted Earnings Per Common Share ...... $ 2.52 $ 1.92 $ 1.45

Cash Dividends Per Common Share ....... $0.9075 $ 0.825 $ 0.75

Book Value Per Common Share .......... $ 12.13 $ 12.98 $ 12.68

Total Assets ........................... $30,941 $ 31,633 $ 30,570

Cash Flows from Operating Activities ...... .$ 3,211 $ 2,442 $ 2,253

Common Shares Outstanding at Year-End 801 829 850

Em'ployees at Year-End .................. 118,000 116,000 109,000

Sales by Profits by
Business Segment Business Segment

(percent) (percent)

Automation and Automation and
Control Solutions 35% Control Solutions 29%

Aerospace 35% Aerospace 44%

Specialty 15% Transportation

Transportation Systems 14.%
Systems 15%

Specialty Materials 13%

*Great positions in good industries with technologies aligned with
global mega-trends that matter to customers.

*Consistent and sustainable financial performance in sates, margin
expansion, earnings per share and free cash flow.

oDisciplined and balanced cash deployment that returned more than $2.6
billion to shareowners in 2006 through dividends and share repurchases.

*Growth initiatives and common operational processes have improved
quality, delivery, value and technology for customers, while
strengthening our financial performance.

*A One Honeywell culture that attracts and retains the best and
brightest people around the world.



Peformance
Honeywell made great progress this year in executing our growth

strategy. We reached a new financial performance threshold by

surpassing $31 billion in sales, delivering 31% growth in earnings

per share, and increasing free cash flow by 41%. Our focus

on One Honeywell, the Five Initiatives, having great positions in

good industries, a customer-first mindset, and value-driven

technologies have resulted in consistent financial performance

and a solid track record.

past few years, we've worked hard to
develop great positions in good indus-
tries, create a One HoneyweLl culture,

and reinforce our Five Initiatives
and Twelve Behaviors. And it works.
We have a wonderful foundation for

sustained performance.

Great Positions in Good Industries
This makes a big difference.

Being in good industries provides a
taiLwind for growth. Having a leader-
ship position accelerates that growth
because of the critical mass in
differentiators Like sales coverage
and research and development. We
have aLso been active these past

few years with acquisitions and
divestitures to further improve what
was already a very competitive
portfolio of businesses. Our acquisi-
tion process - standardizing best
practices company-wide for identifi-
cation, valuation, due diLigence, and
especiaLLy integration - has been
extremely effective. Our businesses
are in terrific shape to grow, both

organicaLly and through acquisitions.
The aerospace industry should

continue to perform well. Commercial
air travel should grow as the world

becomes wealthier, aLlowing business-
es to become more gLobaL and families
more dispersed. Travel is very elastic
with decLines in ticket prices Leading to

greater growth in passenger traffic.
The business jet segment is expected
to continue to be strong, as evidenced
by the annual industry-standard

HoneyweLL Business Aviation OutLook
showing strong demand for at Least the
next 10 years. As commercial travel
grows and time for everyone becomes

more vaLuabLe, we expect this trend to
continue. Defense spending is high by
historical norms, but at the same time
the threats faced by every country are
high. While growth may moderate or
priorities shift, an abrupt and Large
decline seems unlikeLy.

Our product portfolio in aerospace
is terrific and provides lots of
opportunity. We are weLL positioned
to meet increasing OEM production
requirements with engines such

as the TFE731-50, HTF7000, and
the HTF1 0000 [HoneywelL Turbo
Fan with 10,000 pounds of thrust].

To our Shareowners
Another great year ... with more

to come!
Financial performance was terrific

with sales up 13% to $31.4 biLlion, 7%

organic sales growth, and earnings
per share up 31% to $2.52. Free cash
fLow [cash flow from operations Less
capitat expenditures] at $2.5 biLlion
was also strong, aLlowing us to increase
our dividend by 10%, repurchase 45.4
miLlion shares of stock [$1.9 biLlion],

and complete three acquisitions for
approximately $750 miLlion, adding over
$500 miLlion in annuaLized saLes. ALL in
aLl, another year of impressive results.

We expect continued strong

performance at HoneyweLl. Over the
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Our redesigned auxiliary power
units and accompanying mainte-
nance service agreements are doing
very weLl because of the cost and
reLiabiLity advantage they provide
airlines. Avionics should also contin-
ue to do weLl as safety requirements
in crowded airspace become more
pronounced and software advances
cause more inteLligence to be put
on the plane. With Primus Epic®

we have a totally integrated digital
cockpit for business jets. We also
have the most comprehensive,
advanced suite of safety avionics
with our Enhanced Ground
Proximity Warning System [EGPWS],
designed to etiminate controlled
flights into terrain; our Runway
Awareness Advisory System

[RAAS.], which can do the same for
airport/runway accidents; and our
vertical separation Control Display
System/Retrofit GCDS/R], aLlowing
stacked planes to safeLy operate
within shorter distances.

Automation and Control
Solutions [ACS) has grown signifi-
cantly both organicaLly and with its
demonstrated capability to execute
and integrate acquisitions. Increased
security and fire detection needs are
evident worldwide. We identified gas
detection as a Logical adjacent space
with great growth potential, and
through our acquisitions of ZeLlweger
in 2005 and First Technology in 2006,
we are now the industry leader.
Sensors are becoming ubiquitous as
semiconductor costs come down and

our technology advances. The global
need for energy expands our process
controls business, while the need
for more energy efficiency expands
our building/residential controls and
energy performance contracting busi-
nesses. Good industries alL around,
and we have leading positions in each.

The ACS team has excellent
capabilities in managing sales/distribu-
tion networks, driving productivity,
developing new products at an
accelerating rate, and delivering acqui-
sition synergies. We continue to win
industry awards for our new products.
Thermostats, building controls, surface
acoustic wave sensors (for applications
like tire pressure monitoring],
Tridium® software allowing different
types of controls to talk to each other,

I

"We expect continued strong performance at Honeywell. Over the past few

years, we've worked hard to develop great positions in good industries,
create a One Honeywell culture, and reinforce our Five Initiatives and
Twelve Behaviors. And it works."

3



Experion® PKS that provides a huge
advantage in process controls for
sophisticated process plants, the
ability to detect over 100 kinds
of gases, ExitPoint® that allows
buiLdings to be evacuated based on
human reactions to sound, advanced
security devices ... a lot of great
stuff to grow with!

Transportation Systems operates
in two industries with turbochargers
and retail auto aftermarket products.
A turbocharger allows an engine
that is about a third smaller to pro-
vide the same power as a full-size
engine. That means about 20-25%
less fuel usage and emissions while
stiltl providing consumers with cars
that go when they hit the accelerator;
a vaLuabLe contribution in today's
energy conscious world! The biggest
benefit occurs on diesel engines,
and in Europe half of aLt new autos
are diesel powered because of these
advantages. It's an excellent industry
and with our cost and technology
advantage, we recorded a 60% win
rate on all passenger vehicle plat-
forms and a greater than 70% win

rate on all commercial vehicle plat-
forms awarded worldwide in 2006.
The retail aftermarket is a slower
growth segment but with our FRAM®,
Autolite®, Prestone®, Bendix®,
and HoLts® brands, we have strong
positions. This business is being
invigorated by new product ideas
that will advance future growth.

Specialty Materials [SMI has
undergone incredible change over the
last few years and now makes a big
contribution. FLuorines look good,
especially with our non-ozone-
depleting hydroftuorocarbons [HFCs],
spray foam insulation that reduces
home energy usage 20% while
improving structural integrity, and
the recent announcement of our low
GtobaL Warming Potential [GWP] HFC.
In our Resins and Chemicals busi-
ness, caproLactam demand is also on
the rise. With all the changes made
in this business over the past four

years, we're in a great position.
Demand for our semiconductor

products, Spectra® fiber [material 10
times stronger than steel and it floats!),
and process additives continue to

Job\
IL I
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Senior Management Team Robert J. Gillette I Roger Fradin I Thomas W. Weidenkopf I Adriane M. Brown I Larry E. KitteLberger
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increase. UOP focuses on refinery and
petrochemical plant design and also
supplies key catalysts and adsorbents.
The need for energy provides a strong
tailwind for this excellent business.

With growth in the global economy,
especially in emerging markets,
energy demand is expanding quickly.
Both energy generation and efficiency
provide tremendous opportunities for
our ACS and SM businesses. In fact,
nearly 50% of our product portfolio
company-wide is linked to energy
efficiency. We estimate the global
economy could operate on 10-25%
Less energy just by using today's
existing Honeywell technologies!
Turbocharged diesel vehicles, smart
controls for buildings and houses,
and a new air traffic control system
relying more on avionics to eliminate
inefficient flight paths and stacking,
could provide a huge advantage. The
possibilities are exciting and they are
alL in the Honeywell product portfolio!

One Honeywell
We have worked hard over the

last few years to build a One Honeywell

culture and it's working. Creating a
common culture and vernacular,
a single brand image, and shared
processes does a lot to bring us
together with a unified focus on the
customer. It all helps to build glue,
to help us recognize we're all in it
together; to get away from the idea of
"whew ... I'm glad the leak is on your

side of the boat and not mine."
It's elusive to measure ... but it's

there and it's important. We try to
touch One Honeywell in all we do.
Establishing awards and benefit
plans; communications, whether
written, oral, or employee town hall
meetings; real estate initiatives to
bring all our people together while
reducing costs; and Honeywell
Hometown Solutions where employ-
ees come together to help each other
and their community ... all of these
create that One Honeywell bond.

An example of this glue in
2006 was our inaugural Technology
Symposium. We brought together our
top 400 scientists and engineers from
around the world for a three-day
event to share the latest advances,

Peter M. KreindLer I Nance K. Dicciani I David J. Anderson I Rhonda Germany I Shane Tedjarati



new technologies and capabilities.
They weren't chosen by levet,
rather by knowledge and technical
abitity, and they worked hard to
help each other develop ideas and
establish relationships. It was a
big success and we intend to do it
again in 2007.

Five Initiatives
The focus on Growth, Productivity,

Cash, People, and Our Enablers has
worked to give us direction and per-
formance. They will continue. Growth
is really clicking as we concentrate on
doing a superb job for customers every
day, sales and marketing exceLLence,
gtobalization, and new products and
services. Productivity is interdependent
with growth and we continue funding it
with new ideas. Cash flow continues to
grow. The focus on people is essential
because it's the ultimate differentiator.

Our Enablers in particular wiLL
generate increased performance
and more One HoneyweLl. Six Sigma
tools are of considerable benefit in
improving every one of Our Enablers.

The Honeywell Operating System
[HOS) began full-scaLe deployment
in 34 manufacturing sites in 2006,
representing about $1.4 billion, or
30% of our manufacturing cost base.
HOS standardizes work, empowers
front-line people, and eliminates
unnecessary process steps.
ImportantLy, it institutionalizes the
need for change, and the changes
made so we're not fixing the same
thing tomorrow that we fixed yester-

day. With over 250 manufacturing
operations, this wiLL provide a great
source of future productivity.

Functional Transformation is
similar to HOS but applied to the
administrative functions of Finance,
Systems, HR, Legalt and Purchasing.
We can improve internal service Lev-
els considerably while reducing costs
The progress has been significant
and there's lots more opportunity.

Velocity Product DeveLopmentTM

[VPDTM} focuses on bringing the prod-
ucts and services that customers
want to market faster. Having a
terrific understanding of customer

"Nearly 50% of our product portfolio company-wide is linked to energy
efficiency. We estimate the global economy could operate on 10-25% Less
energy just by using today's existing Honeywell technologies."

r-M=77 al
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needs is just as important as the
innovation itself. VPD is tougher to
measure, but you can see it in the
new product/service outflow that's
contributing to our organic growth.

Working capital ($5.8 billion at
year-end] is a continuing area of
focus and one we didn't do as well
with in 2006. We improved, but not
enough. Working capital is important
not just for the cash lock-up, but also
because the only way we can get
lower working capital while improving
customer and supplier relationships
is by improving operating practices.
In other words, we have to become a
better business. We made good
progress initially, then stalled, and
have now reinvigorated our focus.
We'll continue to drive progress here
because it is so important in making
us better for ourselves, our cus-
tomers, and our suppliers.

During the year, we added Linnet
Deily to the Board of Directors. With
her experience in banking and world
trade as a U.S. Trade Representative
(USTR], Linnet is already providing

valuable expertise. Bruce Karatz, a
director for seven years, voluntarily
resigned. Bruce was a wonderful,
helpful director, both independent
and supportive. We were sad to see
him leave. Our Board is a marvelous
asset for the company.

Summary
It has been another eventful and

performance-driven year. The Five
Initiatives and One Honeywell focus
bring us together. We're doing a bet-
ter job for our customers every day.
And, as well as we've done, we can
see even more potential ahead. We
have a lot of terrific stuff going!

It's been another great year ...
and there are more to come.

David M. Cote
Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer

A
Air Traffic

Modernization InusriL roes Efieiency? ' - Green Buildings Reduced Emissions
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Doing a superb job for our
customers every day is the
foundation for growth. Honeywell
employees focus on offering
superior quality, on-time delivery,
real value and differentiated
technologies for customers.
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Our Sales and Marketing
curriculum focuses engineers
and marketing professionals
on creating stronger
connections between
customers and
technologies. Since
2004, more than 125 project
teams completed this program,
and contributed to year-over-
year organic and operating
income growth.

il L

Globalization brings new product
development, manufacturing and
service closer to our customers
and their end markets. In 2006,
sales outside the U.S. reached

48 % of total saes,
up from 40% in 2002.

Honeywell holds over

140OOO
patents worldwide
and received more than 600 new
U.S. patents in 2006, positioning us
among the top patent-generating
companies in the world.



Growth and Productivity
are interdependent.
Growth gives us Leverage to
deliver better products and
services with greater efficiency
and speed to our customers.
Productivity frees up resources
to fund Long-term growth.
We focus on both.

2 * I
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Honeywell improved its
quality performance

54%
The Honeywell Operating System
(HOS) accelerates improvements
in manufacturing operations
to produce exceptional
performance in safety,
quality, delivery, cost
and inventory.

HOS is deployed in
34 manufacturing sites,
representing about

$1.4
bilLion,
or 30%, of Honeywell's
manufacturing cost base.

by reducing defects from
3,010 parts per million in
2005 to 1,376 in 2006 - 99.9%
of products shipped had
zero defects.
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Our discipLined approach to
acquisitions works. Since
2003, we have deployed nearly $3.9
billion net for acquisitions, adding
about $3.5 billion in annualized
sales. To date, approximately 90%
of deals are meeting or exceeding
their goals.

Since 2003, Honeywell has
repurchased $3.8 billion of our
common stock and reduced
the number of shares
outstanding by 7%.

d rate by

in 2006, the third
consecutive year of a
1 0% dividend increase.



People are the ultimate
differentiator in perform-
ance. At Honeywell, we hire the
best talent and give them every
possible opportunity to Learn
and develop./
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Career development is a big deal
at Honeywell. In 2006, more than

41 OOO
course registrants
participated in contemporary,
job-relevant Learning from
over 4,000 classroom-Led and
online courses.

Our employees are rewarded for
great work. Our philosophy links
rewards directly to business and
individual performance. Managers
give employees candid, constructive
and actionable feedback to plan
their career paths.

Challenging work that matters
inspires our employees to think
and perform beyond expectations
every day. We give our employees
career-growth opportunities, and
it shows ... more than

6 5 % of Honefe's
top positions are filled with
internal candidates.
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Our Enablers - Honeywelsls
Operating System [HOS}, Functional[
Transformation [FT] and Velocity

Product DevelopmentTM iVPDTMo -
improve performance bystandardizing the way
we work and hel~ping us do

things faster.

-K 1 HOS buil~ds on our Six Sigma
Culture and identifies opportu-
nities to share best practices and
sustain exceptional performance~at our manufacturing pl~ants

~worl~dwide.

L_-------FT appl~ies strategic operating
~models to our core support

functions for greater efficiencies
~and higher-quality services.

Since 2004, our efforts have
del~ivered more than

million in direct

savings.

Our rigorous VPD process is
designed to reduce new
product introduction
cycle times by50%
within five years, freeing
engineering tal~ent and research
and development resources to
tackle the next chall[enges our
customers have for us.



Photo below:
Howard University in
Washington, D.C., is
among the universities
participating in the
Honeywell - Nobel
Initiative, a global
education program
connecting university
students with Nobel
Laureates in chemistry
and physics.

Honeywell Hometown Solutions
works on issues that make a differ-
ence and deliver life-changing results
in our communities around the world.

Working with teading public and
non-profit institutions, such as the
National Aeronautics and Space
Administration, the National Center
for Missing & Exploited Children®

and The Nobel Foundation, we
develop powerful programs that
inspire students, protect families,
rebuild homes and help save lives.
Our focused, disciplined approach
addresses four vital societal areas:
Science and Math Education; Family
Safety and Security; Housing and
Shelter; and Humanitarian Relief.
In 2006, Honeywell Hometown
Solutions earned 19 corporate
social responsibility and cause-
marketing industry awards.

Science and Math Education
Our future depends on a talented

global workforce of engineers,
scientists and technologists. To
inspire the next generation of inno-
vators, we develop programs for
students from middle school through
university. Our traveling science edu-
cation program, FMA Live!, engages
middle school students through
hip-hop music and real-life science
demonstrations. Honeywell Scholars
@ Presidential Classroom brings
high school students from around
the world to Washington, D.C., to
understand the interrelationships
of public policy, scientific discovery
and technological innovation. The
Honeywell - Nobel Initiative enables
university students worldwide to
learn directly from Nobel Laureates
through on-campus events, Web
content and broadcast programming.

'ell Hometown



Honeywell Educators @ Space
Academy gives teachers new
tools to bring science to life in
their classrooms.

Family Safety and Security
Teaching safety skills children

can use in their everyday Lives has
never been more important. Our
Got 2B Safe! program teaches
elementary students critical and
potential life-saving lessons to
protect against abduction. In 2006,
Honeywell Launched a partnership
with Safe Kids to raise awareness
of home safety practices and preven-
tion against common childhood
accidents, as well as a safety program
with Child Find to deliver abduction-
prevention education to first-grade
students in Canada.

Housing and Shelter
Helping our neighbors Live in

the safety and comfort of their own
homes is a priority for Honeywell.
With Rebuilding Together®, our
employee volunteers revitalize
the homes of low-income, elderly
and disabled homeowners in
our communities.

Humanitarian Relief
Unique in the world of charitable

giving, our Honeywell Humanitarian
Relief Fund gives 100 percent of our
employees' contributions to those
who need the most help at their time
of greatest need. Since 2005, our
relief efforts have rebuilt more than
750 homes in Southeast Asia and
four medical centers in Pakistan, and
supported nearly 500 employees in
the U.S. Gulf Coast and Mexico.

Photo below:
Our Safe Kids @ Home
education campaign to
raise awareness of
home safety practices
against common
childhood accidents
reached 80 schools
and 60,000 students
in Chengdu and
Xi'an, China.

SoLutions

Through our partnership with
Rebuilding Together®, more than 2,000
Honeywell volunteers have completed
115 rehabilitation projects, delivering

$5.6 million
in market value repairs.



Aerospace
Honeywell Aerospace
products can be found
on virtually every type of
commercial, business,
general, military and
spacecraft. Our primary
focus is to make flight
safer, more reliable and
cost-effective through
technology leadership,
engineering excellence
and customer-driven
development.

Market Drivers

* Global flying hours increased by
more than 5% in 2006, a trend
expected to continue in 2007.

Performance Highlights

eSales increased 6% to $11.1
billion and segment profit
was up 13% to $1.9 billion.

* Orders from business jet manufac-
turers remain strong with industry
backlog approaching 2,500 aircraft;
for the first time in history, global
business jet deliveries are expected
to exceed 1,000 in 2007.

• Over the next 20 years, nearly $80
billion worth of production value in
our strategic markets is projected
to open for competition, including
guidance and navigation, integrated
avionics and propulsion.

* Expanded long-term partner
agreements, including a $230
million strategic supplier
arrangement with US Airways;
a 10-year exclusive service
agreement with JetBlue; and
selection of the Honeywell
Runway Awareness and
Advisory System by Air France
for up to 248 Airbus and
Boeing aircraft in its fleet.

* Continued growth in the defense
and space segment with 2006
sales of more than $4.4 billion,
including a $36 million agree-
ment with Lockheed Martin and
the Turkish and Greek Air Forces
for F-16 displays; and Honeywell
is a key partner in the Lockheed
Martin team selected by NASA
to build the Orion spacecraft,
allowing us to serve U.S. space
exploration well into the future.

Honeywell introduced Integrated
Primary Flight Display (IPFD], a
new family of synthetic vision
safety products. Building on the
500 million operational flight hours
of HoneyweLl's Enhanced Ground
Proximity Warning System database,
IPFD improves pilot situational
awareness and decision-making.
IPFD's first application will be the
Gulfstream SV-PFD, available in
2007 on all Gulfstream PLaneView®

20 equipped aircraft.



With more than 100 years of
experience, a strong distributor
network and our global team,
HoneyweLL products and
solutions optimize more than
five miLLion buildings. Many
of the world's buildings and
Landmarks are managed using
Honeywell security systems,
energy services, and fire and
Life safety sotutions.

Automation
and Control
Sotutions
Honeywell Automation
and Control Solutions
[ACSI improves energy
efficiency, life safety,
climate control, air
quality and productivity
in homes, buildings,
industrial sites and
government facilities
worldwide. Our sensing
technologies enhance the
performance and safety
of medical, automotive,
aviation, technology and
consumer appliance
applications. Our auto-
mated control processes
improve productivity and
profitability in some of the
world's largest refineries
and industrial settings.



Mercedes is one of several
automakers introducing turbo
diesel vehicle models in the
U.S. over the next few years.
Mercedes plans to increase its
U.S. fleet of turbo diesel models
to five starting in 2007, including
its E320 Bluetec. Boosted by
Honeywell turbochargers,
the E320 Btuetec gets nearly
700 miles per tank without
compromising on the perform-
ance that drivers demand.

Transportation
Systems
Honeywell Transportation
Systems technologies
improve the efficiency,
performance and appear-
ance of cars, trucks and
other vehicles. Turbo
Technologies is a global
leader in engine boosting
systems, providing auto
manufacturers around
the world with solutions
to improve fuel economy
and reduce emissions
without sacrificing per-
formance. Honeywell's
Consumer Products
Group-[CPG) has four
top-selling consumer car
care brands - FRAMO,
Prestone®, Auto[ite®
and Holts® - and is one
of the world's largest
suppliers of brake friction
materials and products
under the Bendix® and
Jurid® brands.

22



SpeciaLty
MateriaLs
HoneyweLl Specialty
Materials is a global
leader in developing
and manufacturing
high-purity, high-quality
and high-performance
chemicals and materi-
als. Our technologies
help solve customers'
toughest challenges,
from refrigerants that
replace ozone-depleting
CFCs and HCFCs, fibers
that stop bullets and
films that extend food
shelf-life to research
chemicals that speed
drug discovery, elec-
tronic materials that
improve semiconductor
production and refining
technologies that
address growing energy
demands.

The new 9.7-acre roof for the
Louisiana Superdome in New
Orleans was constructed using
closed-ceLt polyurethane spray
foam insulation formulated with
Honeywell Enovate® blowing agent.
The 70,000-seat venue was severely
damaged by Hurricane Katrina in
2005. The new roof is guaranteed
to resist hurricane-force winds

by the manufacturer, BaySystems
North America, a subsidiary of
Bayer MateriatScience LLC.

Market Drivers

* High refinery capacity utilization is
increasing investment in refining
process technologies; rising petro-
leum costs and stricter government
environmental mandates are driv-
ing emphasis on alternative and
renewable energy sources.

-The Montreal Protocol continues
to drive the global phase-out of
ozone-depleting substances such
as CFCs and HCFCs.

G Greater microchip complexity,
growth in consumer electronics
and flat panel displays are
expanding opportunities for our
Electronic Materials business.
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PART I.
Item 1. Business

Honeywell International Inc. (Honeywell) is a diversified technology and manufacturing company,
serving customers worldwide with aerospace products and services, control, sensing and security
technologies for buildings, homes and industry, turbochargers, automotive products, specialty
chemicals, electronic and advanced materials, and process technology for refining and petrochemicals.
Honeywell was incorporated in Delaware in 1985.

We maintain an internet website at http://www.honeywell.com. Our Annual Report on Form 10-K,
Quarterly Reports on Form 1 0-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to those reports,
are available free of charge on our website under the heading "Investor Relations" (see "SEC Filings &
Reports") immediately after they are filed with, or furnished to, the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC). In addition, in this Form 10-K, the Company incorporates by reference certain
information from parts of its proxy statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which we
expect to file with the SEC on or about March 12, 2007, and which will also be available free of charge
at our website.

Information relating to corporate governance at Honeywell, including Honeywell's Code of
Business Conduct, Corporate Governance Guidelines and Charters of the Committees of the Board of
Directors are also available, free of charge, on our website under the heading "Investor Relations" (see
"Corporate Governance"), or by writing to Honeywell, 101 Columbia Road, Morris Township, New
Jersey 07962, c/o Vice President and Corporate Secretary. Honeywell's Code of Business Conduct
applies to all Honeywell directors, officers (including the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer
and Controller) and employees.

The certifications of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section
302 and Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 about the disclosure contained in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K are included as Exhibits 31.1, 31.2, 32.1 and 32.2 to this Annual Report and are
available free of charge on our website under the heading "Investor Relations" (see "SEC Filings &
Reports"). Our Chief Executive Officer certified to the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) on May 23,
2006, pursuant to Section 303A.12 of the NYSE's listing standards, that he was not aware of any
violation by Honeywell of the NYSE's corporate governance listing standards as of that date.

Major Businesses

We globally manage our business operations through four businesses that are reported as
operating segments: Aerospace, Automation and Control Solutions, Specialty Materials and
Transportation Systems. Financial information related to our operating segments is included in Note 23
of Notes to Financial Statements in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data."

The major products/services, customers/uses and key competitors of each of our operating
segments follows:

Product/Service Classes Major Products/Services Major Customers/Uses Key Competitors

Aerospace

Turbine propulsion engines TFE731 turbofan Business, regional, general United Technologies
TFE1042 turbofan aviation and military Rolls Royce/Allison
ATF3 turbofan trainer aircraft Turbomeca
F124 turbofan Commercial and military Williams
ALF502 turbofan helicopters
LF507 turbofan Military vehicles
CFE738 turbofan
HTF 7000 turbofan
T53, T55 turboshaft
T800 turboshaft
TF40B/50A
HTS9000
LT101-650/750/850
HTF5000
AGT1500 turboshaft
Repair, overhaul and

spare parts
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Product/Service Classes

Auxiliary power units
(APUs)

Major Products/Services

Airborne auxiliary power
units

Jet fuel starters
Secondary power systems
Ground power units
Repair, overhaul and

spare parts

Major Customers/Uses

Commercial, regional,
business and military
aircraft

Ground power

Key Competitors

United Technologies

Environmental control Air management systems: Commercial, regional and Auxilec
systems Air conditioning general aviation aircraft Barber Colman

Bleed air Military aircraft Dukes
Cabin pressure control Ground vehicles Eaton-Vickers
Air purification and Spacecraft Goodrich

treatment Liebherr
Gas Processing Pacific Scientific
Heat Exchangers Parker Hannifin
Turbo Systems Smiths
Repair, overhaul and TAT

spare parts United Technologies

Electric power systems Generators Commercial, regional, Goodrich
Power distribution & business and military Safran

control aircraft Smiths
Power conditioning United Technologies
Repair, overhaul and

spare parts

Engine systems and Electronic and Commercial, regional and BAE Controls
accessories hydromechanical fuel general aviation aircraft Goodrich

controls Military aircraft Parker Hannifin
Engine start systems United Technologies
Electronic engine controls
Sensors
Valves
Electric and pneumatic

power generation
systems

Thrust reverser actuation,
pneumatic and electric

Aircraft hardware Fasteners, including nuts, Commercial, regional, Anixter
distribution bolts, rivets, clamps and business and military Arrow Pemco

pins aviation aircraft Avnet
Bearings, including ball, BE Aerospace (M&M

roller, spherical, needle Aerospace)
and ceramic Fairchild Direct

Electrical hardware, Satair
including connectors, Wencor
components, lighting Wesco Aircraft
products, terminals, and
wire and wiring
accessories

Seals, including seals,
o-rings, gaskets and
packings

Value-added services,
repair and overhaul
kitting and point-of-use
replenishment

Avionics systems Flight safety systems: Commercial, business and BAE
Enhanced Ground

Proximity Warning
Systems (EGPWS)

Traffic Alert and
Collision Avoidance
Systems (TCAS)

Windshear detection
systems

Flight data and cockpit
voice recorders

Weather radar
Communication, navigation

and surveillance systems:
Navigation &

communication
radios

Global positioning
systems

Satellite systems
Integrated systems

general aviation aircraft
Government aviation

Boeing/Jeppesen
.Garmin
Goodrich
Kaiser
L3
Lockheed Martin
Northrop Grumman
Rockwell Collins
Smiths
Thales
Trimble/Terra
Universal Avionics
Universal Weather
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Product/Service Classes Major Products/Services Major Custo.mers/Uses Key Competitors

Avionics systems
(continued)

Flight management
systems

Cockpit display systems
Data management and

aircraft performance
monitoring systems

Aircraft informýition
systems

Network file servers
Wireless.ýnetwork

transceivers
Weather information

network
Navigation database

information
Cabin management

systems
Vibration detection and

monitoring
Mission management

systems
Tactical data management

systems

Inset lights
Regulators
Tower and obstruction

lights
Interior and exterior aircraft

lighting

Aircraft and Obstruction
lighting

Commercial, regional,
business, helicopter and
military aviation aircraft
(operators, OEMs, 'parts
distributors and.MRO
service providers)

General contractors
(building and tower
manufacturers), cell
phone companies

Bruce
Hella/Goodrich
LSI
Luminator
Siemens
Whelen

Inertial sensor Inertial sensor systems for Military and commercial Astronautics-Kearfott
guidance, stabilization, vehicles BAE
navigation and control Commercial spacecraft Ball

Gyroscopes, and launch vehicles GEC
accelerometers,. inertial Commercial; regional, L3 Coin
measurement units and business and military KVH
thermal switches aircraft Northrop Grumman

Transportation Rockwell
Missiles Smiths
Munitions

Control products Radar altimeters Military aircraft Ball Brothers
Pressure products Missiles, UAVs BAE
Air data products Commercial applications Druck
Thermal switches Goodrich
Magnetic sensors NavCom

Northrop Grumman
Rosemount
Solarton

Space products and Guidance subsystems Commercial and military- BAE
subsystems Control subsystems spacecraft Ithaco

Processing subsystems DoD L3
Radiation hardened FAA Northrop Grumman

electronics and NASA Raytheon
integrated circuits

GPS-based range safety
systems

Management and Maintenance/operation and U.S. government space Bechtel
technical services provision of space (NASA) Boeing

systems, services and DoD (logistics and Computer Sciences
facilities information services) Dyncorp

Systems engineering and FAA ITT
integration DoE Lockheed Martin

Information technology Local governments Raytheon
services Commercial space ground SAIC

Logistics and sustainment segment systems and The Washington Group
services United Space Alliance
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Product/Service Classes

Landing systems

Major Products/Services

Wheels and brakes
Wheel and brake repair

and overhaul services

Major Customers/Uses

Commercial airline,
regional, business and
militaryaircraft

High performance
commercial vehicles

USAF, DoD, DoE
Boeing, Airbus, Lockheed

Martin'

Key Competitors

Dunlop Standard Aerospace
Goodrich
K&F Industries
Messier-Bugatti
NASCO

Automation and Control Solutions
Environmental combustion

controls; sensing
controls

Heating, ventilating and air
conditioning controls and
components for homes
and buildings

Indoor air quality products
including zoning, air
cleaners, humidification,
heat and energy
recovery ventilators

Controls plus integrated
electronic systems for
burners, boilers and
furnaces

Consumer household
products including
humidifiers and
thermostats

Electrical devices and
switches

Water controls
Sensors, measurement,

control and industrial
components

Original equipment
manufacturers (OEMs)

Distributors
Contractors
Retailers
System integrators
Commercial customers

and homeowners served
by the distributor,
Wholesaler, contractor,
retail and utility channels

Package and materials
handling operations

Appliance manufacturers
Automotive companies
Aviation companies
Food and beverage

processors
Medical equipment
Heat treat processors
Computer and business

equipment
manufacturers

Bosch
Cherry
Danfoss
Eaton
Emerson
Endress & Hauser
Holmes
Invensys
Johnson Controls
Motorola
Schneider
Siemens
United Technologies
Yamatake

Security and life safety Security products and OEMs Bosch
products and services systems Retailers Draeger

Fire products and systems Distributors GE
Access controls and closed Commercial customers Mine Safety Appliances

circuit television and homeowners served Pelco
Home health monitoring by the distributor, Phillips

and nurse call systems wholesaler, contractor, Riken Keiki
Gas detection products retail and utility channels Siemens

and systems Health care organizations SPX
Emergency lighting Security monitoring Tyco

service providers United Technologies

Process automation Advanced control software Refining and ABB
products and solutions and industrial petrochemical AspenTech

automation systems for companies Emerson
control and monitoring of Chemical manufacturers Invensys
continuous, batch and Oil and gas producers Siemens
hybrid operations Food and beverage Yokogawa

Production management processors
software Pharmaceutical

Communications systems companies
for Industrial Control Utilities
equipment and systems Film and coated producers

Consulting, networking Pulp and paper.,inrdustry
engineering and Continuous web producers
installation in the paper, plastics,

Process control metals, rubber, non-
instrumentation wovens and printing

Field instrumentation industries
Analytical instrumentation Mining and mineral
Recorders industries
Controllers
Critical environment control

solutions and services
Aftermarket maintenance,.

repair and upgrade
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Product/Service Classes

Building solutions and
services

Major Products/Services

HVAC and building control
solutions and services

Energy management
solutions and services

Security and asset
management solutions
and services

Enterprise building
integration solutions

Building information
services

Airport lighting and
systems, visual docking
guidance systems

Major Customers/Uses

Building managers and
owners

Contractors, architects and
developers

Consulting engineers
Security directors
Plant managers
Utilities '
Large global corporations
Public school systems
Universities
Local governments
Public housing agencies
Airports

Key Competitors

Ameresco
GroupMac
Ingersoll Rand
Invensys
Johnson Controls
Local contractors and utilities
Safegate
Schneider
Siemens
Trane
Thorn
United Technologies

Specialty Materials
Resins & chemicals Nylon polymer Nylon for carpet fibers, BASF

Caprolactam engineered resins and DSM
Ammonium sulfate packaging
Cyclohexanone Fertilizer ingredients
Cyclophexanol (KA Oil) Specialty chemicals

Hydrofluoric acid (HF) Anhydrous and aqueous Fluorocarbons Ashland
hydrofluoric acid Steel E. Merck

Oil refining Hashimoto Norfluor
Chemical intermediates Quimica Fluor

Fluorocarbons Genetron® refrigerants, Refrigeration Arkema
aerosol and insulation Air conditioning Dupont
foam blowing agents Polyurethane foam Solvay-Solexis

Genesolv® solvents Precision cleaning Ineos
Oxyfume sterilant gases Optical
Ennovate 3000 blowing Appliances

agent for refrigeration Hospitals
insulation Medical equipment

manufacturers

Fluorine specialties Sulfur hexafluoride (SF 6) Electric utilities Air Products
Iodine pentafluoride (IF5) Magnesium gear Asahi Glass
Antirmony pentafluoride manufacturers Solvay-Solexis

(SbF,)

Nuclear services UF6 conversion services Nuclear fuel Cameco
Electric utilities Comurhex

Rosatom

Research and fine Oxime-based fine Agrichemicals Avecia
chemicals ! chemicals Biotech Degussa

Fluoroaromatics DSM
High-purity solvents E. Merck

Thermo Fisher Scientific
Lonza
Sigma-Aldrich

Performance chemicals HFderivatives Diverse by product type Atotech
Imaging chemicals Fluoroaromatics BASF
Chemical processing Catalysts DSM
Sealants Oxime-silanes

Advanced fibers & High modulus polyethylene Bullet resistant vests, DuPont
composites fiber and shield helmets and other armor DSM

composites applications ."Teijin
Aramid shield composites Cut-resistant gloves

Rope & cordage

Specialty films Cast nylon film Food and pharmaceutical American Biaxis
Bi-axially oriented nylon packaging CFP

film Daikin
Fluoropolymer film Kolon

Unitika

Specialty additives Polyethylene waxes Coatings and inks BASF
Paraffin waxes and blends PVC pipe, siding & profiles Clariant
PVC lubricant systems Plastics Eastman
Processing aids * Reflective coatings
Luminescent pigments Safety & security

applications
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Product/Service Classes Major Products/Services Major CustomerslUses; Key Competitors

Electronic chemicals Ultra high-purity HF Semiconductors Air Products
Inorganic acids Arch
Hi-purity solvents E. Merck

Semiconductor materials Interconnect-dielectrics Semiconductors BASF
and services Interconnect-metals Microelectronics Brewer

Semiconductor packaging Telecommunications Dow Corning
materials Foxconn

Advanced polymers Japan Energy
Sapphire substrates Kyocera
Anti-reflective coatings Shinko
Thermo-couples

Catalysts, adsorbents and Catalysts Petroleum, refining, Akzo Nobel
specialties Molecular sieves petrochemical, and Axens

Adsorbents manufacturing industries BASF
Customer catalyst Davison

manufacturing Grace
Haldor
Shell/Criterion
Sud Chemie

Process technology and Design of process units Petroleum refining, ABB Lummus
equipment and systems petrochemical, and gas Axens

Engineered products processing Exxon-Mobil
Proprietary equipment Haldor
Technical personnel and Koch Glitch

training development Phillips
Shell/Criterion
Stratco

Transportation Systems
Charge-air systems Turbochargers for gasoline Passenger car, truck and Borg-Warner

and diesel engines off-highway OEMs Holset
Engine manufacturers IHI
Aftermarket distributors MHI

and dealers

Thermal systems Exhaust gas coolers Passenger car, truck and Behr
Charge-air coolers off-highway OEMs Modine
Aluminum radiators Engine manufacturers Valeo
Aluminum cooling modules Aftermarket distributors

and dealers

Aftermarket filters, spark Oil, air, fuel, transmission Automotive and heavy AC Delco
plugs, electronic and coolant filters vehicle aftermarket Bosch
components and car PCV valves channels, OEMs and Champion
care products Spark plugs Original Equipment Mann & Hummel

Wire and cable Service Providers (OES) NGK
Antifreeze/coolant Auto supply retailers Peak/Old World Industries
Windshield washer fluids Specialty installers Purolator
Waxes, washes and Mass merchandisers STP/ArmorAIl

specialty cleaners Turtle Wax
ZerexNalvoline

Brake hard parts and other
friction materials

Disc brake pads and shoes
Drum brake linings
Brake blocks
Disc and drum brake

components
Brake hydraulic

components
Brake fluid
Aircraft brake linings
Railway linings

Automotive and heavy
vehicle OEMs, OES,
brake manufacturers
and aftermarket
channels

Mass merchandisers
Installers
Railway and commercial/

military aircraft OEMs
and brake
manufacturers

Akebono
Federal-Mogul
ITT Galfer
JBI
TMD

Aerospace Sales

Our sales to aerospace customers were 35 percent of our total sales in 2006 and 38 percent of our total
sales in each of 2005 and 2004. Our sales to commercial aerospace original equipment manufacturers
were 10, 9 and 8 percent of our total sales in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. In addition, our sales to
commercial aftermarket customers of aerospace products and services were 11, 15 and 16 percent of our
total sales in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Our Aerospace results of operations can be impacted by
various industry and economic conditions. See "Item 1 A. Risk Factors."
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U.S. Government Sales

Sales to the U.S. Government (principally by our Aerospace segment), acting through its various
departments and agencies and through prime contractors, amounted to $3,688, $3,719 and $3,464 million
in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, which included sales to the U.S. Department of Defense, as a prime
contractor and subcontractor, of $3,052, $2,939 and $2,808 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
U.S. defense spending increased in 2006 and is also expected to increase in 2007. We do not expect to be
significantly affected by any proposed changes in 2007 federal spending due principally to the varied mix of
the government programs which impact us (OEM production, engineering development programs,
aftermarket spares and repairs and overhaul programs). Our contracts with the U.S. Government are
subject to audits, investigations, and termination by the government. See "Item 1 A. Risk Factors."

Backlog

Our total backlog at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was $10,674 and $9,327 million, respectively. We
anticipate that approximately $8,162 million of the 2006 backlog will be filled in 2007. We believe that
backlog is not necessarily a reliable indicator of our future sales because a substantial portion of the orders
constituting this backlog may be canceled at the customer's option.

Competition

We are subject to active competition in substantially all product and service areas. Competition is
expected to continue in all geographic regions. Competitive conditions vary widely among the thousands of
products and services provided by us, and vary country by country. Depending on the particular customer
or market involved, our businesses compete on a variety of factors, such as price, quality, reliability, delivery,
customer service, performance, applied technology, product innovation and product recognition. Brand
identity, service to customers and quality are generally important competitive factors for our products and
services, and there is considerable price competition. Other competitive factors for certain products include
breadth of product line, research and development efforts and technical and managerial capability. While
our competitive position varies among our products and services, we believe we are a significant competitor
in each of our major product and service classes. However, a number of our products and services are sold
in competition with those of a large number of other companies, some of which have substantial financial
resources and significant technological capabilities. In addition, some of our products compete with the
captive component divisions of original equipment manufacturers.

International Operations

We are engaged in manufacturing, sales, service and research and development mainly in the United
States, Europe, Canada, Asia and Latin America. U.S. exports and foreign manufactured products are
significant to our operations. U.S. exports comprised 11, 10 and 9 percent of our total sales in 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively. Foreign manufactured products and services, mainly in Europe, were 37, 35 and
35 percent of our total sales in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Approximately 19 percent of total 2006 sales of Aerospace-related products and services were
exports of U.S. manufactured products and systems and performance of services such as aircraft repair
and overhaul. Exports were principally made to Europe, Canada, Asia and Latin America. Foreign
manufactured products and systems and performance of services comprised approximately 14 percent of
total 2006 Aerospace sales. The principal manufacturing facilities outside the U.S. are in Europe, with less
significant operations in Canada and Asia.

Approximately 2 percent of total 2006 sales of Automation and Control Solutions products were
exports of U.S. manufactured products. Foreign manufactured products and performance of services
accounted for 55 percent of total 2006 sales of Automation and Control Solutions. The principal
manufacturing facilities outside the U.S. are in Europe with less significant operations in Asia, Canada and
Latin America.

Approximately 25 percent of total 2006 sales of Specialty Materials products were exports of U.S.
manufactured products. Exports were principally made to Asia, Europe, Latin America and Canada.
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Foreign manufactured products comprised 22 percent of total 2006 sales of Specialty Materials. The
principal manufacturing facilities outside the U.S. are in Europe, with less significant operations in Asia and
Canada.

Exports of U.S. manufactured products comprised 1 percent of total 2006 sales of Transportation
Systems products. Foreign manufactured products accounted for 63 percent of total 2006 sales of
Transportation Systems. The principal manufacturing facilities outside the U.S. are in Europe, with less
significant operations in Asia, Latin America and Canada.

Financial information including net sales and long-lived assets related to geographic areas is included
in Note 24 of Notes to Financial Statements in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data".
Information regarding the economic, political, regulatory and other risks associated with international
operations is included in "Item 1A. Risk Factors."

Raw Materials

The principal raw materials used in our operations are generally readily available. We experienced no
significant or unusual problems in the purchase of key raw materials and commodities in 2006. We are not
dependent on any one supplier for a material amount of our raw materials, except related to phenol, a raw
material used in our Specialty Materials segment. We purchase phenol under a supply agreement with one
supplier. We have no reason to believe there is any material risk to this supply.

We are highly dependent on our suppliers and subcontractors in order to meet commitments to our
customers. In addition, many major components and product equipment items are procured or
subcontracted on a sole-source basis with a number of domestic and foreign companies. We maintain a
qualification and performance surveillance process to control risk associated with such reliance on third
parties. While we believe that sources of supply for raw materials and components are generally adequate,
it is difficult to predict what effects shortages or price increases may have in the future.

The costs of certain key raw materials, including natural gas, benzene (the key component in phenol)
and fluorspar in our Specialty Materials' business, steel and nickel in our Transportation Systems business,
and nickel, titanium and other metals in our Aerospace business, were at historically high levels in 2006 and
are expected to remain at high price levels. In addition, in 2006 certain large long-term fixed supplier price
agreements expired, primarily relating to components used by our Aerospace business, which in the
aggregate, subjected us to higher volatility in certain component costs. We will continue to attempt to offset
raw material cost increases with formula price agreements, price increases and hedging activities where
feasible. We have no reason to believe a shortage of raw materials will cause any material adverse impact
during 2007. See "Item 1 A. Risk Factors" for further discussion.

Patents, Trademarks, Licenses and Distribution Rights

Our reportable segments are not dependent upon any single patent or related group of patents, or any
licenses or distribution rights. We own, or are licensed under, a large number of patents, patent applications
and trademarks acquired over a period of many years, which relate to many of our products or
improvements to those products and which are of importance to our business. From time to time, new
patents and trademarks are obtained, and patent and trademark licenses and rights are acquired from
others. We also have distribution rights of varying terms for a number of products and services produced by
other companies. In our judgment, those rights are adequate for the conduct of our business. We believe
that, in the aggregate, the rights under our patents, trademarks and licenses are generally important to our
operations, but we do not consider any patent, trademark or related group of patents, or any licensing or
distribution rights related to a specific process or product, to be of material importance in relation to our total
business. See "Item 1A. Risk Factors" for further discussion.

We have registered trademarks for a number of our products and services, including Honeywell, UOP,
Prestone, FRAM, Autolite, Bendix, Jurid, Holts, Garrett, Ademco, Fire-Lite, Notifier, System Sensor, MK,
Novar, Genetron, Enovate, Spectra, Aclar, Simoniz and Redex.
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Research and Development

Our research activities are directed toward the discovery and development of new products,
technologies and processes and the development of new uses for existing products. The Company has
research and development activities in the U.S., Europe, India and China.

Research and development (R&D) expense totaled $1,411, $1 ,072 and $917 million in 2006,2005 and
2004, respectively. The increase in R&D expense in 2006 compared to 2005 of 32 percent was primarily
due to the impact of additional R&D expense for UOP in Specialty Materials as well as product, design and
development costs in Aerospace and Automation and Control Solutions. The increase in research and
development expense in 2005 compared with 2004 of 17 percent resulted primarily from design and devel-
opments costs associated with new aircraft platforms in Aerospace and new product development costs in
Automation and Control Solutions. Customer-sponsored (principally the U.S. Government) R&D activities
amounted to an additional $777, $694 and $593 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Environment

We are subject to various federal, state, local and foreign government requirements regulating the
discharge of materials into the environment or otherwise relatingto the protection of the environment. It is
our policy to comply with these requirements, and we believe that, as a general matter, our policies,
practices and procedures are properly designed to prevent unreasonable risk of environmental damage,
and of resulting financial liability, in connection with our business. Some risk of environmental damage is,
however, inherent in some of our operations and products, as it is with other companies engaged in similar
businesses.

We are and have been engaged in the handling, manufacture, use and disposal of many substances
classified as hazardous or toxic by one or more regulatory agencies. We believe that, as a general matter,
our policies, practices and procedures are properly designed to prevent unreasonable risk of environmental
damage and personal injury, and that our handling, manufacture, use and disposal of these substances are
in accord with environmental and safety laws and regulations. It is possible, however, that future knowledge
or other developments, such as improved capability to detect substances in the environment or increasingly
strict environmental laws and standards and enforcement policies, could bring into question our current or
past handling, manufacture, use or disposal of these substances.

Among other environmental requirements, we are subject to the federal superfund and similar state
and foreign laws and regulations, under which we have been designated as a potentially responsible party
that may be liable for cleanup costs associated with current and former operating sites and various
hazardous waste sites, some of which are on the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency's superfund
priority list. Although, under some court interpretations of these laws, there is a possibility that a responsible
party might have to bear more than its proportional share of the cleanup costs if it is unable to obtain
appropriate contribution from other responsible parties, we have not had to bear significantly more than our
proportional share in multi-party situations taken as a whole.

Further information, including the current status of significant environmental matters and the financial
impact incurred for remediation of such environmental matters, if any, is included in "Item 7. Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," in Note 21 of Notes to Financial
Statements in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data," and in "Item 1A. Risk Factors."

Employees

We have approximately 118,000 employees at December 31, 2006, of which approximately 56,000
were located in the United States.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

Cautionary Statement about Forward-Looking Statements

We have described many of the trends and other factors that drive our business and future results in
"Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations",
including the discussion of economic and other factors and areas of focus for 2007 for the Company and/or
each of our segments. These sections and other parts of this report (including this Item 1A) contain
"forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Section 21 E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Forward-looking statements are those that address activities, events or developments that
management intends, expects, projects, believes or anticipates will or may occur in the future. They are
based on management's assumptions and assessments in light of past experience and trends, current
conditions, expected future developments and other relevant factors. They are not guarantees of future
performance, and actual results, developments and business decisions may differ significantly from those
envisaged by our forward-looking statements. We do not undertake to update or revise any of our forward-
looking statements. Our forward-looking statements are also subject to risks and uncertainties that can
affect our performance in both the near-and longýterm. These forward-looking statements should be
considered in light of the information included in this Form 10-K, including, in particular, the factors
discussed below.

Risk Factors

Our business, operating results, cash flows and financial condition are subject to various risks and
uncertainties, including, without limitation, those set forth below, any one of which could cause our actual
results to vary materially from recent results or from our anticipated future results.

Industry and economic conditions may adversely affect the market and operating conditions of
our customers, which in turn can affect demand for our products and services and our results of
operations.

The operating results of our segments are impacted by general industry and economic conditions that
can cause changes in spending and capital investment patterns, demand for our products and services and
the level of our manufacturing costs. The operating results of our Aerospace segment, which generated 35
percent of our consolidated revenues in 2006, are directly tied to cyclical industry and economic conditions,
including global demand for air travel as reflected in new aircraft production and/or the retirement of older
aircraft, global flying hours, and business and general aviation aircraft utilization rates, as well as the level
and mix of U.S. Government appropriations for defense and space programs (as further discussed in other
risk factors below). The challenging operating environment faced by the commercial airline industry is
expected to continue and may be influenced by a wide variety of factors including aircraft fuel prices, labor
issues, airline consolidation, airline insolvencies, terrorism and safety concerns, and changes in
regulations. Future terrorist actions or pandemic health issues could dramatically reduce both the demand
for air travel and our Aerospace aftermarket sales and margins. The operating results of our Automation
and Control Solutions (ACS) segment, which generated 35 percent of our consolidated revenues in 2006,
are impacted by the level of global residential and commercial construction (including retrofits and
upgrades), capital spending on building and process automation, industrial plant capacity utilization and
expansion, and material price inflation. Specialty Materials' operating results, which generated 15 percent
of our consolidated revenues in 2006, are impacted by global gross domestic product and capacity
utilization for chemical, industrial, refining and petrochemical plants. Transportation Systems' operating
results, which generated 15 percent of our consolidated revenues in 2006, are impacted by global
production and demand for automobiles and trucks equipped with turbochargers, regulatory changes
regarding automobile and truck emissions and consumer spending for automotive aftermarket and car care
products.
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Raw material price fluctuations and the ability of key suppliers to meet qualitytand delivery
requirements can increase the cost of our products and services and impact our ability to meet
commitments to customers.

The cost of raw materials is a key element in the cost of our products, particularly in our Specialty
Materials (fluorspar, benzene (the key component in phenol) and natural gas), Transportation Systems
(nickel and steel) and Aerospace (nickel, titanium and other metals) segments. Our inability to offset
material price inflation through increased prices to customers, long-term fixed price contracts with
suppliers, productivity actions or through commodity hedges could adversely affect our results of
operations.

Our manufacturing operations are also highly dependent upon the delivery of materials by outside
suppliers and their assembly of major components and subsystems used in our products in a timely manner
and in full compliance with purchase order terms and conditions, quality standards, and applicable laws and
regulations. We also depend in limited instances on sole source suppliers. Our suppliers may fail to perform
according to specifications as and when required and we may be unable to identify alternate suppliers or to
otherwise mitigate the consequences of their non-performance. The supply chains for our businesses
could also be disrupted by external events such as natural disasters, pandemic health issues, terrorist
actions, labor disputes or governmental actions. Our inability to fill our supply needs would jeopardize our
ability to fulfill obligations under commercial and government contracts, which could, in turn, result in
reduced sales and profits, contract penalties or terminations, and damage to customer relationships.

Our future growth is largely dependent upon our ability to develop new technologies that
achieve market acceptance with acceptable margins.

Our businesses operate in global markets that are characterized by rapidly changing technologies and
evolving industry standards. Accordingly, our future growth rate depends upon a number of factors,
including our ability to (i) identify emerging technological trends in our target end-markets, (ii) develop and
maintain competitive products, (iii) enhance our products by adding innovative features that differentiate
our products from those of our competitors, and (iv) develop, manufacture and bring products to market
quickly and cost-effectively.

Our ability to develop new products based on technological innovation can affect our competitive
position and requires the investment of significant resources. These development efforts divert resources
from other potential investments in our businesses, and they may not lead to the development of new
technologies or products on a timely basis or that meet the needs of our customers as fully as. competitive
offerings. In addition, the markets for our products may not develop or grow as we currently anticipate. The
failure of our technologies or products to gain market acceptance due to more attractive offerings by our
competitors could significantly reduce our revenues and adversely affect our competitive standing and
prospects.

Protecting our intellectual property is critical to our innovation efforts. We own or are licensed under a
large number of U.S. and foreign patents and patent applications, trademarks and copyrights. Our
intellectual property rights may be challenged, invalidated or infringed upon by third parties or we may be
unable to maintain, renew or enter into new licenses of third party proprietary intellectual property on
commercially reasonable terms. In some non-U.S. countries, laws affecting intellectual property are
uncertain in their application, which can affect the scope or enforceability of our patents and other
intellectual property rights. Any of these events or factors could diminish or cause us to lose the competitive
advantages associated with our intellectual property, subject us to judgments, penalties and significant
litigation costs, and/or temporarily or permanently disrupt our sales and marketing of the affected products
or services.

An increasing percentage of our sales and operations is in non-U.S. jurisdictions and is subject
to the economic, political, regulatory and other risks of international operations.

Our international operations, including U.S. exports, comprise a growing proportion of our operating
results and our strategy calls for increasing sales to and operations in overseas markets, including
developing markets such as China, India and the Middle East. In 2006, 48 percent of our total sales
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(including products manufactured in the U.S. and in international locations) were outside of the U.S.
including 28 percent in Europe and 10 percent in Asia. Risks related to international operations include
exchange control regulations, wage and price controls, employment regulations, foreign investment laws,
import and trade restrictions (including embargoes), changes in regulations regarding transactions with
state-owned enterprises, nationalization of private enterprises, government instability and our ability to hire
and maintain qualified staff in these regions. The cost of compliance with increasingly complex and often
conflicting regulations worldwide can also impair our flexibility in modifying product, marketing, pricing or
other strategies for growing our businesses, as well as our ability to improve productivity and maintain
acceptable operating margins.

As we continue to grow our businesses internationally, our operating results could be effected by the
relative strength of the European and Asian economies and the impact of exchange rate fluctuations. We do
have a policy to reduce the risk of volatility through hedging activities, but such activities bear a financial cost
and may not always be available to us and may not be successful in eliminating such volatility.

We may be required to recognize impairment charges for our long-lived assets.

At December 31, 2006, the net carrying value of long-lived assets (property, plant and equipment,
goodwill and other intangible assets) totaled approximately $14.5 billion. In accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, we periodically assess our long-lived assets to determine if they are
impaired. Significant negative industry or economic trends, disruptions to our business, unexpected
significant changes or planned changes in use of the assets, divestitures and market capitalization declines
may result in impairments to goodwill and other long-lived assets. Future impairment charges could
significantly affect our results of operations in the'periods recognized. Impairment charges would also
reduce our consolidated shareowners' equity and increase our debt-to-total-capitalization ratio, which
could negatively impact our access to the public debt and equity markets.

A change in the level of U.S. Government defense and space funding or the mix of programs to
which such funding is allocated could adversely impact sales of Aerospace's defense and
space-related product and services.

Sales of our defense and space-related products and services are largely dependent upon
government budgets, particularly the U.S. defense budget. Sales as a prime contractor and subcontractor
to the U. S. Department of Defense comprised approximately 27 and 10 percent of Aerospace and total
sales, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2006. Although U.S. defense spending increased in
2006 and is expected to increase again in 2007, we cannot predict the extent towhich funding for individual
programs will be included, increased or reduced as part of the 2008 and"subsequent budgets ultimately
approved by Congress, or be included in the scope of separate supplemental appropriations. We also
cannot predict the impact of potential changes in priorities due to military transformation and planning
and/or the nature of war-related activity on existing, follow-on or replacement programs. A shift in defense
spending to programs in which we do not participate and/or reductions in funding for or termination of
existing programs could adversely impact our results of operations.

As a supplier of military and other equipment to the U. S. Government, we are subject to unusual
risks, such as the right of the U.S. Government to terminate contracts for convenience and to
conduct audits and investigations of our operations and performance.

In addition to normal business risks, companies like Honeywell that supply military and other
equipment to the U.S. Government are subject to unusual risks, including dependence on Congressional
appropriations and administrative allotment of funds, changes in governmental procurement legislations
and regulations and other policies that reflect military and political developments, significant changes in
contract scheduling, complexity of designs and the rapidity with which theybecome obsolete, necessity for
constant design improvements, intense competition for U.S. Government business necessitating increases
in time and investment for design and development, difficulty .of forecasting costs and schedules when
bidding on developmental and highly sophisticated technical work, and other factors characteristic of the
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industry. Changes.,are customary over the life of U.S. Government contracts, particularly development
contracts, and generally result in adjustments of contract prices.

Our contracts with the U.S. Government are subject to audits. Like many other government
contractors, we have received audit reports that recommend downward price adjustments to certain
contracts to comply with various government regulations. We have made adjustments and paid voluntary
refunds in appropriate cases and may do so in the future.

U.S. Government contracts are subject to termination by the government, either for the convenience of
the government or for our failure to perform under the applicable contract. In the case of a termination for
convenience, we are typically entitled to reimbursement for our allowable costs incurred, plus termination
costs and a reasonable profit. If a contract is terminated by the government for our failure to perform we
could'be liable for additional costs incurred by the government in acquiring undelivered goods or services
from any other source and any other damages suffered by the government.

We are also subject to government investigations of business practices and compliance with
government procurement regulations. If Honeywell or one of its businesses were charged with wrongdoing
as a result of any such investigation or other government investigations (including violations of certain
environmental or export laws), it could be suspended from bidding on or receiving awards of new
government contracts pending the completion of legal proceedings. The U.S. Government also reserves
the right to debar a contractor from receiving new government contracts for fraudulent, criminal or other
egregious misconduct. Debarment generally does not exceed three years.

Changes in legislation or government regulations or policies can have a significant impact on
our results of operations.

The sales and margins of each of our segments are directly impacted by government regulations.
Safety and performance regulations (including mandates of the Federal Aviation Administration and other
similar international regulatory bodies requiring the installation of equipment on aircraft), product
certification requirements and government procurement practices can impact Aerospace sales, research
and development expenditures, operating costs and profitability. The demand for and cost of providing
Automation and Control Solutions products, services and solutions can be impacted by fire, security, safety,
health care and energy efficiency standards and regulations. Specialty Materials' results of operations can
be affected by environmental (e.g. government regulation of fluorocarbons), safety and energy efficiency
standards and regulations, while emissions and energy efficiency standards and regulations can impact
the demand for turbochargers in our Transportation Systems segment.

Completed acquisitions may not perform as anticipated or be integrated as planned, and
divestitures may not occur as planned.

We regularly review our portfolio of businesses and pursue growth through acquisitions and seek to
divest non-core businesses. We may not be able to complete transactions on favorable terms, on a timely
basis or at all. In addition, our results of operations and cash flows may be adversely impacted by (i) the
failure of acquired businesses to meet or exceed expected returns, (ii) the discovery of unanticipated issues
or liabilities, (iii) the failure to integrate acquired businesses into Honeywell on schedule and/or to achieve
synergies within the plan and timeframe, and/or (iv) the inability to dispose of non-core assets and
businesses on satisfactory terms and conditions and within the expected time frame.

We cannot predict with certainty the outcome of litigation matters, government proceedings and
other contingencies and uncertainties.

We are subject to a number of lawsuits, investigations and disputes (some of which involve substantial
amounts claimed) arising out of the conduct of our business, including matters relating to commercial
transactions, government contracts, product liability (including asbestos), prior acquisitions and
divestitures, employment, employee benefits plans, and environmental, health and safety matters.
Resolution of these matters can be prolonged and costly, and the ultimate results or judgments are
uncertain due to the inherent uncertainty in litigation and other proceedings. Moreover, our potential
liabilities are subject to change over time due to new developments, changes in settlement strategy or the
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impact of evidentiary requirements, and we may be required to pay damage awards or settlements, or
become subject to damage awards or settlements, that could have a material adverse effect on our results
of operations, cash flows and financial condition. While we maintain insurance for certain risks, the amount
of our insurance coverage may not be adequate to cover the total amount of all insured claims and liabilities.
It also is not possible to obtain insurance to, protect against all our operational risks and liabilities. The
incurrence of.significant liabilities for which there is, no or insufficient insurance coverage could adversely
affect our results of operations, cash flows, liquidity and financial condition.

Our operations and the prior operations of predecessor companies expose us to the risk of
material environmental liabilities.

Mainly because of past operations and operations of predecessor companies, we are subject to
potentially material liabilities related to the remediation of environmental hazards and to personal injuries or
property damages that may be caused by hazardous substance releases and exposures. We have incurred
remedial response and voluntary clean-up costs for site contamination and are a party to lawsuits and
claims associated with environmental and safety matters, including past production of products containing
toxic substances. Additional lawsuits, claims and costs involving environmental matters are likely to
continue to arise in the future. We are subject to various federal, state, local and foreign government
requirements regulating the discharge of materials into the environment or otherwise relating to the
protection of the environment. These laws and regulations can impose substantial fines and criminal
sanctions for violations, and require installation of costly equipment or operational changes to limit
emissions and/or decrease the likelihood of accidental hazardous substance releases. We incur, and
expect to continue to incur capital and operating costs to comply with these laws and regulations. In
addition, changes in laws, regulations and enforcement of policies, the discovery of previously unknown
contamination or new technology or information related to individual sites, or the imposition of new clean-up
requirements or remedial techniques could require us to incur costs in the future that would have a negative
effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

Our expenses include significant costs related to employee health and retiree health and income
benefits.

With approximately 118,000 employees, including 56,000 in the U.S, our expenses relating to
employee health and retiree health and income benefits are significant. In recent years, we have
experienced significant increases in certain of these costs, largely as a result of economic factors beyond
our control, in particular, ongoing increases in health care costs well in excess of the rate of inflation.
Continued increasing health-care costs, and changes in other assumptions used to calculate retiree health
and income benefit expenses, may affect our future profitability.

Additional tax expense or additional tax exposures could affect our future profitability

We are subject to income taxes in both the United States and various foreign jurisdictions, and our
domestic and international tax liabilities are dependent upon the distribution of income, among these
different jurisdictions. In 2006, our tax expense represented 25.7 percent of our income before tax, and
includes estimates of additional tax which may be incurred for tax exposures and reflects various estimates
and assumptions, including assessments of future earnings of the Company that could effect the valuation
of our deferred tax assets. Our future results could be adversely affected by changes in the effective tax rate
as a result of a change in the mix of earnings in countries with differing statutory tax rates, changes in the
overall profitability of the Company, changes in tax legislation, changes in the valuation of deferred tax
assets and liabilities, and continuing assessments of our tax exposures.

Item 1 B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not Applicable

Item 2. Properties
We have approximately 1,300 locations consisting of plants, research laboratories, sales offices and

other facilities. Our headquarters and administrative complex is located at Morris Township, New Jersey.
Our plants are generally located to serve large marketing areas and to provide accessibility to raw materials
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and labor pools. Our properties are generally maintained in good operating condition. Utilization of these
plants may vary with sales to customers and other business conditions; however, no major operating facility
is significantly idle. We own or lease warehouses, railroad cars, barges, automobiles, trucks, airplanes and
materials handling and data processing equipment. We also lease space for administrative and sales
staffs. Our properties and equipment are in good operating condition and are adequate for our present
needs. We do not anticipate difficulty in renewing existing leases as they expire or in finding alternative
facilities.

Our principal plants, which are owned in fee unless otherwise indicated, are as follows:

Anniston, AL
Glendale, AZ
Phoenix, AZ
Tempe, AZ
Tucson, AZ
Torrance, CA
(partially leased)
Clearwater, FL

Phoenix, AZ
San Diego, CA (leased)
Northford, CT
Freeport, IL

Mobile, AL
Metropolis, IL
Baton Rouge, LA

Stratford, Canada

Aerospace
South Bend, IN

Olathe, KS
Minneapolis, MN

Plymouth, MN
Rocky Mount, NC

Teterboro, NJ

Automation and Control Solutions

Golden Valley, MN
Murfreesboro, TN (leased)

Pleasant Prairie, WI (leased)
Neuss, Germany

Specialty Materials
Geismar, LA
Pottsville, PA
Orange, TX

Chesterfield, VA

Transportation Systems
Thaon-Les-Vosges, France

Glinde, Germany

Albuquerque, NM
Urbana, OH
Greer, SC
Redmond, WA
(leased)
Toronto, Canada
Raunheim, Germany
Singapore
Yeovil, UK

Chihuahua, Mexico
Juarez, Mexico
(partially leased)
Tijuana, Mexico
(leased)
Emmen, Netherlands
Newhouse, Scotland

Colonial Heights, VA
Hopewell, VA
Spokane, WA
Seelze, Germany
Chonburi, Thailand

Atessa, Italy
Ansan, Korea
(leased)
Mexicali, Mexico
Bucharest, Romania

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
We are subject to a number of lawsuits, investigations and claims (some of which involve

substantial amounts) arising out of the conduct of our business. See a discussion of environmental,
asbestos and other litigation matters in Note 21 of Notes to Financial Statements in "Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data."

Environmental Matters Involving Potential Monetary Sanctions in Excess of $100,000

As previously reported, three incidents occurred during 2003 at Honeywell's Baton Rouge,
Louisiana chemical plant, including a release of chlorine, a release of antimony pentachloride (which
resulted in an employee fatality), and an employee exposure to hydrofluoric acid. The United States
Environmental Protection Agency and the United States Department of Justice have conducted
investigations of these incidents, including a federal grand jury convened to investigate the employee
fatality. As a result of that investigation, we have signed a plea agreement with the U.S. Attorney under
which Honeywell will plead guilty to a misdemeanor charge and pay $12 million in combined restitution
and fines. The plea agreement has been filed, but the plea and the sentence still are subject to Court
acceptance, which we expect to receive. Honeywell has been served with several civil lawsuits
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regarding these incidents, for which we believe we have adequate insurance coverage to the extent
that there is any liability. We are also engaged in discussions with the Louisiana Department of
Environmental Quality (LADEQ) to resolve alleged civil environmental violations at our Baton Rouge
and Geismar, Louisiana facilities that, in part, overlap with the subject of the federal investigation.

Although we cannot predict the outcome of the matters described below, we believe that sufficient
provisions have been made in our financial statements for these matters. We do not believe that the
matters described below will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position,
results of operations or operating cash flows.

Honeywell is a defendant in a lawsuit filed by the Arizona Attorney General's office on behalf of the
Arizona Department of Environmental Quality (ADEQ). The complaint alleges failure to make required
disclosures, as well as unrelated environmental violations. Honeywell believes that the allegations in
this matter are without merit and intends to vigorously defend against this lawsuit. ADEQ's most
significant allegations have been dismissed over the course of the proceedings.

In February 2007, ADEQ has demanded penalties for alleged violations by Honeywell of the
state's underground storage tank regulations at the aircraft engines plant in Phoenix, Arizona.
Negotiations regarding the penalty are ongoing.

In the third quarter of 2006, Honeywell was advised that the State of Arizona intended to seek
penalties for alleged failures of a facility located in Kingman, Arizona to comply with various provisions
of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. We expect to resolve this matter with the State.

Honeywell received Notices of Violation from the Maricopa County Air Quality Department in July
2006 with respect to various air permitting compliance matters at one of its facilities located in Phoenix,
Arizona. Honeywell believes it has taken appropriate corrective and preventive actions to address the
concerns raised by the County.

The State of Illinois has brought a claim against Honeywell for penalties and past costs relating to
releases of chlorinated solvents at a facility owned by a third party. The State claims that a predecessor
company to Honeywell delivered solvents to the third party from 1969 until 1992; that spills occurred
during those deliveries; and that Honeywell should pay a share of the penalties and state response
costs connected with those spills. Honeywell believes it has strong defenses to the State's claims
(including that the contamination arose primarily from releases unrelated to the predecessor's
deliveries). We are engaged in discussions with the State regarding a negotiated resolution of this
matter.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
Not Applicable.

16



Executive Officers of the Registrant

The executive officers of Honeywell, listed as follows, are elected annually by the Board of
Directors. There are no family relationships among them.

Name, Age,
Date First
Elected an

Executive Officer Business Experience

David M. Cote (a), 54
2002

Adriane M. Brown, 48
2005

Dr. Nance K. Dicciani, 59
2001

Roger Fradin, 53
2004

Robert J. Gillette, 46
2001

David J. Anderson, 57
2003

Larry E. Kittelberger, 58
2001

Peter M. Kreindler, 61
1992

Thomas W. Weidenkopf, 48
2002

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer since
July 2002. President and Chief Executive Officer from February
2002 to June 2002. Chairman of the Board, President and Chief
Executive Officer of TRW (manufacturer of aerospace and
automotive products) from August 2001 to February 2002.

President and Chief Executive Officer Transportation Systems
since January 2005. Vice President and General Manager of
Engine Systems & Accessories from September 2001 to
December 2004.

President and Chief Executive Officer Specialty Materials since
November 2001.

President and Chief Executive Officer Automation and Control
Solutions since January 2004. President of Automation and
Control Products from June 2002 to December 2003. President
and Chief Executive Officer of Security and Fire Solutions from
February 2000 to May 2002.

President and Chief Executive Officer Aerospace since January
2005. President and Chief Executive Officer Transportation
Systems from July 2001 to December 2004.

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since June
2003. Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
ITT Industries (global manufacturing company) from
December 1999 to June 2003.

Senior Vice President Technology and Operations since October
2006. Senior Vice President Administration and Chief
Information Officer from August 2001 to October 2006.

Senior Vice President and General Counsel since January 1992.

Senior Vice President Human Resources and Communications
since April 2002. Vice President of Human Resources,
Aerospace, from March 1999 to March 2002.

(a) Also a Director.
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Part II.

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder
Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Market and dividend information for Honeywell's common stock is included in Note 26 of Notes to
Financial Statements in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data."

The number of record holders of our common stock at December 31, 2006 was 74,473.

The following table summarizes Honeywell's purchases of its common stock, par value $1 per
share, for the quarter ending December 31, 2006, under its previously reported $3 billion authorized
share repurchase program. Honeywell purchased a total of 45,440,000 shares of common stock in
2006:

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

(a) (b) (c) (d)
Approximate

Total Dollar Value of
Number of Shares that

Shares May Yet be
Purchased as Purchased Under

Total Part of Publicly Plans or
Number of Average Announced Programs

Shares Price Paid Plans or (Dollars in
Period Purchased per Share Programs millions)

October 2006 2,000,000 $42.70 2,000,000 $1,500
November 2006 8,975,000 $42.67 8,975,000 $1,118
December 2006 9,365,000 $43.60 9,365,000 $ 709

In February 2007, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of shares of up to $3 billion of
Honeywell common stock. Honeywell intends to repurchase outstanding shares from time to time
in the open market using cash flow generated by operations. The amount and timing of
repurchases may vary depending on market conditions and the level of other investing activities.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the five-year cumulative total return on our Common Stock to the
total returns on the Standard & Poor's 500 Stock Index and a composite of Standard & Poor's
Aerospace and Defense and Industrial Conglomerates indices, on an equally weighted basis (the
"Composite Index"). The selection and weighting of the Aerospace and Defense component of the
Composite Index was deemed appropriate in light of the fact that Honeywell's Aerospace segment has
accounted for, on average, approximately 50% of our aggregate segment profits over the past three
completed fiscal years. The selection and weighting of the Industrial Conglomerates component of the
Composite Index reflects the diverse and distinct range of non-aerospace businesses conducted by
Honeywell and their contribution to our overall segment profits. The annual changes for the five-year
period shown in the graph are based on the assumption that $100 had been invested in Honeywell
stock and each index on December 31, 2001 and that all dividends were reinvested.
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HONEYWELL INTERNATIONAL INC.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Results of Operations
N et sa les .......................................
Income (loss) from continuing operations ..........

Per Common Share
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations:

B a s ic .......................................
Assum ing dilution ............................

D ivide nds .......................................

Financial Position at Year-End
Property, plant and equipment-net ...............
Total assets .....................................
Short-term debt .................................
Long-term debt ..................................
Total debt .......................................
Shareowners' equity(1) ...........................

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

$31,367 $27,652 $25,593 $23,095 $22,261
2,078 1,564 1,246 1,309 (254)

2.53
2.51

0.9075

1.85
1.84

0.825

1.45
1.45
0.75

1.52 (0.31)
1.52 (0.31)
0.75 0.75

4,797 4,658
30,941 31,633

1,154 2,024
3,909 3,082
5,063 5,106
9,720 10,762

4,331
30,570

1,204
4,069
5,273

10,777

4,295
28,767

199
4,961
5,160

10,289

4,055
27,160

370
4,719
5,089
8,520

(1) For the year ended December 31, 2006 shareowners' equity includes a reduction of $1,512
related to the adoption of SFAS No. 158, "Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension
and Other Postretirement Plans".

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations ("MD&A") is intended to help the reader understand the results of operations and financial
condition of Honeywell International Inc. ("Honeywell") for the three years ended December 31, 2006.
All references to Notes relate to Notes to the Financial Statements in "Item 8-Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data".

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Sales
2006 2005

(Dollars in millions)
2004

Net sales ............................................. $31,367 $27,652 $25,593
% change compared with prior year .................... 13% 8%

The change in net sales in 2006 and 2005 is attributable to the following:
2006

Versus
2005

2005
Versus
2004

A cq u isitio ns ..........................................................
D ive stitu re s ..........................................................
P ric e . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .
V o lu m e ..............................................................
Foreign Exchange ....................................................

7% 5%
(1) (2)
1 1
6 4

13% 8%

A discussion of net sales by reportable segment can be found in the Review of Business
Segments section of this MD&A.

20



Cost of Products and Services Sold
2006 2005 2004

(Dollars in millions)

Cost of products and services sold .................... $24,096 $21,524 $20,752
Gross margin % ...................................... 23.2% 22.2% 18.9%

Gross margin increased by 1 percentage point in 2006 compared with 2005 due primarily to higher
margins in our Specialty Materials segment following our acquisition of full ownership of UOP (1.3
percentage points), and lower pension and other postretirement benefits expense of 0.5 percentage
points, partially offset by higher repositioning costs of 0.2 percentage points. Gross margin increased
by 3.3 percentage points in 2005 compared with 2004 primarily due to an increase of 1.2 percentage
points in gross margin for our reportable segments, lower repositioning and other charges of 0.8
percentage points and lower pension and other postretirement benefits expense of 0.5 percentage
points. For further discussion of segment results, see "Review of Business Segments".

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
2006 2005 2004

(Dollars in millions)

Selling, general and administrative expenses ............... $4,210 $3,707 $3,316
Percent of sales .......................................... 13.4% 13.4% 13.0%

Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of sales was flat in 2006 compared
with 2005 due primarily to a reduction in expenses in our Aerospace segment, which reflects the
benefit of prior restructuring actions, offsetting higher expenses in Automation and Control Solutions
(ACS) and Specialty Materials as a result of acquisitions. A reduction of repositioning and pension
costs of 0.2 percentage points offset the 0.2 percentage point increase for expenses of $77 million
relating to stock-based compensation expense following the adoption of FAS No. 123R (see Note 20,
Stock-Based Compensation Plans). Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of
sales increased by 0.4 percentage. points, in 2005 compared with 2004 due primarily to the impact of
the acquisition of NOVAR and higher spending for information technology systems (primarily ERP
system in Aerospace) of 0.3 percentage points and higher repositioning and other charges of 0.1
percentage points.

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits
2006 2005 2004

(Dollars in millions)

Pension expense ............................................... $313 $404 $412
Other postretirement benefits expense ............................ 146 157 216

Total pension and other postretirement benefits expense
(included in costs of products and services sold and selling,
general and administrative expenses) ......................... $459 $561 $628

Pension expense decreased by 23 percent in 2006 compared to 2005 due principally to a
decrease in the amortization of net losses, principally in our U.S. plans'. Pension expense decreased by
2 percent in 2005 compared with 2004 due principally to a decrease in the amortization of net losses
partially offset by pension expense for NOVAR, which was acquired in 2005.

Other postretirement benefits expense decreased by.7 percent in 2006 compared to 2005, due
primarily to favorable demographic experience in the plan, and by 27 percent in 2005 compared with
2004, due primarily to the effect of implementing the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and
Modernization Act of 2003. See Note 22 to the financial statements for further discussion.
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Other (Income)/Expense
2006 2005 2004

(Dollars in millions)

Gain on sale of non-strategic businesses and assets ......... $ (30) $ (36) $(255)
Equity (income)/loss of affiliated companies ................... (13) (134) (82)
Interest incom e ................................... ........... (94)- (84) (100)
Foreign exchange ............................................ 18 21 28
O ther (net) .................................................. 8 2 (20)

Total ........................................................ $(111) $(231) $(429)

Other income decreased by $120 million, or 52 percent in 2006 compared to 2005 primarily due to
a $121 million reduction in equity income of affiliated companies primarily related to UOP, following our
acquisition of full ownership of UOP in November 2005. In 2005, other income decreased by $198
million compared to 2004, or 46 percent compared to 2004 primarily as a result of pretax gains on the
sales of our Security Monitoring and VCSEL Optical Products businesses of $215 and $36 million,
respectively, and recognition of a gain of $27 million related to the favorable settlement of a patent
infringement lawsuit.

Interest and Other Financial Charges
2006 2005 2004

(Dollars in millions)

Interest and other financial charges ............................. $374 $356 $331
% change compared with prior year ............................ 5% 8%

Interest and other financial charges increased by 5 percent in 2006 compared with 2005 due to
higher debt balances and higher borrowing costs, and increased by 8 percent in 2005 compared with
2004 due to both higher average short-term debt outstanding and higher interest rates in 2005.

Tax Expense
2006 2005 2004

(Dollars in millions)

Tax expense ................................................... $720 $732 $377
Effective tax rate ............................................... 25.7% 31.9% 23.2%

The effective tax rate decreased by 6.2 percentage points in 2006 compared with 2005, due
principally to the absence of the 2005 one-time tax charge of $155 million for the repatriation of foreign
earnings under the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004, offset, in part, by $64 million of tax benefits
associated with the 2005 sale of our Industrial. Wax business which had ahigher tax basis than book
basis. In addition, in 2006, there were benefits recognized from the favorable resolution of certain tax
audits offset by a tax charge for an up-front licensing of certain in-process research and development.
The effective tax rate was lower than the statutory rate of 35 percent due in part to tax benefits derived
from export sales, lower foreign taxes, and benefits from tax planning strategies. The effective tax rate
increased by 8.7 percentage points in 2005 compared with 2004 due principally to the tax impact of the
repatriation of approximately $2.7 billion of foreign earnings, of which $2.2 billion was subject to a
significantly reduced tax under the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004, offset in part by the higher
effective tax benefit rate for repositioning and other charges that were incurred in 2004. See Note 6 to
the financial statements for further information on taxes including a detailed effective tax rate
reconciliation.

In 2007, the effective tax rate could change based upon the Company's operating results and the
outcome of tax positions taken regarding previously filed tax returns currently under audit by various
Federal, State and foreign tax authorities, several of which may be finalized in the foreseeable future.
The Company believes that it has adequate reserves for these matters, the outcome of which could
materially impact the results of operations and operating cash flows in the period that they are
resolved.
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Income From Continuing Operations
2006 2005 2004

(Dollars in millions,
except per share amounts)

$2,078 $1,564 $1,246
$ 2.51 $ 1.84 $ 1.45

Income from continuing operations ........................
Earnings per share of common stock-assuming dilution ...

The increase of $0.67 in earnings (diluted) per share for continuing operations in 2006 compared
with 2005 primarily relates to an increase in segment profit in Aerospace and Automation and Control
Solutions and income generated from our acquisition of full ownership of UOP in Specialty Materials,
reduced repositioning and pension costs and a reduction in the number of shares outstanding due to
the previously announced stock repurchase program, offset by the impact of adopting FAS No. 123R
("Share-Based Payment") for stock-based compensation expense of $77 million in 2006. In addition, in
2005 there was a one-time tax charge of $155 million for the repatriation of foreign earnings under the
American Jobs Creation Act of 2004, which decreased earnings and earnings per share in 2005. The
increase of $0.39 earnings (diluted) per share for continuing operations in 2005 compared with 2004
relates primarily to an increase in segment profit for our reportable segments. For further discussion of
segment results, see "Review of Business Segments".

Income From Discontinued Operations

Income from discontinued operations of $5 million, or $0.01 earnings per share (diluted) in 2006
relates to the operating results of the Indalex business which was sold in February 2006 to Sun Capital
Partners, Inc. Income from discontinued operations of $95 million, or $0.11 earnings per share, in 2005
relates to the operating results of the Indalex and Security Printing businesses, that were part of our
NOVAR acquisition that were subsequently divested. In December 2005, the Security Printing business
was sold to M&F Worldwide Corp. See Note 2 to the financial statements for further discussion of
these sales.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

This Business Overview provides a summary of Honeywell's four reportable operating segments
(Aerospace, Automation and Control Solutions, Specialty Materials and Transportation Systems),
including how they generate income, the relevant economic and other factors impacting their results, a
discussion of each segment's results for the three years ended December 31, 2006 and the areas of
focus for 2007 for the Company and each of its operating segments. Each of these segments is
comprised of various product and service classes that serve multiple end markets. See Note 23 to the
financial statements for further information on our reportable segments and our definition of segment
profit.

Areas of Focus for 2007

The areas of focus for 2007, which are generally applicable to each of our operating segments,
include:

" Driving profitable growth by building innovative products that address customer needs;
" Achieving sales growth, technological excellence and manufacturing capability through global

expansion, especially focused on emerging regions in China, India and the Middle East;
* Continuing to grow through disciplined acquisition and rigorous integration processes;
" Proactively managing raw material cost increases with formula price agreements, price

increases and hedging activities, where feasible;
" Driving free cash flow through increased net income and effective working capital management

enabling continued investment in our businesses, strategic acquisitions, returning value to
shareholders through share repurchases and increased dividend payments;

" Utilizing our enablers Honeywell Operating System (HOS), Functional Transformation and
Velocity Product Development (VPD)TM to standardize the way we work, increase quality and
reduce the costs of product manufacturing, reduce costs and enhance the quality of our
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administrative functions and improve business operations through investments in systems and
process improvements; and

Managing Corporate costs, including costs incurred for asbestos and environmental matters,
pension and other post-retirement expenses and our tax expense.

Review of Business Segments
2006 2005 2004

(Dollars in millions)

Net Sales
Aerospace ......................................... $11,124 $10,496 $ 9,740
Automation and Control Solutions ................... 11,020 9,416 8,031
Specialty Materials ................................. 4,631 3,234 3,497
Transportation Systems ............................. 4,592 4,505 4,323
C orporate ......................................... - 1 2

$31,367 $27,652 $25,593

Segment Profit
Aerospace ......................................... $ 1,892 $ 1,676 $ 1,422
Automation and Control Solutions ................... 1,223 1,065 894
Specialty Materials ................................. 568 257 184
Transportation Systems ............................. 574 557 575
Corporate ......................................... (177) (173) (158)

$ 4,080 $ 3,382 $ 2,917

A reconciliation of segment profit to income from continuing operations before taxes follows:
2006 2005 2004

(Dollars in millions)

Segment profit ......................................... $ 4,080 $ 3,382 $ 2,917
Other income (expense) ................................ 111 231 429
Interest and other financial charges ........... ......... (374) (356) (331)
Stock option expense(I) ................................ (77) - -
Pension and other postretirement benefits (expense)(1) .. (459) (561) (628)
Repositioning and other charges(I) ..................... (483) 400) (764)

Income from continuing operations before taxes ......... $ 2,798 $ 2,296 $ 1,623

(1) Amounts included in cost of products and services sold and selling, general and administrative
expenses.

Aerospace

Overview

Aerospace is a leading global supplier of aircraft engines, avionics, and related products and
services for aircraft manufacturers, airlines, aircraft operators, military services, and defense and space
contractors. Our Aerospace products and services include auxiliary power units, propulsion engines,
environmental control systems, engine controls, flight safety, communications, navigation, radar and
surveillance systems, aircraft lighting, management and technical services, advanced systems and
instruments, aircraft wheels and brakes and repair and overhaul services. Aerospace sells its products
to original equipment (OE) manufacturers in the air transport, regional, business and general aviation
aircraft segments, and provides spare parts and repair and maintenance services for the aftermarket
(principally to aircraft operators). The United States Government is also a major customer for our
defense and space products.
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Economic and Other Factors

Aerospace operating results are principally driven by:
" Global demand for air travel as reflected in new aircraft production, as well as the demand for

spare parts and maintenance and repair services for aircraft currently in use;
" Aircraft production by commercial air transport, regional jet, business and general aviation OE

manufacturers, as well as global flying hours and airline profitability;
" The level and mix of U.S. Government appropriations for defense and space programs and

military activity; and
* Pricing, volatility in pricing and availability of raw materials.

Results of Operations
2006 2005 2004

(Dollars in millions)

Net sales .............................................. $11,124 $10,496 $9,740
% change compared with prior year ..................... 6% 8%
Segment profit .................................... $ 1,892 $ 1,676 $1,422
% change compared with prior year ..................... 13% 18%

Aerospace sales increased by 6 percent and 8 percent in 2006 and 2005, respectively, due
primarily to strong growth in new aircraft deliveries and increased global flying hours. Aerospace sales
by major customer end-markets were as follows:

% of Aerospace % Change in
Sales Sales

2006 2005
Versus Versus

Customer End-Markets 2006 2005 2004 2005 2004

Commercial:
Air transport and regional original equipment ..... 16% 15% 15% 14% 9%
Air transport and regional aftermarket ............ 22 23 24 4 3
Business and general aviation original equipment 12 11 8 16 42
Business and general aviation aftermarket ....... 10 10 10 1 10

Defense and Space ................................ 40 41 43 3 2

Total ........................................... 100% 100% 100% 6% 8%

Details regarding the net increase in sales by customer end-markets for both 2006 and 2005 are
as follows:

• Air transport and regional original equipment (OE) sales increased by 14 percent in 2006 and
9 percent in 2005 primarily driven by increased deliveries to air transport customers primarily
due to higher aircraft production rates.

" Air transport and regional aftermarket sales increased by 4 percent in 2006 as a result of
increased sales of spare parts and maintenance activity relating to a more than 5 percent
increase in global flying hours which more than offset the anticipated decline in the sales of
upgrades and retrofits of avionics equipment to meet certain mandated regulatory standards. In
2005, sales increased by 3 percent due primarily to a 7 percent increase in flying hours which
was partially offset by a decrease in the level of FAA-mandated safety avionics equipment
upgrades and retrofits and the impact of the phase-out of regional aircraft with turboprop
engines.

* Business and general aviation OE sales increased by 16 percent in 2006 and by 42 percent in
2005 due primarily to the continued demand in the business jet end market as evidenced by an
increase in new business jet deliveries and high demand in the fractional ownership market.
These sales primarily relate to sales of Primus Epic integrated avionics systems, and the TFE
731 and HTF 7000 engines, which generated sales commencing in 2005.

" Business and general aviation aftermarket sales increased by 1 percent in 2006, due to
increased sales of spare parts and increased maintenance activity resulting in part from higher
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engine utilization, partially offset by lower sales of mandated upgrades and retrofits of avionics
equipment required in the prior year to meet certain mandated regulatory standards. In 2005,
sales increased by 10 percent due to these mandates, and as a result of increased engine
utilization for corporate aircraft.

Defense and space sales increased by 3 percent in 2006 primarily due to higher sales of
surface systems and sales of spare parts for helicopters that offset lower volume of space sales
due to delays in project funding. In 2005, defense and space sales increased by 2 percent,
primarily driven by platform upgrades for war-related activities, growth in precision munitions and
increased spending on restricted space programs. These factors lower replenishment demand
for spare parts from the US military in both 2005 and 2006.

Aerospace segment profit increased by 13 percent in 2006 compared with 2005 due primarily to
sales volume growth, increased prices and productivity savings (including benefits from prior
restructuring actions) that were partially offset by inflation and the impact of stronger OE sales that
typically have lower margins than aftermarket sales. Segment profit increased by 18 percent in 2005
compared to 2004 due primarily to volume growth and the effect of productivity actions, partially offset
by an increase in spending for information technology systems.

2007 Areas of Focus

Aerospace's primary areas of focus for 2007 include:

" Continuing to grow the sales and profitability of the commercial aerospace aftermarket in the
highly competitive and cost focused airline industry;

" Securing Honeywell product content on new aircraft platforms;

" Continuing to design equipment that enhances the safety, performance and durability of
aerospace and defense equipment, while reducing weight and operating costs; and

* Developing differentiated, affordable products and services for the defense and space
end-market.

Automation and Control Solutions (ACS)

Overview

ACS provides innovative solutions that make homes, buildings, industrial sites, airport facilities and
infrastructure more efficient, safe and comfortable. Our ACS products and services include controls for
heating, cooling, indoor air quality, ventilation, humidification and home automation; advanced software
applications for home/building control and optimization; sensors, switches, control systems and
instruments for measuring pressure, air flow, temperature and electrical current; security, fire and gas
detection; access control; video surveillance; remote patient monitoring systems; installation,
maintenance and upgrades of systems that keep buildings safe, comfortable and productive; and
automation and control solutions for industrial plants, including advanced software and automation
systems that integrate, control and monitor complex processes in many types of industrial settings.

Economic and Other Factors

ACS's operating results are principally driven by:

" The growth of global commercial construction (including retrofits and upgrades);

" Demand for residential retrofits and upgrades;

" Industrial production;

* U.S. and European economic conditions;
" The strength of capital spending on process and building automation; and

" Changes to fire, security, health care and safety concerns and regulations.
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Results of Operations

2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in millions)

Net sales ........................................ ...... $11,020 $9,416 $8,031
% change compared with prior year ................................. 17% 17%
Segment profit ........................................... $ 1,223 $1 ;065 $ 894
% change compared with prior year ................................. 15% 19%

ACS sales increased by 17 percent in 2006 compared with 2005 due to organic sales growth of 10
percent and 7 percent growth from acquisitions, net of divestitures. All of ACS businesses contributed
to organic growth in the year. In 2005 sales increased by 17 percent compared to 2004, which was
primarily due to growth from acquisitions of 13 percent and organic growth of 4 percent.:

Organic sales growth in ACS products businesses increased by. 8 percent in 2006 compared to
2005, primarily due to strong customer demand for new products in 'our security and life safety
products and increased sales to customers in emerging markets for environmental, combustion,
sensing and control products. In 2005, organic sales for products increased by 5 percent compared to
2004, primarily due to strong sales of fire solutions and security products, and the favorable effects of
foreign exchange.

Organic sales in ACS solutions businesses increased by 11 percent in 2006 compared to 2005
driven by continued strong orders growth, strong conversion to sales from our order backlog and
increased sales in emerging markets and strong revenue from energy projects. In 2005, organic sales
growth for the solutions businesses was 3 percent compared to 2004 due primarily to favorable foreign
exchange and increased capital spending.

Sales from acquisitions, net of divestitures, increased by 7 percent in 2006 compared with 2005,
largely representing revenues in ACS products businesses relating to NOVAR (primarily environmental,
combustiOn, building controls and life safety products) for the first quarter of 2006, Zellweger (gas
detection) for the first two quarters of 2006 and revenues from our Gardiner Groupe (security
distribution) and First Technology (gas detection) acquisitions in the last three quarters of 2006. In
2005, sales from acquisitions net of divestitures increased by 13 percent compared to 2004, due
primarily to the acquisition of NOVAR, partially offset by the loss of sales due to the divestiture of our
Security Monitoring business.

ACS segment profit increased by 15 percent in 2006 compared with 2005 due principally to
increased sales volume and productivity savings (including net integration savings from our
acquisitions) that more than offset continued inflation. Segment profit was also negatively impacted in
2006 by a contract loss experienced on a Building Solutions project, and by ERP implementation costs.
ACS segment profit in 2005 increased by 19 percent compared with 2004 as the favorable effects of
productivity actions, acquisitions (NOVAR) and higher sales volume 'more than offset the unfavorable
effects of lower prices and investments in sales and marketing initiatives.

2007 Areas of Focus

ACS's primary areas of focus for 2007 include:
* Extending technology leadership: lowest total installed cost and integrated product solutions;

* Defending and extending our installed base through customer productivity and globalization;
* Sustaining strong brand recognition through our brand and channel management; and.
* Centralization and standardization of global software development capabilities.

Specialty Materials

Overview

Specialty Materials develops and manufactures high-purity, high-quality and high-performance
chemicals and materials for applications in the automotive, healthcare, agricultural, packaging, carpet
fibers, refrigeration, appliance, housing, semiconductor, wax and adhesives segments. Specialty
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Materials also provides process technology, products and services for the petroleum refining,
petrochemical, and other industries. Specialty Materials' product portfolio includes fluorocarbons,
caprolactam, ammonium sulfate for fertilizer, specialty films, advanced fibers, customized research
chemicals and intermediates, electronic materials and chemicals, catalysts, and adsorbents.

Economic and Other Factors

Specialty Materials operating results are principally driven by:
" The degree of volatility in natural gas, benzene (the key component in phenol) and fluorspar

prices;
" The impact of environmental and energy efficiency regulations;
" The extent of change in order rates from global semiconductor customers;
" The global demand for non-ozone depleting Hydro fluorocarbons (HFC's);
* The extent of the slowdown of the US residential housing industry; and
" The level of investment in refining and petrochemical capacity, utilization and/or expansion.

Results of Operations

2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in millions)

Net sales ................................................... $4,631 $3,234 $3,497
% change compared with prior year ......................... 43% (8)%
Segm ent profit .............................................. $ 568 $ 257 $ 184
% change compared with prior year ......................... 121% 40%

Specialty Materials sales increased by 43 percent in 2006 compared to 2005 due to organic sales
growth of 7 percent and 36 percent growth due to our UOP acquisition, net of divestitures. Sales
decreased by 8 percent in 2005 compared with 2004, due to the loss of sales from divested businesses
of 16 percent, which was offset by organic growth of 4 percent and growth from acquisitions (UOP) of
4 percent.

Organic growth was 7 percent in 2006 primarily due to higher volume and prices. Organic sales in
our Fluorine Products business increased by 9 percent due to continued strong demand for non-ozone
depleting HFC products, and organic growth in our Resins and Chemicals business was 4 percent,
primarily due to price increases to recover increased raw material costs. Both of these businesses
experienced lower sales growth in the fourth quarter of 2006 due to the slowdown in the US residential
housing industry. Our Resins and Chemicals business was also negatively impacted by a partial facility
outage in the second half of 2006. Specialty Products organic sales increased by 10 percent due to
higher sales to our customers in the semiconductor industry and increased sales of our specialty
additives and our advanced fiber body armor. In 2005, organic sales increased by 4 percent, largely as
a result of higher prices of 7 percent primarily in our Resins and Chemicals and-Fluorine businesses,
offsetting lower volumes in Specialty Products businesses.

Sales from acquisitions, net of divestitures grew by 36 percent in 2006 compared to 2005. This
was due to a 44 percent growth in sales from UOP, which was consolidated into the Specialty Materials
segment following our acquisition of the remaining 50 percent interest in UOP in November 2005. Prior
to that date, UOP results were included in other income. UOP sales have grown due to continued
strength in the petrochemical and refining industries. This growth was offset by the loss of sales of 8
percent principally from the divestiture of our Industrial Wax and North American Nylon Fiber
businesses.

Specialty Materials segment profit increased by 121 percent in 2006 compared with 2005 due
principally to the impact of the UOP acquisition, net of divestitures, and increased organic growth and
productivity savings (net of the lost margin from the partial facility outage). Price increases (including
benefits from formula based pricing contracts) offset the impact of continued inflation in raw material
costs. Specialty Materials segment profit in 2005 increased by 40 percent compared with 2004 due
principally to price increases and the favorable effect of productivity actions partially offset by higher
raw material costs and lower sales volumes.
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2007 Areas of Focus

Specialty Materials primary areas of focus for 2007 include:
* Increasing resources and market penetration in Asia;
* Developing new products that address energy efficiency, global warming and security

regulations;
a Increasing product differentiation in order to continue to expand margins; and
@ Continued contract wins in the petrochemical and refining industries.

Transportation Systems

Overview

Transportation Systems provides automotive products that improve the performance, efficiency,
and appeardnce of cars, trucks, and-other vehicles through state-of-the-art technologies, world class
brands and global solutions to customers needs. Transportation Systems' products include Garrett(R)
turbochargers and charge-air and thermal systems; car care products including anti-freeze (Pres-
tone(R)), filters (Fram(R)), spark plugs (Autolite(R)), and cleaners, waxes and additives (Holts(R)); and
brake hard parts and other friction materials (Bendix(R) and Jurid(R)). Transportation Systems sells its
products to OE automotive and truck manufacturers (e.g., BMW, Caterpillar, Daimler-Chrysler, Ford,
and Volkswagen), wholesalers and distributors and through the retail aftermarket.

Economic and Other Factors

Transportation Systems operating results are principally driven by:
" Global demand for automobile and truck production;
" Diesel penetration rates for new platforms;
" Global consumer preferences for -diesel passenger cars;
" Demand for North American truck production in conjunction with new lower emission

regulations;
* The degree of volatility in raw material prices including nickel and steel; and
" Changes in consumer spending for automotive aftermarket and car care products.

Results of Operations
2006 2005 2004

(Dollars in millions)

Net sales ............. ............ : .................. $4,592 $4,505 $4,323
% change compared with prior year ......................... 2% 4%
Segment profit ................................. $ 574 $ 557 $ 575
% change compared with prior year ......................... 3% (3)%

Transportation Systems sales increased 2 percent in 2006 compared with 2005, primarily due to
increased sales in our Turbo Technologies business, offset by lower sales in our Consumer Products
Group. In 2005, sales increased by 4 percent compared with 2004 due primarily to favorable sales mix
of 2 percent, the favorable effect of foreign exchange of 1 percent and the impact of higher prices of 1
percent.

Sales for our Turbo Technologies business were 6 percent higher in 2006 compared to 2005
primarily due to new product introductions in Europe and Asia, a slight increase in diesel penetration in
Europe and relatively flat sales in the U.S. Sales were 5 percent higher in 2005 compared to 2004 due
to higher volumes in our North American truck segment, offset by lower volumes in Europe due to a
shift in consumer demand among automotive platforms partially offset by a slight increase in diesel
penetration.

Sales for our Consumer Products Group business decreased by 4 percent in 2006 as a result of
reduced consumer spending in North America on automotive aftermarket products and our exit of the
North America Friction Materials OE business. Sales increased by 8 percent in 2005 compared to 2004
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largely due to higher prices, offset by the impact of our exit in late 2005 from the North American
Friction Materials OE business.

Transportation Systems segment profit increased by 3 percent in 2006 compared with 2005 due
primarily to increased Turbo Technologies volume and productivity savings including the benefits of
prior year restructuring actions, which offset higher material and labor inflation and increased warranty
expense. Transportation Systems segment profit in 2005 decreased by 3 percent compared with 2004
due primarily to the impact of higher raw material costs (mainly steel and nickel) and operating costs
associated with the exit from North American Friction Materials OE business in late 2005; partially
offset by the effects of higher prices and productivity actions.

2007 Areas of Focus

Transportation Systems primary areas of focus in 2007 include:
" Sustaining superior turbocharger technology;
" Increasing global market penetration and share of diesel and gasoline turbocharger OEM

demand; and
" Expanding and strengthening established strong product brands in our Consumer Products

Group business, including expansion into new geographic and demographic segments.

Repositioning and Other Charges

A summary of repositioning and other charges follows:
Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(Dollars in millions)

Severance .......................................................... $102 $248 $ 85
Asset im pairm ents .................................................. 15 5 21
E xit costs .......................................................... 7 14 10
Reserve adjustm ents ................................................ (22) (25) (28)

Total net repositioning charge ................................... 102 242 88
Asbestos related litigation charges, net of insurance .................. 126 10 76
Probable and reasonably estimable environmental liabilities ........... 210 186 536
Business impairment charges ........................................ 12 23 42
Arbitration award related to phenol supply agreement ................. (18) (67) -
Other..... .... ........ ................................................. 51 1-8 33

Total net repositioning and other charges ........................ $483 $412 $775

The following table summarizes the pretax distribution of total net repositioning and other charges
by income statement classification.

Years Ended December 31,
2006, 2005 2004

(Dollars in millions)

Cost of products and services sold .................................. $472 '$357 $739
Selling, general and administrative expenses ......................... 11 43 25
Other (income) expense .................................... -- 12 11

$483 $412 $775

The following tables provide details of the pretax impact of total net repositioning and other
charges by reportable segment.

Years Ended Decem6er 31,

2006' , 2005 2004
(Dollars in millions)

Aerospace
Net repositioning charge ...................... ........... $ 10 $.96 $ 5
O ther .................................................. - - (10)

$ 10 $ 96 $(5)
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Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

(Dollars in millions)

Automation and Control Solutions
Net repositioning charge ................................
O th e r ..... ......... ...................................

Specialty Materials
Net repositioning charge ................................
Business impairment charges ...........................
Arbitration award related to phenol supply agreement ....
O th e r ....... ........ ...................................

Transportation Systems
Net repositioning charge ................................
Asbestos related litigation charges, net of insurance .....
O th e r ..................................................

Corporate
Net repositioning charge ................................
Asbestos related litigation charges, net of insurance .....
Probable and reasonably estimable environmental

lia b ilitie s .............................................
O th e r ..................................................

$ 39

$ 3g

Yea

$ 84 $ 15
- 1 13

$ 85 $ 28

irs Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

(Dollars in millions)

$ 11 $ 14 $ 36
12 23 42

(18) (67) -
- (4) 12

$ 5 $(34) $ 90

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

(Dollars in millions)

$ 32 $ 49 $ 26
261 31 120

- 2 1
$293 $ 82 $147

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

(Dollars in millions)

$ 10
(135)

210
51

$136

$ (1) $ 6
(21) (44)

186
19

$183

536
17

$515

In 2006, we recognized repositioning charges totaling $124 million primarily for severance costs
related to workforce reductions of 2,253 manufacturing and administrative positions across all of our
reportable segments. Also, $22 million of previously established accruals, primarily for severance at our
Aerospace, Transportation Systems and Specialty Materials reportable segments, were returned to
income in 2006 due mainly to changes in the scope of previously announced severance programs and
due to fewer employee separations than originally planned associated with prior Aerospace severance
actions.

In 2005, we recognized repositioning charges totaling $267 million primarily for severance costs
related to workforce reductions of 5,269 maufacturing and administrative positions across all of our
reportable segments including the implementation of a new organizational structure in our Aerospace
reportable segment (substantially implemented in the third quarter of 2005) which reorganized our
Aerospace businesses to better align with customer segments. Also, $25 million of previously
established accruals, primarily for severance at our Corporate, Specialty Materials and Automation and
Control Solutions reportable segments were returned to income in 2005. The reversal of severance
liabilities related to changes in the scope of previously announced severance programs, excise taxes
related to an executive severance amount previously paid which were determined to no longer be
payable, and severance amounts previously paid to an outside service provider as part of an
outsourcing arrangement which were refunded to Honeywell.

In 2004, we recognized repositioning charges totaling $116 million primarily for severance costs
related to workforce reductions of 2,272 manufacturing and administrative positions across all of our
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reportable segments. Also, $28 million of previously established accruals, primarily for severance, were
returned to income in 2004, due to fewer employee separations than originally planned associated with
certain prior repositioning actions, resulting in reduced severance liabilities principally in our
Automation and Control Solutions reportable segment.

Our 2006 repositioning actions are expected to generate incremental pretax savings of
approximately $100 million in 2007 compared with 2006 principally from planned workforce reductions.
Cash expenditures for severance and other exit costs necessary to execute our repositioning actions
were $142, $171 and $164 million in 2006,' 2005 and 2004, respectively. Such expenditures for
severance and other exit costs have been. funded principally through operating cash flows. Cash
expenditures for severance and other exit costs necessary to execute the remaining actions will
approximate $125 million in 2007 and will be funded through operating cash flows.

In 2006, we recognized a charge of $210 million for environmental liabilities deemed probable and
reasonably estimable during the year. We -recognized asbestos related litigation charges, net of
insurance, of $126 million which are discussed in more detail in Note 21 to the financial statements.
We recognized other charges of $51 million related to our Corporate segment primarily for the
settlement of a property damage claim litigation matter in Brunswick, GA and our entrance into a plea
agreement related to an environmental matter at our Baton Rouge, LA. facility (see Note 21 to the
financial statements). We recognized impairment charges of $12 million related to the write-down of
property, plant and equipment held for sale in Specialty Materials. We also recognized a credit of
$18 million in connection with an arbitrationaward for overcharges by a supplier of phenol to Specialty
Materials for 2005 transactions.

In 2005, we recognized a charge of $186 million for environmental liabilities deemed probable and
reasonably estimable during the year. We recognized asbestos 'related litigation charges, net of
insurance, of $10 million which are discussed in more detail in Note 21 to the financial statements. We
recognized a credit of $67 million in connection with an arbitration award for overcharges by a supplier
of phenol to our Specialty Materials business from June 2003 through the end of 2004. We recognized
impairment charges of $23 million related to the write-down of property, plant and equipment held and
used in our Specialty Materials reportable segment. We also recognized other charges of $18 million
principally related to the modification of a lease agreement for the Corporate headquarters facility
($10 million) and for various legal settlements ($7 million).

In 2004, we recognized a charge of $536 million for probable and reasonably estimable
environmental liabilities primarily related to the estimated costs of the court-ordered excavation and
transport for offsite disposal of approximately one million tons of chromium residue present at a
predecessor Honeywell site located in Jersey City, New Jersey, and environmental conditions in and
around Onondaga Lake in Syracuse, New York. Both of these environmental matters are discussed in
further detail in Note 21 to the financial statements. We recognized asbestos related litigation charges,
net of insurance, of $76 million which are discussed in Note 21. We recognized an impairment charge
of $42 million in the second quarter of .2004 related principally to the write-down of property, plant and
equipment of our Performance Fibers business in our Specialty Materials reportable segment. This
business was sold in December 2004. We also recognized other charges of $33 million consisting of
$29 million for various legal settlements including property damage claims in our Automation and
Control Solutions reportable segment, $14 million for the write-off of receivables, inventories and other
assets net of a reversal of a reserve of $10 million established in the prior year for a contract
settlement.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company continues to manage its businesses to maximize operating cash flows as the
primary source of liquidity. We supplement operating cash with short-term debt from the commercial
paper market and with long-term borrowings. We continue to balance our cash and financing uses
through investment in our existing core businesses, acquisition activity, share repurchases and
dividends.

Cash Flow Summary

Our cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities, as reflected in the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31. 2006, 2005 and 2004 are summarized as
follows:

2006 2005 2004

Cash provided by (used for):
Operating activities .................................... $ 3,211 $ 2,442 $ 2,253
Investing activities .................................... (614) (2,010) (584)
Financing activities..... .............................. (2,649) (2,716) (1,223)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash ............... 42 (68) 190

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents ...... $ (10) $(2,352) $ 636

Cash provided by operating activities increased by $769 million during 2006 compared with 2005
primarily due to increased earnings, lower cash payments for asbestos of $331 million, receipt of $100
million from the sale of an insurance receivable, an increase in customer advances and deferred
income (net of acquisitions) of $115 million and $93 million receipt of an arbitration award relating to
raw material pricing in Specialty Materials, partially offset by increased working capital usage
(accounts and other receivables (net of tax receivables), inventory and accounts payable) of $263
million (including proceeds of $58 million from the sale of a long-term receivable), higher cash tax
payments (net of tax receipts) of $236 million and higher pension and postretirement payments of $154
million. Cash provided by operating activities increased by $189 million during 2005 compared to 2004
primarily due to increased earnings, working capital improvements, net of tax receivables, of $258
million, offset by higher cash payments for asbestos of $232 million and higher cash tax payments (net
of tax receipts) of $57 million.

Cash used for investing activities decreased by $1,396 million during 2006 compared with 2005
due primarily to lower spending for acquisitions, partially offset by lower proceeds of $285 million from
maturities of investment securities. In 2006, cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired was $633
million primarily for First Technologies and Gardiner Groupe, compared to $2,679 million in 2005,
primarily for our acquisitions of NOVAR and UOP. Sale proceeds from divestitures was $665 million in
the 2006 primarily due to the sale of Indalex in February for $425 million, First Technology Safety &
Analysis business (FTSA) for $93 million in May 2006 and the sale of First Technology Automotive
Business in December 2006 for $90 million. Cash used for.investing activities increased by $1,426
million during 2005 compared with 2004 due primarily to the acquisition of NOVAR and UOP.

Cash used for financing activities decreased by $67 million during 2006 compared 2005 primarily
due to a $356 million reduction for the payment of debt assumed with acquisitions, an increase in net
proceeds from debt of $258 million, and increased proceeds from issuance of common stock primarily
related to stock option exercises of $229 million, offset by increases in repurchases of common stock of
$763 million and increased dividend payments. Cash used for financing activities increased by $1,493
million during 2005 compared 2004, primarily due payment of debt assumed with acquisition of $702
million, increased net repayments of debt of $418 million and an increase in repurchases of common
stock of $409 million.
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Liquidity

Each of our businesses is focused on implementing strategies to improve working capital turnover
in 2007 to increase operating cash flows. Considering the current economic environment in which each
of our businesses operate and our business plans and strategies, including our focus on growth, cost
reduction and productivity initiatives, we believe that our cash balances and operating cash flows will
remain our principal source of liquidity. In addition to our available cash and operating cash flows,
additional sources of liquidity include committed credit lines, access to the public debt and equity
markets, as well as our ability to sell trade accounts receivables.

A source of liquidity is our ability to issue short-term debt in the commercial paper market.
Commercial paper notes are sold at a discount and have a maturity of not more than 270 days from
date of issuance. Borrowings under the commercial paper program are available for general corporate
purposes as well as for financing potential acquisitions. There was $669 million of commercial paper
outstanding at December 31, 2006.

Our ability to access the commercial paper market, and the related cost of these borrowings, is
affected by the strength of our credit ratings and our $2.5 billion of committed bank revolving credit
facilities (Revolving Credit Facilities). Our credit ratings are periodically reviewed by the major
independent debt-rating agencies. In 2006, Standard and Poor's, Fitch's and Moody's Rating Services
affirmed their corporate ratings on our long-term debt of A and A+ and A2 respectively, and short-term
debt of A-i, F1 and P-1 respectively, and maintained Honeywell's ratings outlook as "stable".

On April 27, 2006 Honeywell entered into a $2.3 billion Five-Year Credit Agreement ("Credit
Agreement") with a syndicate of banks. Commitments under the Credit Agreement can be increased
pursuant to the terms of the Credit Agreement to an aggregated amount not to exceed $3 billion. This
credit facility contains a $500 million sub-limit for the issuance of letters of credit. The $2.3 billion credit
agreement is maintained for general corporate purposes, including support for the issuance of
commercial paper. We had no borrowings and have issued $145 million of letters of credit under the
credit facility at December 31, 2006. The Credit Agreement replaces the previous $1 billion five year
credit agreement dated as of October 22, 2004, and $1.3 billion five year credit agreement dated as of
November 26, 2003 (the "Prior Agreements"). The Credit Agreement does not restrict Honeywell's
ability to pay dividends, nor does it contain financial covenants.

In September 2006, the Company renewed its 364-day Canadian Dollar (CAD) credit facility for
220 million CAD. This facility was established for general corporate purposes, including support for the
issuance of commercial paper in Canada. There are no borrowings outstanding under this credit facility
at December 31, 2006.

In March 2006, the Company issued $300 million of floating rate (Libor + 6 bps) Senior Notes due
2009, $400 million 5.40% Senior Notes due 2016 and $550 million 5.70% Senior Notes due 2036
(collectively, the "Notes"). The Notes are senior unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of
Honeywell and rank equally with all of Honeywell's existing and future senior unsecured debt and
senior to all Honeywell's subordinated debt. The offering resulted in gross proceeds of $1,250 million,
offset by $11 million in discount and closing costs relating to the offering. Proceeds from the notes
were used to repay commercial paper and debt.

During the first quarter of 2006, the Company made a cash tender offer and repurchased $225
million of its $500 million 5.125% Notes due November 2006. The costs relating to the early
redemption of the Notes were immaterial.

In the fourth quarter of'2006, the Company repaid $360 million (Euro 275 million) of its 5.27%
Notes, primarily through issuance of commercial paper.

We also have a current shelf registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission which allows us to issue up to $3 billion in debt securities, common stock and preferred
stock that may be offered in one or more offerings on terms to be determined at the time of the
offering. Net proceeds of any offering would be used for general corporate purposes, including
repayment of existing indebtedness, capital expenditures and acquisitions.
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We also sell interests in designated pools of trade accounts receivables to third parties. The sold
receivables were over-collateralized by $171 million at December 31, 2006 and we retain a
subordinated interest in the pool of receivables representing that over-collateralization as well as an
undivided interest in the balance of the receivables pools. New receivables are sold under the
agreement as previously sold receivables are collected. The retained interests in the receivables are
reflected at the amounts expected to be collected by us, and such carrying value approximates the fair
value of our retained interests. The sold receivables were $500 million at both December 31, 2006 and
2005.

In addition to our normal operating cash requirements, our principal future cash requirements will
be to fund capital expenditures, debt repayments, dividends, employee benefit obligations, environmen-
tal remediation costs, asbestos claims, severance and exit costs related to repositioning actions, share
repurchases and any strategic acquisitions.

Specifically, we expect our primary cash requirements in 2007 to be as follows:
" Capital expenditures-we expect to spend approximately $800 million for capital expenditures in

2007 primarily for growth, replacement, production capacity expansion, cost reduction and
maintenance.

" Debt repayments-there are $423 million of scheduled long-term debt maturities in 2007. We
expect to refinance substantially all of these maturities in the debt capital markets during 2007.

" Share repurchases-We intend to continue to repurchase outstanding shares from time to time
in the open market using cash generated from operations. In February 2007, the Board of
Directors authorized the repurchase of shares of up to $3 billion of Honeywell common stock.
Honeywell intends to repurchase outstanding shares from time to time in the open market using
cash flow generated by operations. The amount and timing of repurchases may vary depending
on market conditions and the level of other investing activities.

" Dividends-we expect to pay approximately $800 million in dividends on our common stock in
2007, reflecting the 10 percent increase in the dividend rate announced by Honeywell's Board of
Directors in December 2006.

" Asbestos claims-we expect our cash spending for asbestos claims and our cash receipts for
related insurance recoveries to be approximately $557 and $157 million, respectively, in 2007.
See Asbestos Matters in Note 21 to the financial statements for further discussion.

" Pension contributions-assuming that actual pension plan returns are consistent with our
expected rate of return of 9 percent in 2007 and beyond and that interest rates remain constant,
we would not be required to make any contributions to our U.S. pension plans to satisfy
minimum statutory funding requirements for the foreseeable future. However, we expect to make
voluntary contributions of approximately $52 million to our U.S. pension plans in 2007 for
government contracting purposes. We also expect to make contributions to our non-U.S. plans
of approximately $155 million in 2007. See Note 22 to the financial statements for further
discussion of pension contributions.

* Repositioning actions-we expect that cash spending for severance and other exit costs
necessary to execute the remaining repositioning actions will approximate $125 million in 2007.

* Environmental remediation costs-we expect to spend approximately $250 million in 2007 for
remedial response and voluntary clean-up costs. See Environmental Matters in Note 21 to the
financial statements for additional information.

We continuously assess the relative strength of each business in our portfolio as to strategic fit,
market position, profit and cash flow contribution in order to upgrade our combined portfolio and
identify business units that will most benefit from increased investment. We identify acquisition
candidates that will further our strategic plan and strengthen our existing core businesses. We also
identify businesses that do not fit into our long-term strategic plan based on their market position,
relative profitability or growth potential. These businesses are considered for potential divestiture,
restructuring or other repositioning actions subject to regulatory constraints. In 2006, we realized $665
million in cash proceeds from sales of non-strategic businesses.

Based on past performance and current expectations, we believe that our operating cash flows will
be sufficient to meet our future cash needs. Our available cash, committed credit lines, access to the
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public debt and equity markets as well as our ability to sell trade accounts receivables, provide
additional sources of short-term and long-term liquidity to fund current operations, debt maturities, and
future investment opportunities. Based on our current financial position and expected economic
performance, we do not believe that our liquidity will be adversely impacted by an inability to access
our sources of financing.

Contractual Obligations and Probable Liability Payments

Following is a summary of our significant contractual obligations and probable liability payments at
December 31, 2006:

Payments by Period
2008- 2010-

Total 2007 2009 2011 Thereafter

(Dollars in millions)

Long-term debt, including capitalized
leases(I) ............................. $ 4,332 $ 423 $ 927 $1,656 $ 1,326

Minimum operating lease payments ..... 1,078 304 377 174 223
Purchase obligations(2) ................. 3,446 863 1,361 704 518
Estimated environmental liability

payments(3) .......................... 831 250 346 221 14
Asbestos related liability payments(4).... 1,819 557 926 298 38

11,506 2,397 3,937 3,053 2,119

Asbestos insurance recoveries(5) ........ (1,257) (157) (83) (98) (919)

$10,249 $2,240 $3,854 $2,955 $ 1,200

(1) Assumes all long-term debt is outstanding until scheduled maturity.

(2) Purchase obligations are entered into with various vendors in the normal course of business and
are consistent with our expected requirements.

(3) The amounts in the table do not reflect any significant environmental liability payments after 2011.
See Note 21 to the financial statements for additional information.

(4) These amounts are estimates of asbestos related cash payments for NARCO and Bendix. NARCO
estimated payments are based on the terms and conditions, including evidentiary requirements,
specified in the definitive agreements or agreements in principle and pursuant to Trust Distribution
Procedures. Bendix payments are based on our estimate of pending and future claims. Projecting
future events is subject to many uncertainties that could cause asbestos liabilities to be higher or
lower than those projected and recorded. See Asbestos Matters in Note 21 to the financial
statements for additional information.

(5) These amounts represent probable insurance recoveries through 2018. See Asbestos Matters in
Note 21 to the financial statements.

The table excludes our pension and other postretirement benefits (OPEB) obligations. We made
voluntary contributions of $68 and $40 million to our U.S. pension plans in 2006 and 2004,'respectively.
Future plan contributions are dependent upon actual plan asset returns and interest rates. Assuming
that actual plan asset returns are consistent with our expected plan return of 9 percent in 2007 and
beyond, and that interest rates remain constant, we would not be required to make any contributions to
our U.S. pension plans to satisfy minimum statutory funding requirements for the foreseeable future.
We expect to make voluntary contributions of approximately $52 million to our U.S. plans in 2007 for
government contracting purposes. We expect to make contributions to our non-U.S. plans of
approximately $155 million in 2007. Payments due under our OPEB plans are not required to be
funded in advance, but are paid as medical costs are incurred by covered retiree populations, and are
principally dependent upon the future cost of retiree medical benefits under our plans. We expect our
OPEB payments to approximate $189 million in 2007 net of the benefit of approximately $22 million
from the Medicare prescription subsidy. See Note 22 to the financial statements for further discussion
of our pension and OPEB plans.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Following is a summary of our off-balance sheet arrangements:

Guarantees-We have issued or are a party to the following direct and indirect guarantees at
December 31, 2006:

Maximum
Potential
Future

Payments

(Dollars in
millions)

Operating lease residual values ..................................... $38
O ther third parties' financing ........................................ 6
Unconsolidated affiliates' financing .. .............................. 9
C ustom er financing ................................................. 22

$75

We do not expect that these guarantees will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated
results of operations, financial position or liquidity.

In connection with the disposition of certain businesses and facilities we have indemnified the
purchasers for the expected cost of remediation of environmental contamination, if any, existing on the
date of disposition. Such expected costs are accrued when environmental assessments are made or
remedial efforts are probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated.

Retained Interests in Factored Pools of Trade Accounts Receivables-As a source of
liquidity, we sell interests in designated pools of trade accounts receivables to third parties. The sold
receivables ($500 million at December 31, 2006) are over-collateralized and we retain a subordinated
interest in the pool 'of receivables representing that over-collateralization as well as an undivided
interest in the balance of. the receivables pools. The over-collateralization provides credit support to the
purchasers of the receivable .interest by limiting their losses in the event that a portion of the
receivables sold' becomes. -ncollectible. At December 31, 2006, our retained subordinated and
undivided interests at risk were $171 and $579 million, respectively. Based on the underlying credit
quality of the receivables placed into the designated pools of receivables being sold, we do not expect
that any losses related to our retained interests at risk will have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated results of operations, financial position or liquidity.

Environmental Matters

We are subject to various federal, state, local and foreign government requirements relating to the
protection of *the environment. We believe that, as a general matter, our policies, practices and
procedures are properly designed to prevent unreasonable risk of environmental damage and personal
injury and that our handling, manufacture, use and disposal of hazardous or toxic substances are in
accord with environmental and safety laws and regulations. However, mainly because of past
operations-and'operations of predecessor companies, we, like other companies engaged in similar
businesses, haveincurred remedial response and voluntary cleanup costs for site contamination and
are a party to lawsuits and claims associated with environmental and safety matters, including past
production- of products containing toxic substances. Additional lawsuits, claims and costs involving
environmental matters are likely to continue to arise in the future.

With respect to environmental matters involving site contamination, we continually conduct studies,
individually or jointly with other responsible parties, to determine the feasibility of various remedial
techniques to address environmental matters. It is our policy (see Note 1 of Notes to Financial
Statements in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data") to record appropriate liabilities
for environmental matters when remedial efforts or damage claim payments are probable and the costs
can be reasonably estimated. Such liabilities are based on our best estimate of the undiscounted future
costs required to complete the remedial work. The recorded liabilities are adjusted periodically as
remediation efforts progress or as additional technical or legal information becomes available. Given
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the uncertainties regarding the status of laws, regulations, enforcement policies, the impact of other
potentially responsible parties, technology and information related to individual sites, we do not believe
it is possible to develop an estimate of the range of reasonably possible environmental loss in excess
of our accrual. We expect to fund expenditures for these matters from operating cash flow. The timing
of cash expenditures depends on a number of factors, including the timing of litigation and settlements
of remediation liability, personal injury and property damage claims, regulatory approval of cleanup
projects, execution timeframe of projects, remedial techniques to be utilized and agreements with other
parties.

Remedial response and voluntary cleanup payments were $264, $247 and $248 million in 2006,
2005, and 2004, respectively, and are currently estimated to be approximately $250 million in 2007. We
expect to fund such expenditures from operating cash flow.

Remedial response and voluntary cleanup costs charged against pretax earnings were $210,
$186 and $536 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the
recorded liability for environmental matters was $831 and $879 million, respectively. In addition, in
2006 and 2005 we incurred operating costs for ongoing businesses of approximately $101 and $87
million, respectively, relating to compliance with environmental regulations.

Although we do not currently possess sufficient information to reasonably estimate the amounts of
liabilities to be recorded upon future completion of studies, litigation or settlements, and neither the
timing nor the amount of the ultimate costs associated with environmental matters can be determined,
they could be material to our consolidated results of operations or operating cash flows in the periods
recognized or paid. However, considering our past experience and existing reserves, we do not expect
that environmental matters will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position.

See Note 21 to the financial statements for a discussion of our commitments and contingencies,
including those related to environmental matters and toxic tort litigation.

Financial Instruments

As a result of our global operating and financing activities, we are exposed to market risks from
changes in interest and foreign currency exchange rates and commodity prices, which may adversely
affect our operating results and financial position. We minimize our risks from interest and foreign
currency exchange rate and commodity price fluctuations through our normal operating and financing
activities and, when deemed appropriate, through the use of derivative financial instruments. We do not
use derivative financial instruments for trading or other speculative purposes and do not use leveraged
derivative financial instruments. A summary of our accounting policies for derivative financial
instruments is included in Note 1 to the financial statements.

We conduct our business on a multinational basis in a wide variety of foreign currencies. Our
exposure to market risk from changes in foreign currency exchange rates arises from international
financing activities between subsidiaries, foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities
and anticipated transactions arising from international trade. Our objective is to preserve the economic
value of non-functional currency cash flows. We attempt to have all transaction exposures hedged with
natural offsets to the fullest extent possible and, once these opportunities have been exhausted,
through foreign currency forward and option agreements with third parties. Our principal currency
exposures relate to the U.S. dollar, Euro, British pound, the Canadian dollar, the Hong Kong dollar, the
Chinese renminbi and the Singapore dollar.

Our exposure to market risk from changes in interest rates relates primarily to our debt and
pension obligations. As described in Notes 14 and 16 to the financial statements, we issue both fixed
and variable rate debt and use interest rate swaps to manage our exposure to interest rate movements
and reduce overall borrowing costs.

Financial instruments, including derivatives, expose us to counterparty credit risk for nonperform-
ance and to market risk related to changes in interest or currency exchange rates. We manage our
exposure to counterparty credit risk through specific minimum credit standards, diversification of
counterparties, and procedures to monitor concentrations of credit risk. Our counterparties are
substantial investment and commercial banks with significant experience using such derivative
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instruments. We monitor the impact of market risk on the fair value and expected future cash flows of
our derivative and other financial instruments considering reasonably possible changes in interest and
currency exchange rates and restrict the use of derivative financial instruments to hedging activities.

The following table illustrates the potential change in fair value for interest rate sensitive
instruments based on a hypothetical immediate one-percentage-point increase in interest rates across
all maturities, the potential change in fair value for foreign exchange rate sensitive instruments based
on a 10 percent weakening of the U.S. dollar versus local currency exchange rates across all
maturities, and the potential change in fair value of contracts hedging commodity purchases based on
a 20 percent decrease in the price of the underlying commodity across all maturities at December 31,
2006 and 2005.

Face or
Notional
Amount

Estimated
Increase

(Decrease)
In Fair
Value

Carrying Fair
Value(l) Value(l)

(Dollars in millions)

December 31, 2006
Interest Rate Sensitive Instruments
Long-term debt (including current maturities) .............
Interest rate swap agreements ..........................
Foreign Exchange Rate Sensitive Instruments
Foreign currency exchange. contracts(2) .................
Commodity Price Sensitive Instruments
Forward commodity contracts(3) .........................
December 31, 2005
Interest Rate Sensitive Instruments
Long-term debt (including current maturities) .............
Interest rate swap agreements ..........................
Foreign Exchange Rate Sensitive Instruments
Foreign currency exchange. contracts(2) .................
Commodity Price Sensitive Instruments
Forward commodity contracts(3) ........ .........

$(4,329) $(4,332) $(4,521)
700 3 3

$(194)
(31)

2,572 8

60 (9) (9) (10)

$(4,070) $(4,077) $(4,291) $ (88)
681 9 9 (5)

1,998 (2) (2) (36)

141 17 17 (.12)

(1) Asset or (liability).

(2) Changes in the fair value of foreign currency exchange contracts are offset by changes in the fair
value or cash flows of underlying hedged foreign currency transactions.

(3) Changes in the fair value of forward commodity contracts are offset by changes in the cash flows of
underlying hedged commodity transactions.

The above discussion of our procedures to monitor market risk and the estimated changes in fair
value resulting from our sensitivity analyses are forward-looking statements of market risk assuming
certain adverse market conditions occur. Actual results in the future may differ materially from these
estimated results due to actual developments in the global financial markets. The methods used by us
to assess and mitigate risk discussed above should not be considered projections of future events.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles is based on the selection and application of accounting policies that require us to
make significant estimates and assumptions about the effects of matters. that are inherently uncertaih.
We consider the accounting policies discussed below to be critical tothe understanding of our financial
statements. Actual results couldldiffer. from our estimates and assumptions, and any such differences
could be material to our cons6iidated financial statements.

We have discussed the selection, application and disclosure of these critical accounting policies
with the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors 'and our Independent Registered Public
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Accountants. New accounting standards effective in 2006 which had a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements are described in the Recent Accounting Pronouncements section in
Note 1 to the financial statements.

Contingent Liabilities-We are subject to a number of lawsuits, investigations and claims (some
of which involve substantial dollar amounts) that arise out of the conduct of our global business
operations or those of previously owned entities. These contingencies relate to product liabilities
(including asbestos), contractual matters, and environmental, health and safety matters. We recognize
a liability for any contingency that is probable of occurrence and reasonably estimable. We continually
assess the likelihood of any adverse judgments or outcomes to our contingencies, as well as potential
amounts or ranges of probable losses, and recognize a liability, if any, for these contingencies based on
a careful analysis of each matter with the assistance of outside legal counsel and, if applicable, other
experts. Such analysis includes making judgments concerning matters such as the costs associated
with environmental matters, the outcome of negotiations, the number and cost of pending and future
asbestos claims, and the impact of evidentiary requirements. Because most contingencies are resolved
over long periods of time, liabilities may change in the future due to new developments (including new
discovery of fact, changes in legislation and outcomes of similar cases through the judicial system),
changes in assumptions or changes in our settlement strategy. For a discussion of our contingencies
related to environmental, asbestos and other matters, including management's judgment applied in the
recognition and measurement of specific liabilities, see Notes 1 and 21 to the financial statements.

Asbestos Related Contingencies and Insurance Recoveries-We are a defendant in personal
injury actions related to asbestos containing products (refractory products and friction products). We
recognize a liability for any asbestos related contingency that is probable of occurrence and reasonably
estimable. Regarding North American Refractories Company (NARCO) asbestos related claims, we
accrue for pending claims based on terms and conditions, including evidentiary requirements, in
definitive agreements or agreements in principle with current claimants. We have also accrued for the
probable value of future NARCO asbestos related claims through 2018 based on the disease criteria
and payment values contained in the NARCO trust as described in Note 21 to the financial statements.
In light of the inherent uncertainties in making long term projections regarding claims filing rates and
disease manifestation, we do not believe that we have a reasonable basis for estimating NARCO
asbestos claims beyond 2018 under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, "Accounting
for Contingencies" (SFAS No. -5). Regarding Bendix asbestos related claims, we accrue for the
estimated value of pending claims based on expected claim resolution values and dismissal rates.In
the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company accrued a liability for the estimated cost of future anticipated
claims related to Bendix through 2011 based on our assessment of additional claims that may be
brought against us and anticipated resolution values in the tort system. In December 2006, we also
changed our methodology for valuing Bendix pending and future claims from using average resolution
values of the previous five years to using average resolution values of the previous two years. For
additional information relating to Bendix related claims see Note 21 to the financial statements. We
continually assess the likelihood of any adverse judgments or outcomes to our contingencies, as well
as potential ranges of-probable losses and recognize a liability, if any, for these contingencies based on
an analysis of each-individual issue with the assistance of outside legal counsel and, if applicable,
other experts.

In connection with recognition of liabilities for asbestos related matters, we record asbestos related
insurance recoveries that are deemed probable. In assessing the probability of insurance recovery, we
make judgments concerning insurance coverage that we believe are reasonable and consistent with
our historical experience with our insurers, our knowledge of any pertinent solvency issues surrounding
insurers,.various judicial determinations relevant to our insurance programs and our consideration of
the impacts of any settlements with our insurers. At December 31, 2006, we have recorded insurance
receivables.of $955 million that can be specifically allocated to NARCO related asbestos liabilities. We
also have $1.9 billion in coverage remaining for Bendix related asbestos liabilities although there are
gapsin our coverage due to insurance company insolvencies, certain uninsured'periods and insurance
settlements, resulting in approximately 50 percent of these claims on a cumulative historical basis
being reimbursable by insurance. Our insurance is with both the domestic insurance market and the
London excess market. While the substantial majority of our insurance carriers are solvent, some of
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our individual carriers are insolvent, which has been considered in our analysis of probable recoveries.
Projecting future events is subject. to various uncertainties that could cause the insurance recovery on
asbestos related liabilities to be higher or lower than that projected and recorded. Given the inherent
uncertainty in making future projections, we reevaluate our projections concerning our probable
insurance recoveries in light of any changes to the projected liability, our recovery experience or other
relevant factors that may impact future insurance recoveries. See Note 21 to the financial statements
for a discussion of management's judgments applied in the recognition and measurement of insurance
recoveries for asbestos related liabilities.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans-We maintain defined benefit pension plans covering a majority
of our employees and retirees. For financial reporting purposes, net periodic pension expense is
calculated based upon a number of significant actuarial assumptions, including a discount rate for plan
obligations and an expected,. long-term rate of return on plan assets. We consider current market
conditions, including changes in investment returns and interest rates, in making these assumptions.
We determine. the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets utilizing historic and expected plan
asset returns over varying long-term periods combined with current market conditions and broad asset
mix considerations (see Note 22 to the financial statements for actual and targeted asset allocation
percentages for our pension plans). The discount rate reflects the market rate on December 31
(measurement date) for high-quality fixed-income investments with maturities corresponding to our
benefit obligations and is subject to change each year. Further information on all our major actuarial
assumption is included in Note 22 to the financial statements.

The key assumptions used in developing our 2006, 2005 and 2004 net periodic pension expense
for our U.S. plans included the following:

2006 2005 2004

Discount rate .................................... 5.75% 5.875% 6.00%
Assets:

Expected rate of return ............................... 9% 9% 9%
Actual rate of return ..................... ............. 14% 8% 13%
Actual 10 year average annual compounded

rate of return ........... * ............................ 10% 10% 11%

The reduction in the discount rate in both 2006 and 2005 reflects the lower market interest rate
environment for high-quality fixed income debt instruments. The discount rate is also volatile from year
to year because it is determined based upon the prevailing rate as of the measurement date. We will
use a 6.00 percent discount rate in 2007, reflecting the increase in the market interest rate
environment. We plan to continue to use an expected rate of return on plan assets of 9 percent for
2007 based -principally, on our historical experience of actual plan returns. The net losses for our
pension plans were $2.4 billion at December 31, 2006 compared with $3.4 billion at December 31,
2005. This decrease of $1.0 billion is due primarily to lower net losses in our U.S. plans due to a higher
discount rate at December 31, 2006, an actual plan asset return of 14% in 2006 in our U.S. plans
which was higher than the expected rate of return of 9%, and loss amortization in 2006. The net losses
at December 31, 2006 principally result from the decline each year in the discount rate for the period
2001 through 2005 and from actual plan asset returns below expected rates of return during 2000,
2001, 2002 and 2005. Such net losses were recognized as of December 31, 2006 on our consolidated
balance sheet and as a component of other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, in accordance
with SFAS No. 158, "Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement
Plans (SFAS No. 158) which is discussed in detail in Notes 1 and 22 to the financial statements. In the
future we will continue to systematically recognize such net losses in net periodic pension expense in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 87, 'Employers Accounting for
Pensions' (SFAS No. 87). Under SFAS No. 87, we use the market-related value of plan assets
reflecting changes in the fair value of plan assets over a three-year period. Further, net losses in
excess of 10 percent of the greater of the market-related value of plan assets or the plans projected
benefit obligation are recognized over a six-year period.

Changes in net periodic pension expense may occur in the future due to changes in our expected
rate of return on plan assets and discount rate resulting from economic events. The following table
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highlights the sensitivity of our U.S. pension obligations and expense to changes in these assumptions,
assuming all other assumptions remain constant:

Impact on Annual
Change in Assumption Pension Expense Impact on PBO

0.25 percentage point 'decrease in discount rate Increase $50 million Increase $345 million
0.25 percentage point increase in discount rate... Decrease $50 million Decrease $330 million
0.25 percentage point decrease in expected rate

of return on assets ............................ Increase $30 million
0.25 percentage point increase in expected rate

of return on assets ...... ............... Decrease $30 million

Net periodic pension expense for our pension plans is expected to be approximately $200 million
in 2007, a $113 million decrease from 2006 due principally to a decrease in the amortization of net
losses. The decline in the amortization of net losses results principally from an increase in the discount
rate at December 31, 2006 and actual plan asset returns higher than the expected rate of return in
2004 and 2006.

In 2006, 2005 and 2004 we were not required to make a contribution to satisfy minimum statutory
funding requirements in our U.S. pension plans. We made voluntary contributions of $68 and $40
million to our U.S. pension plans in 2006 and 2004, respectively, mainly for government contracting
purposes. Future plan contributions are dependent upon actual plan asset returns and interest rates.
Assuming that actual plan returns are consistent with our expected plan return of 9 percent in 2007
and beyond, and that interest rates remain constant, we would not be required to make any
contributions to our U.S. pension plans to satisfy minimum statutory funding requirements for the
foreseeable future. However, we expect to make voluntary contributions of approximately $52 million in
cash in 2007 to certain of our U.S. pension plans for government contracting purposes. We also expect
to contribute approximately $155 million in cash in 2007 to our non-U.S. defined benefit pension plans
to satisfy regulatory funding standards.

Long-Lived Assets (including Tangible and Definite-Lived Intangible Assets)-To conduct
our global business operations and execute our business strategy, we acquire tangible and intangible
assets, including property, plant and equipment and def*inite-lived intangible assets. At December 31,
2006, the net carrying amount of these long-lived assets totaled $5.9 billion. The determination of
useful lives (for depreciation/amortization purposes) and whether or not these assets are impaired
involves the use of accounting estimates and assumptions, changes in which could materially impact
our financial condition or operating performance if actual results differ from such estimates and
assumptions. We periodically evaluate the recoverability of the carrying amount of our long-lived assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of a long-lived asset
group may not be fully recoverable. The principal factors we consider in deciding when to perform an
impairment review are as follows:

* significant under-performance (i.e., declines in sales, earnings or cash flows) of a business or
product line in relation to expectations;

" annual operating plans or five-year strategic plans that indicate an unfavorable trend in operating
performance of a business or product line;

" significant negative industry or economic trends; and
" significant changes or planned changes in our use of the assets.
Once it is determined that an impairment review is necessary, recoverability of assets is measured

by comparing the carrying amount of the asset grouping to the estimated future undiscounted cash
flows. If the carrying amount exceeds the estimated future undiscounted cash flows, the asset grouping
is considered to be impaired. The impairment is then measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset grouping and its fair value. We use the best information available to determine fair
value, which are usually either market prices (if available) or an estimate of the future discounted cash
flow. The key estimates in our discounted cash flow analysis include expected industry growth rates,
our assumptions as to volume, selling prices and costs, and the discount rate selected. As described in
more detail in the repositioning and other charges section of our MD&A, we have recorded impairment
charges related to long-lived assets of $12 and $23 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively, principally
related to businesses in our Specialty Materials reportable segment. These businesses were
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significantly under-performing or were in industries with negative economic trends and subsequently
these businesses were significantly restructured, sold or are in the process of being sold.

Goodwill Impairment Testing-Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition costs over the fair
value of the net tangible assets and identifiable intangible assets acquired in a business combination.
Goodwill is not amortized, but is subject to impairment testing. Our Goodwill balance, $8.4 billion as of
December 31, 2006, is subject to impairment testing annually as of March 31, or whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be fully recoverable, using the
guidance and criteria described in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, (SFAS
No. 142) "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets'. This testing compares carrying values to fair values
and, when appropriate, the carrying value is reduced to fair value. The fair value of our reporting units
is estimated utilizing a discounted cash flow approach incorporating historic and projected future
operating performance. This impairment test involves the use of accounting estimates and
assumptions, changes in which could materially impact our financial condition or operating
performance if actual results differ from such estimates and assumptions. We completed our annual
impairment test as of March 31, 2006 and determined that there was no impairment as of that date.

Income Taxes-Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference
between the financial statements and tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect
for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. Our provision for income taxes is based
on domestic and international statutory income tax rates and tax planning opportunities in the
jurisdictions in which we operate. Significant judgment is required in determining income tax provisions
as well as deferred tax asset and liability balances, including the estimation of valuation allowances
and the evaluation of tax positions.

As of December 31, 2006, we recognized a net deferred tax asset of $2,414 million, less a
valuation allowance of $516 million. Net deferred tax assets are primarily comprised of net deductible
temporary differences, net operating loss carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards that are available
to reduce taxable income in future periods. The determination of the amount of valuation allowance to
be provided on recorded deferred tax assets involves estimates regarding (1) the timing and amount of
the reversal of taxable temporary differences, (2) expected future taxable income, and (3) the impact of
tax planning strategies. A valuation allowance is required when it is more likely than not that all or a
portion of a deferred tax asset will not be realized. In assessing the need for a valuation allowance, we
consider all available positive and negative evidence, including past operating results, projections of
future taxable. income and the feasibility of ongoing tax planning strategies. The projections of future
taxable income include a number of estimates and assumptions regarding our volume, pricing and
costs. Additionally, valuation allowances related to deferred tax assets can be impacted by changes to
tax laws.

Our net deferred tax asset of $2,414 million is comprised of $1,624 million related to U.S.
operations and $790 million related to non-U.S. operations. The U.S. net deferred tax asset of $1,624
million is comprised of net deductible temporary differences, tax credit carryforwards and state tax net
operating losses which we believe will more likely than not be realized through the generation of future
taxable income in the U.S. and tax planning strategies. We maintain a valuation allowance of $35
million against such asset related to state tax net operating losses. The non-U.S. net deferred tax asset
of $790 million is comprised principall' of net operating and capital loss carryforwards, mainly in
Germany, France and the United Kingdom. We maintain a valuation allowance of $481 million against
these deferred tax assets reflecting our historical experience and lower expectations of taxable income
over the applicable carryforward periods. As more fully described in Note 6 to the financial statements,
our valuation allowance increased by $39, $139 and $39 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
In the event we determine that we will not be able to realize our net deferred tax assets in the future,
we will reduce such amounts through a charge to income in the period such determination is made.
Conversely, if we determine that we will be able to realize net deferred tax assets in excess of the
carrying amounts, we will decrease the recorded valuation allowance through a credit to income or a
credit to goodwill in the period that such determination is made. If a valuation allowance is recognized
for the net deferred tax asset for an acquired entity's deductible temporary differences, operating loss,
capital loss, or tax credit carryforwards at the acquisition date, the tax benefits for those items
recognized after the acquisition date shall be applied first to reduce to zero goodwill related to the
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acquisition, second to reduce to zero other non-current intangible assets related to the acquisition, and
third to reduce income tax expense.

Significant judgment is required in determining income tax provisions under Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 109 "Accounting for Income Taxes" (SFAS No. 109) and in evaluating tax
positions. We establish additional provisions for income taxes when, despite the belief that tax
positions are fully supportable, there remain certain positions that are likely to be challenged and.that
may not be sustained on review by tax authorities. In the normal course of business, the Company and
its subsidiaries are examined by various Federal, State and foreign tax authorities. We regularly assess
the potential outcomes of these examinations and any future examinations for the current or prior years
in determining the adequacy of our provision for income taxes. We continually assess the likelihood
and amount of potential adjustments and adjust the income tax provision, the current tax liability and
deferred taxes in the period in which the facts that give rise to a revision become known.

As described in further detail in the Recent Accounting Pronouncements section in Note 1 of
Notes to Financial Statements in "Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data", FASB
Interpretation ("FIN") No. 48 "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes-an interpretation of FASB
Statement 109" is effective beginning January 1, 2007.. FIN 48 establishes a single model to address
accounting for uncertainty in tax positions. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for income taxes by
prescribing a minimum recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet before being recognized
in the financial statements. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, measurement,
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. Honeywell will adopt FIN 48 as of
January 1, 2007 as required. Based on our current assessment, and subject to any changes that may
result from additional technical guidance being issued, the adoption of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007 is
expected to reduce our existing reserves for uncertain tax positions by approximately $130 million, to
be recorded as a cumulative effect adjustment to equity, largely relating to.state income tax matters.

Sales Recognition on Long-Term Contracts-In 2006, we .recognized approximately 12 percent
of our total net sales using the percentage-of-completion method for long-term contracts in our
Automation and Control Solutions, Aerospace and Specialty Materials reportable segments. These
long-term contracts are measured on. the cost-to-cost basis for engineering-type contracts and the
units-of-delivery basis for production-type contracts. Accounting for these contracts involves manage-
ment judgment in estimating total contract revenue and cost. Contract revenues are largely determined
by negotiated contract prices and quantities, modified by our assumptions regarding contract options,
change orders, incentive and award provisions associated with technical performance and price
adjustment clauses (such as inflation or index-based clau'ses). Contract costs are incurred over a
period of time, which can be several years, and the estimation of these costs requires management
judgment. Cost estimates are largely based on negotiated or estimated purchase contract terms,
historical performance trends and other economic projections. Significant factors that influence these
estimates include inflationary trends, technical and schedule risk, internal and subcontractor
performance trends, business volume assumptions, asset utilization, and anticipated labor agreements.
Revenue and cost estimates are regularly monitored and revised based on changes in circumstances.
Anticipated losses on long-term contracts are recognized when such losses become evident. We
maintain financial controls over the customer qualification, contract pricing and estimation processes to
reduce the risk of contract losses.

OTHER MATTERS
Litigation

See Note 21 to the financial statements for a discussion of environmental, asbestos and other
litigation matters.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
See Note 1 to the financial statements for a discussion of recent accounting pronouncements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Information relating to market risk is included in "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations" under the caption "Financial Instruments".
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

HONEYWELL INTERNATIONAL INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

(Dollars in millions,
except per share amounts)

Product sales .................................................... $25,165 $22,257 $20,400
Service sales ..................................................... 6,202 5,395 5,193

Net sales ........................................................ 31,367 27,652 25,593

Costs, expenses and other
Cost of products sold ........................................ 19,649 17,681 17,071
Cost of services sold ........................................ 4,447 3,843 3,681

24,096 21,524 20,752
Selling, general and administrative expenses .................. 4,210 3,707 3,316
Other (income)/expense ...................................... (111) (231) (429)
Interest and other financial charges ........................... 374 356 331

28,569 25,356 23,970

Income from continuing operations before taxes ................... 2,798 2,296 1,623
Tax expense ..................................................... 720 732 377

Income from continuing operations ................................ 2,078 1,564 1,246
Income from discontinued operations, net of taxes ................. 5 95 -
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of taxes .............. - (21) -

Net incom e ...................................................... $ 2,083 $ 1,638 $ 1,246

Earnings (loss) per share of common stock-basic:
Income from continuing operations ............................ $ 2.53 $ 1.85 $ 1.45
Income from discontinued operations ......................... 0.01 0.11 -
Cumulative effect of accounting change ....................... - (0.03) -

Net incom e .................................................. $ 2.54 $ 1.93 $ 1.45

Earnings (loss) per share of common stock-assuming dilution:
Income from continuing operations ............................ $ 2.51 $ 1.84 $ 1.45
Income from discontinued operations ......................... 0.01 0.11 -
Cumulative effect of accounting change ....................... - (0.03) -

Net incom e .................................................. $ 2.52 $ 1.92 $ 1.45

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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HONEYWELL INTERNATIONAL INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

December 31,
2006 2005

(Dollars in millions)

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ..............................................
Accounts, notes and other receivables ...................................
Inv e n to rie s ..............................................................
Deferred incom e taxes ..................................................
O ther current assets ....................................................
A ssets held for disposal .................................................

Total current assets ................................................
Investments and long-term receivables .....................................
Property, plant and equipment- net ........................................
G o o d w ill ................ ..................................................
O ther intangible assets- net ...............................................
Insurance recoveries for asbestos related liabilities .........................
D eferred incom e taxes ....................................................
Prepaid pension benefit cost ..............................................
O the r a ssets ..............................................................

Tota l a ssets ......................................................
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
A ccounts payable .......................................................
S hort-term borrow ings ...................................................
C om m ercial paper ......................................................
Current maturities of long-term debt ........................ ....... ....
A ccrued liab ilities ... ......... ..........................................
Liabilities related to assets held for disposal .............................

Total current liabilities ...................................
Lo ng-te rm de bt ...........................................................
Deferred income taxes ................ ................... .
Postretirement benefit obligations other than pensions ......................
A sbestos related liabilities .................................................
O the r lia b ilitie s ............................................................
CONTINGENCIES

SHAREOWNERS' EQUITY

Capital-common stock-Authorized 2,000,000,000 shares (par value
$1 per share):

- issued 957,599,900 shares ..........................................
- additional paid-in capital ............................................

Common stock held in treasury, at cost:
2006-157,008,412 shares; 2005-128,116,854 shares .................

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) ...........................
R etained earnings .........................................................

Total shareow ners' equity .........................................
Total liabilities and shareowners' equity ............................

$ 1,224
5,740
3,588
1,215

470
67

12,304
382

4,797
8,403
1,247
1,100
1,075

695
938

$30,941

$ 3,518
62

669
423

5,455
8

10,135
3,909

352
2,090
1,262
3,473

958
3,845

(6,339)
(1,307)
12,563

9,720

$30,941

$ 1,234
5,017
3,401
1,243

542
525

11,962
370

4,658
7,660
1,173
1,302

730
2,716
1,062

$31,633

$ 2,886
275
754
995

5,359
161

10,430
3,082

334
1,786
1,549
3,690

958
3,626

(5,027)
(25)

11,230
10,762

$31,633

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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HONEYWELL INTERNATIONAL INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income ............................................... $
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating

activities:
Cumulative effect of accounting change.......................
Depreciation and amortization...............................
Repositioning and other charges.............................
Payments of repositioning and other charges ..................
Pension and other postretirement expense.....................
Pension and other postretirement benefit payments .............
Stock option expense......................................
Deferred income taxes ........................ ............
Excess tax benefits from share based payment arrangements ...
Other ................... :................................
Changes in assets and liabilities , net of the effects of acquisitions

and divestitures:
Accounts, notes and other receivables ....................
Inventories...........................................
Other current assets...................................
Accounts payable .....................................
Accrued liabilities......................................

Net cash provided by operating activities.................
Cash flows from investing activities:

Expenditures for property, plant and equipment ....................
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment ...........
Proceeds from investments.....................................
Increase in investments .......................................
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired ...................
Proceeds from sales of businesses, net of fees paid................

Net cash (used for) investing activities ..................
Cash flows from financing activities:

Net (decrease)/increase in commercial paper......................
Net (decrease)/i ncrease in short-term borrowings...................
Payment of debt assumed with acquisitions .......................
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ........................
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt ........................
Payments of long-term debt....................................
Excess tax benefits from share based payment arrangements ........
Repurchases of common stock .................................
Cash dividends paid on common stock...........................

Net cash (used for) financing activities ..................
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ...
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents ..................
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period .....................
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ........................... $

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

(Dollars in millions)

2,083 $1,638 $1,246

794
483
(559)
459
(353)

77
450
(31)
20

(573)
(128)

(11)
516
(16)

3,211

(733)
87

(633)
665

(614)

(86)
(224)
(346)
396

1,239
1,019)

31
1,896)

(744)
2,649)

42
(10)

1,234
1,224

21
653
412

(1,008)
561
(199)

42

(56)

(94)
37
61

181
193

2,442

(684)
71

285

(2,679)
997

(2,010)

534
100

(702)
167

(982)

(1,133)
(700)

(2,716)
(68)

(2,352)
3,586

$1,234

614
775
(863)
628
(247)

201

(358)

(470)
(84)
(77)

408
480

2,253

(629)
38
80

(115)
(384)
426
(584)

220
(121)

74

(29)

(724)
(643)

(1,223)
190
636

2,950
$3,586

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Common
Stock Issued

Shares Amount

957.6 $958

AccumulatedOther

Additional Common Stock ComprehensivePaid-in Held in Treasury Income

Capital Shares Amount (Loss)

(In millions, except per share amounts)

$3,486 (95.3) $(3,655) $ (189)

Retained
Earnings

$ 9,689
1,246

Total
Shareowners'

Equity

$10,289

1,246

Balance at December 31, 2003 ....
Net incom e .......................
Foreign exchange translation

adjustm ents .....................
Minimum pension liability adjustment
Change in fair value of effective cash

flow hedges ....................

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Common stock issued for employee

savings and option plans (including
related tax benefits of $19) .......

Repurchases of common stock ......
Cash dividends on common stock

($0.75 per share) ................
Other owner changes ..............

Balance at December 31, 2004 ....

Net incom e .......................
Foreign exchange translation

adjustm ents .....................
Minimum pension liability adjustment

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Common stock issued for employee

savings and option plans (including
related tax benefits of $17) .......

Repurchases of common stock ......
Cash dividends on common stock -

($0.825 per share) ...............
Other owner changes ..............

Balance at December 31, 2005 ....

Net income ..................
Foreign exchange translation

adjustm ents .....................
Change in fair value of effective cash

flow hedges ....................
Minimum pension liability adjustment

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Pension and other postretirement

benefits (including related tax
benefits of $912) ................

Common stock issued for employee
savings and option plans (including
related tax benefits of $31) .......

Stock based compensation expense..
Reclassification to equity of

obligations settled in stock ........
Repurchases of common stock ......
Dividends on common stock

($0.9075 per share) ..............
Other owner changes ..............

Balance at December 31, 2006 ....

351
(15)

(9)

79 7.5 162
(20.1) (699)

9 .3 7

957.6 958 3,574 (107.6) (4,185)

(643)

138 10,292

1,638

(147)
(16)

50 9.7 . 283
(30.6) (1,133)

2 .4 8

957.6 958 3,626 (128.1) (5,027)

(700)

(25) 11,230

2,083

351
(15)

(9)
1,573

241
(699)

(643)
16

10,777

1,638

(147)
(16)

1,475

333
(1,133)

(700)
10

10,762

2,083

233

(3)
196

2,509

(1,708)

602
77

112
(1,896)

(750)
12

$ 9,720

233

(3)
196

(1,708)

29
77

112

1
957.6 $958 $3,845

16.2 573

(45.4) (1,896)

.3

(157.0)

11

$(6,339)

(750)

$(1,307) $12,563

The Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note 1-Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Accounting Principles-The financial statements and accompanying notes are prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The
following is a description of the significant accounting policies of Honeywell International Inc.

Principles of Consolidation-The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
Honeywell International Inc. and all. of its subsidiaries and entities in which a controlling interest is
maintained. Our consolidation policy requires the consolidation of entities where a controlling financial
interest is obtained as well as consolidation of variable interest entities in which we bear a majority of
the risk to the entities' potential losses or stand to gain from a majority of the entities' expected returns.
All intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents-Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and on deposit
and highly liquid, temporary cash investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Inventories-Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market using the first-in, first-out or the
average cost method and the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method for certain qualifying domestic inventories.

Investments-Investments in affiliates over which we have a significant influence, but not a
controlling interest, are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Other investments are
carried at market value, if readily determinable, or cost. All equity investments are periodically reviewed
to determine if declines, in fair value below cost basis are other-than-temporary. Significant and
sustained decreases in quoted market prices or a series of historic and projected operating losses by
investees are strong indicators of other-than-temporary declines. If the decline in fair value is
determined to be other-than-temporary, an impairment loss is recorded and the investment is written
down to a new carrying value.

Property, Plant and Equipment-Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost less
accumulated depreciation. For financial reporting, the straight-line method of depreciation is used over
the estimated useful lives of 10 to 50 years for buildings and improvements and 2 to 15 years for
machinery and equipment. Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 143, "Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations" (SFAS No. 143) and FASB Interpretation No. 47 ("FIN 47") require
recognition of the fair value of obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets
when there is a legal obligation to incur such costs. Upon adoption of FIN 47 on December 31, 2005,
we recorded an increase of $14 million to property, plant and equipment and recognized an asset
retirement obligation liability of $46 million. This resulted in the recognition of a non-cash charge of
$32 million ($21 million after tax) that was reported as a cumulative effect of an accounting change.
Upon initial recognition of a liability the cost is capitalized as part of the related long-lived asset and
depreciated over the corresponding asset's useful life. See Note 17 for additional details.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets-Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition
costs over the fair value of tangible, net assets and identifiable intangible assets of businesses
acquired. Goodwill and certain other intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are not
amortized. Intangible assets determined to have definite lives are amortized over their useful lives.
Goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets are subject to impairment testing annually as of
March 31, or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be fully recoverable, using the guidance and criteria described in Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets". This testing compares carrying values to
fair values and, when appropriate, the carrying value of these assets is reduced to fair value. We
completed our annual goodwill impairment test as of March 31, 2006 and determined that there was no
impairment as of that date. See Note 12 for additional details on goodwill balances.

Other Intangible Assets with Determinable Lives-Other intangible assets with determinable
lives consist of customer lists, technology, patents and trademarks and other intangibles and are
amortized over their estimated useful lives, ranging from 2 to 24 years.
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Long-Lived Assets-We periodically evaluate the recoverability of the carrying amount of long-
lived assets (including property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets with determinable lives)
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
fully recoverable. We evaluate events or changes in circumstances based on a number of factors
including operating results, business plans and forecasts, general and industry trends and, economic
projections and anticipated cash flows. An impairment is assessed when the undiscounted expected
future cash flows derived from an asset are less than its carrying amount. Impairment losses are
measured as the amount by which the carrying value of an asset exceeds its fair value and are
recognized in earnings. We also continually evaluate the estimated useful lives of all long-lived assets
and periodically revise such estimates based on current events.

Sales Recognition-Product and service sales are recognized when persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, product delivery has occurred or services have been rendered, pricing is fixed or
determinable, and collection is reasonably assured. Service sales, principally representing repair,
maintenance and engineering activities in our Aerospace and Automation and Control Solutions
reportable segments, are recognized over the contractual period or as services are rendered. Sales
under long-term contracts in the Aerospace, Automation and Control Solutions and Specialty Materials
reportable segments are recorded on a percentage-of-completion method measured on the cost-to-
cost basis for engineering-type contracts and the units-of-delivery basis for production-type contracts.
Provisions for anticipated losses on long-term contracts are recorded in full when such losses become
evident. Revenues from contracts with multiple element arrangements are recognized as each element
is earned based on the relative fair value of each element provided the delivered elements have value
to customers on a standalone basis. Amounts allocated to each element are based on its objectively
determined fair value, such as the sales price for the product or service when it is sold separately or
competitor prices for similar products or services.

Environmental Expenditures-Environmental expenditures that relate to current operations are
expensed or capitalized as appropriate. Expenditures that relate to an existing condition caused by
past operations, and that do not provide future benefits, are expensed as incurred. Liabilities are
recorded when environmental remedial efforts or damage claim payments are probable and the costs
can be reasonably estimated. Such liabilities are based on our best estimate of the undiscounted future
costs required to complete the remedial work. The recorded liabilities are adjusted periodically as
remediation efforts progress or as additional technical or legal information becomes available. Given
the uncertainties regarding the status of laws, regulations, enforcement policies, the impact of other
potentially responsible parties, technology and information related to individual sites, we do not believe
it is possible to .develop an estimate of the range of reasonably possible environmental loss in excess
of our accruals.

Asbestos Related Contingencies and Insurance Recoveries-Honeywell is a defendant in
personal injury actions related to asbestos containing products (refractory products and friction
products). We recognize a liability for any asbestos related contingency that is probable of occurrence
and reasonably estimable.' Regarding North American Refractories Company (NARCO) asbestos
related claims, we accrue for pending claims based on terms and conditions, including evidentiary
requirements, in definitive agreements or agreements in principle with current claimants. We also
accrued for the probable value of future NARCO asbestos related claims through 2018 based on the
disease criteria and payment values contained in the NARCO trust as described in Note 21. In light of
the inherent uncertainties in making long term projections regarding claims filing rates and disease
manifestation, we do not believe that we have a reasonable basis for estimating NARCO asbestos
claims beyond 2018 under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, "Accounting for
Contingencies" (SFAS No. 5). Regarding Bendix asbestos related claims, we accrue for the estimated
value of pending claims based on expected claim resolution values and dismissal rates. In the fourth
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quarter of 2006, the Company accrued a liability for the estimated cost of future anticipated claims
related to Bendix through 2011 based on our assessment of additional claims that may be brought
agains*t us and anticipated resolution values in the tort system. In December 2006, we also changed
our methodology for valuing.Bendix pending and future claims from using average resolution values of
the previous five years to' using average resolution values of the previous two years. For additional
information see Note 21. We continually assess the likelihood of any adverse judgments or outcomes
to our contingencies, as well as potential ranges of probable losses and recognize a liability, if any, for
these contingencies based on an analysis of each individual issue with the assistance of outside legal
counsel and, if applicable,. other-experts.

In connection with the recognition of liabilities.for asbestos related matters, we record asbestos
related insurance recoveries that are deemed probable. In assessing the probability of insurance
recovery, we make judgments concerning insurance coverage that we believe are reasonable and
consistent with our historical experience with our insu rers, our knowledge of any pertinent solvency
issues surrounding insurers, various judicial determinations relevant to our insurance programs and our
consideration of the impacts of any settlements with our insurers..

Aerospace Sales Incentives-The Company provides sales incentives to commercial aircraft
manufacturers and airlines in connection with their selection of Our aircraft wheel and braking system
hardware and auxiliary power units for installation on commercialaircraft. These incentives principally
consist of free or deeply discounted products but also include credits for future purchases of product
and upfront .cash payments. These costs are expensed as provided. For aircraft manufacturers,
incentives are recorded when the products are delivered; for airlines, incentives are recorded when the
associated aircraft are delivered by the aircraft manufacturer to the airline.

Research and Development-Research and development costs for company-sponsored
research and development projects are expensed as incurred. Such costs are principally included in
Cost of Products Sold and were $1,411, $1,072 and $917 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation Plans-Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123
(revised 2004), "Share-Based Payment" (SFAS No. 123R) requiring that compensation cost relating to
share-based payment awards made to employees .and directors be recognized in the financial
statements. The principal awards issued under our stock-based compensation plans, which are
described in Note 20, "Stock-Based Compensation Plans" include non-qualified stock options and
restricted stock units (RSUs). The cost for such awards is measured at the grant date based on the
calculated fair value of the award. The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expected to
vest is recognized as expense over the requisite service periods (generally the vesting period of the
equity award) in our Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Prior to January 1, 2006, we accounted for share-based compensation cost using the intrinsic
value method in accordance with Accounting Principles Board No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees" (APB No. 25), and related interpretations. We also followed disclosure requirements of
SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation", as amended by SFAS No. 148,
"Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure". Under APB No. 25 there was
no compensation cost recognized in our Consolidated Statement of Operations for our stock option
awards. Compensation cost for RSUs is recognized in our Consolidated Statement of Operations and
is included in selling, general and administrative expenses, and was not affected by our adoption of
FAS No. 123R.

We adopted SFAS No. 123R using the modified prospective method and, accordingly, the
Consolidated Statement of Operations for prior years has not been restated to reflect the fair value
method of recognizing compensation cost relating to stock options. Share-based compensation cost
relating to stock options recognized in 2006 is based on the value of the portion of the award that is
ultimately expected to vest. SFAS No. 123R requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant in
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order to estimate the portion of the award that will ultimately vest. The estimate is based on our
historical rates of forfeiture. In our pro forma information required under SFAS No. 123 fo r the years
prior .to 2006, we accounted for forfeitures as they occurred:

Compensation cost related to stock options recognized in operating results (included in selling,
general and administrative expenses) under SFAS No. 123R in 2006 was $77 million on a pre-tax basis
and the associated future income tax benefit recognized was $28 million. Compensation cost related to
stock options recognized in our Consolidated Statement of Operations in 2006 includes (1) compensa-
tion cost for stock option awards granted prior to, but not yet vested as of December 31, 2005, based
on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the pro forma provisions of SFAS No. 123
and (2) compensation cost for stock option awards granted subsequent to December 31, 2005, based
on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123R.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share as if we had applied
the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 in the years prior to the adoption of FAS
No. 123R.

2005 2004

Net income, as reported ...................... $1,638 $1,246
Deduct:, Total stock-based employee compensation cost determined under fair

value method for fixed stock option plans, net of related tax effects ........ (53) (42)
Pro forma net income ............................................ .$1,585 $1,204

Earnings per share of common stock:
Basic- as reported ...................................................... $ 1.93 $ 1.45

Basic- pro forma ................................................ ...... $ 1.87 $ 1.40

Earnings per share of common stock:
Assuming dilution- as reported .......................................... $ 1.92 $ 1.45

Assuming dilution- pro forma ... ...................................... $ 1.86 $ 1.40

The following table sets forth fair value per share information, including related assumptions, used
to determine compensation cost consistent with the requirements of SFAS No. 123.

2005 2004

Weighted average fair value per share of options grantedduring the
year(l) .......................................................... $ 10.67 $ 10.97

Assumptions:
Expected annual dividend yield ................................ 2.4% 2.1%
Expected volatility ..... * ....................................... 34.8% 37.9%
Risk-free rate of return .................................... 3.7% 3.3%
Expected option term (years) .................................... 5.0 5.0

(1) Estimated on date of grant using Black-Scholes option-pricing model.

Foreign Currency Translation-Assets and liabilities of subsidiaries operating outside the United
States with a functional currency other than U.S. dollars are translated intoU.S. dollars using year-end
exchange rates. Sales, costs and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates in effect
during the year. Foreign currency translation gains and losses are included as a component of
Accumulated Other Nonowner Changes in Shareowners' Equity. For subsidiaries operating in highly
inflationary environments, inventories and property, plant and equipment, including related expenses,
are remeasured at the exchange rate in effect on the date the assets were acquired, while monetary
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assets and liabilities are remeasured at year-end exchange rates. Remeasurement adjustments for
these subsidiaries are included in earnings.

Derivative Financial Instruments-As a result of our global operating and financing activities, we
are exposed to market, risks from changes in interest and foreign currency exchange rates and
commodity prices, which may adversely affect our operating results and financial position. We minimize
our risks from. interest and foreign currency exchange rate and commodity price fluctuations through
our normal operating and financing activities and, when deemed .appropriate through the use of
derivative financial instruments. Derivative financial instruments are used to manage risk and are not
used for trading or other speculative purposes and we do not use leveraged derivative financial
instruments. Derivative financial instruments used for hedging purposes must be designated and
effective as a hedge of the identified risk exposure at the inception of the contract. Accordingly,
changes in fair value of the derivative contract must be highly correlated with changes in fair value of
the underlying hedged item at inception of the hedge and over the life of the hedge contract.

All derivatives are recorded on the balance sheet as assets or liabilities and measured at fair
value. For derivatives designated as hedges of the fair value of assets or liabilities, the changes in fair
values of both the derivatives and the hedged items are recorded in current earnings. For derivatives
designated as cash flow hedges, the effective portion of the changes in fair value of the derivatives are
recorded in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) and subsequently recognized in
earnings when the hedged items impact earnings.

Transfers of Financial Instruments-Sales, transfers and securitization of financial instruments
are accounted for under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 140, "Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities". We sell interests in
designated pools of trade accounts receivables to third parties. The receivables are removed from the
Consolidated Balance Sheet at the time they are sold. The value assigned to our subordinated
interests and undivided interests retained in trade receivables sold is based on the relative fair values
of the interests retained and sold. The carrying value of the retained interests approximates fair value
due to the short-term nature of the collection period for the receivables.

Income Taxes-Deferred tax liabilities or assets reflect temporary differences between amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial and tax reporting. Such amounts are adjusted, as appropriate, to
reflect changes in tax rates expected to be in effect when the temporary differences reverse. A
valuation allowance is established to offset any deferred tax assets if, based upon the available
evidence, it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The
determination of the amount of a valuation allowance to be provided on recorded deferred tax assets
involves estimates regarding (1) the timing and amount of the reversal of taxable temporary
differences, (2) expected future taxable income, and (3) the impact of tax planning strategies. In
assessing the need for a valuation allowance, we consider all available positive and negative evidence,
including past operating results, projections of future taxable income and the feasibility of ongoing tax
planning strategies. The projections of future taxable income include a number of estimates and
assumptions regarding our volume, pricing and costs. Additionally, valuation allowances related to
deferred tax assets can be impacted by changes to tax laws.

Significant judgment is required in determining income tax provisions under Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 109 "Accounting for Income Taxes" (SFAS No. 109) and in evaluating tax
positions. We establish additional provisions for income taxes when, despite the belief that tax
positions are fully supportable, there remain certain positions that are likely to be challenged and that
may not be sustained on review by tax authorities. In the normal course of business, the Company and
its subsidiaries are examined by various Federal, State and foreign tax authorities. We regularly assess
the potential outcomes of these examinations and any future examinations for the current or prior years
in determining the adequacy of our provision for income taxes. We continually assess the likelihood
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and amount of potential adjustments and adjust the income tax provision, the current tax liability and
deferred taxes in the period in which the facts that give rise to a revision become known.

Earnings Per Share-Basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding and all dilutive potential common shares outstanding.

Use of Estimates-The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles requires, management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and related disclosures in the
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and assumptions are
periodically reviewed and the effects of revisions are reflected in the consolidated financial statements
in the period they are determined to be necessary.

Reclassifications-Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current
year presentation.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements-In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation
("FIN") No. 48 "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes-an interpretation of FASB Statement
109". FIN 48 establishes a single model to address accounting for uncertainty in tax positions. FIN 48
clarifies the accounting for income taxes by prescribing a minimum recognition threshold a tax position
is required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements. FIN 48 also provides guidance
on derecognition, measurement, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods,
disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006.
Honeywell will adopt FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007 as required. Based on our current assessment, and
subject to any changes that may result from additional technical guidance being issued, the adoption of
FIN 48 is expected to reduce our existing reserves for uncertain tax positions by approximately $130
million, to be recorded as a cumulative effect adjustment to equity, largely relating to state income tax
matters.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements" (SFAS No. 157).
SFAS No. 157 establishes a common definition for fair value to be applied to US GAAP requiring use of
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosure about such fair
value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007.
The Company is currently assessing the impact of SFAS No. 157 on its consolidated financial position
and results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, "Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans" (SFAS No. 158). SFAS No. 158 requires that employers
recognize on a prospective basis the funded status of their defined benefit pension and other
postretirement benefit plans on their consolidated balance sheet and recognize as a component of
other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax, the gains or losses and prior service costs or credits
that arise during the period but are not recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost. We
adopted SFAS No. 158 as of December 31, 2006. See Note 22-Pensions and Other Postretirement
Benefits for additional disclosures required by SFAS No. 158 and the effects of adoption.

In February, 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159 "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities (SFAS No. 159). SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure many
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value. Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the
fair value option has been elected are reported in earnings. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company is currently assessing the impact of SFAS No. 159
on its consolidated financial position and results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position ("FSP") AUG AIR-1 "Accounting for
Planned Major Maintenance Activities" (FSP AUG AIR-l). FSP AUG AIR-1 amends the guidance on
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the accounting for planned major maintenance activities; specifically it precludes the use of the
previously acceptable "accrue in advance" method. FSP AUG AIR-1 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2006. The implementation of this standard will not have a material
impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In September 2006, the SEC staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin ("SAB") 108 "Considering the
Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial
Statements" (SAB 108). SAB 108 requires that public companies utilize a "dual-approach" to assessing
the quantitative effects of financial misstatements. This dual approach includes both an income
statement focused assessment and a balance sheet focused assessment. The guidance in SAB 108
must be applied to annual financial statements for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. The
adoption of SAB 108 did not have a material effect on our consolidated financial position or results of
operations.

Note 2-Acquisitions and Divestitures

We acquired businesses for an aggregate cost of $979, $3,500 and $396 million in 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively. All of our acquisitions were accounted for under the purchase method of
accounting, and accordingly, the assets and liabilities of the acquired businesses were recorded at their
estimated fair values at the dates of acquisition. Significant acquisitions made in these years are
discussed below.

In May 2006, the Company purchased Gardiner Groupe, a privately held company. The purchase
price for the acquisition was allocated to the tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and
liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values and lives at the acquisition date. The Company
has assigned $47 million to identifiable intangible assets, predominantly customer relationships and
trademarks. These intangible assets are being amortized over their estimated lives which range from 3
to 15 years using straight-line and accelerated amortization periods. The excess of the purchase price
over the estimated fair values of net assets acquired approximating $129 million, was recorded as
goodwill. This goodwill is non-deductible for tax purposes. This acquisition was accounted for by the
purchase method, and, accordingly, results of operations are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date of acquisition. The results from the acquisition date through December 31,
2006 are included in the Automation and Control Solutions segment and were not material to the
consolidated financial statements.

In March 2006, the Company purchased First Technology plc, a U.K publicly listed company. The
aggregate value of the purchase price was $723 million, including the assumption of approximately
$217 million of outstanding debt and $23 million of transaction costs. The purchase price for the
acquisition was allocated to the tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities
assumed based on their estimated fair values at the acquisition date. The Company has assigned $155
million to identifiable intangible assets, predominantly customer relationships, existing technology and
trademarks. These intangible assets are being amortized over their estimated lives which range from 3
to 15 years using straight-line and accelerated amortization periods. The excess of the purchase price
over the estimated fair values of net assets acquired approximating $439 million, was recorded as
goodwill. This goodwill is non-deductible for tax purposes. This acquisition was accounted for by the
purchase method, and, accordingly, results of operations are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date of acquisition. The results from the acquisition date through December 31,
2006 are included in the Automation and Control Solutions segment and were not material to the
consolidated financial statements. During the year the Company completed the sales of the First
Technology Safety & Analysis business for $93 million and First Technology Automotive for $90 million
which were accounted for as part of the purchase price allocation.
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In November 2005, the Company acquired the remaining 50 percent of UOP LLC giving Honeywell
full ownership of the entity. The aggregate value of the purchase price was approximately $825 million,
including the assumption of approximately $115 million of outstanding debt. The purchase price for the
acquisition was allocated to the tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities
assumed based on their estimated fair values at the acquisition date. The Company has assigned $339
million to identifiable intangible assets, predominantly, existing technology, which is being amortized
over 15 years on a straight-line basis and trade names, which are not amortized. The excess of the
purchase price over the estimated fair values of net assets acquired approximating $336 million, was
recorded as goodwill. This goodwill is non-deductible for tax purposes. Following this acquisition, which
is being accounted for by the purchase method, results of operations have been included into the
Specialty Materials segment. Prior to that date, UOP results for the 50 percent share that the Company
owned was included in equity income of affiliated companies.

On March 31, 2005, the Company purchased 100% of the issued and ordinary preference share
capital of NOVAR plc (NOVAR) for $1.7 billion, net of cash acquired, which represented $2.4 billion for
consideration of all outstanding shares and outstanding options to be exercised, net of the assumption
of debt of $0.7 billion. Transaction costs related to this acquisition were $49 million. In December 2005,
we completed the sale of the Security Printing business to M&F Worldwide Corp. for $800 million in
cash. In February 2006, we completed the sale of Indalex to an affiliate of private investment firm Sun
Capital Partners, Inc. for approximately $425 million in cash. The Indalex business was classified as
held for sale in our December 31, 2005 Consolidated Balance Sheet and both the Indalex and Security
Printing businesses have been presented as discontinued operations in our Statement of Operations
for all periods presented. Goodwill of approximately $1.3 billion was recognized and we allocated $261
million to other intangible assets (contractual customer relationships, existing technology and
trademarks). These intangible assets are being amortized over their estimated useful lives which range
from 5 to 15 years using straight-line and accelerated amortization methods. In addition, accrued
liabilities included $76 million of restructuring costs related to the integration of the NOVAR operations.

As of December 31, 2006, the purchase accounting for both First Technology and Gardiner
Groupe is still subject to final adjustment primarily for amounts related to the businesses that were sold
and pre-acquisition contingencies.

In connection with all acquisitions in 2006, 2005 and 2004, except for the First Technology and
NOVAR acquisitions as described above, the amounts recorded for transaction costs and the costs of
integrating the acquired businesses into Honeywell were not material. The results of operations of all
acquired businesses have been included in the consolidated results of Honeywell from their respective
acquisition dates.

The pro forma results for 2006, 2005 and 2004, assuming these acquisitions had been made at
the beginning of the year, would not be materially different from consolidated reported results.
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Note 3-Repositioning and Other Charges

A summary of repositioning and other charges follows:

S eve ra nce ..........................................................
Asset im pairm ents ..................................................
E x it co sts ..........................................................
Reserve adjustm ents ................................................

Total net repositioning charge ....................................
Asbestos related litigation charges, net of insurance ..................
Probable and reasonably estimable environmental liabilities ...........
Business im pairment charges ........................................
Arbitration award related to phenol supply agreement .................
O th e r . . .. .. . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . . . . .. . . . . .. .. . . . .. . . . . . .. . . . . ..

Total net repositioning and other charges ........................

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

$102 $248 $ 85
15 5 21

7 14 10
(22) (25) (28)
102 242 88
126 10 76
210 186 536

12 23 42
(18) (67) -
51 18 33

$483 $412 $775

The following table summarizes the pretax distribution of total net repositioning and other charges
by income statement classification.

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Cost of products and services sold .................................. $472 $357 $739
Selling, general and administrative expenses ......................... 11 43 25
Other (incom e) expense ............................................. - 12 11

$483 $412 $775

The following table summarizes the pretax impact of total net repositioning and other charges by
reportable segment.

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

A erospace .. ............. .......................................... $ 10 $ 96 $ (5)
Automation and Control Solutions ..................................... 39 85 28
Specialty M aterials .................................................. 5 (34) 90
Transportation Systems .............................................. 293 82 147
C orporate .......................................................... 136 183 515

$483 $412 $775

In 2006, we recognized repositioning charges totaling $124 million primarily for severance costs
related to workforce reductions of 2,253 manufacturing and administrative positions across all of our
reportable segments. Also, $22 million of previously established accruals, primarily for severance at our
Aerospace, Transportation Systems and Specialty Materials reportable segments were returned to
income in 2006 due mainly to changes in the scope of previously announced severance programs and
due to fewer employee separations than originally planned associated with prior Aerospace severance
programs.

In 2005, we recognized repositioning charges totaling $267 million primarily for severance costs
related to workforce reductions of 5,269 manufacturing and administrative positions across all of our
reportable segments including the implementation of a new organizational structure in our Aerospace
reportable segment (substantially implemented in the third quarter of 2005) which reorganized our
Aerospace businesses to better align with customer segments. Also, $25 million ofP previously
established accruals, primarily for severance at our Corporate, Specialty Materials and Automation and
Control Solutions reportable segments were returned to income in 2005. The reversal of severance
liabilities related to changes in the scope of previously announced severance programs, excise taxes
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related to an executive severance amount previously paid which were determined to no longer be
payable, and severance amounts previously paid to an outside service provider as part of an
outsourcing arrangement which were refunded to Honeywell.

In 2004, we recognized repositioning charges totaling $1 16 million primarily for severance costs
related to workforce reductions of 2,272 manufacturing and administrative positions across all of our
reportable segments. Also, $28 million of previously established accruals, primarily for severance, were
returned to income in 2004, due to fewer employee separations than originally planned associated with
certain prior repositioning actions, resulting in reduced severance liabilities principally in our
Automation and Control Solutions reportable segment.

The following table summarizes the status of our total repositioning reserves.
Severance Asset Exit

Costs Impairments Costs Total
Balance at December 31, 2003.................. $ 171 $ - $ 42 213
2004 charges.................................. 85 21 10 116
2004 usage................................... (138) (21) (26) (185)
Adjustments ................................... (21) - (7) (28)
Balance at December 31, 2004.................. 97- 19 116
2005 charges ................................. 248 5 14 267
2005 usage................................... (156) (5) (15) (176)
Adjustments ................................... (21). - (4) (25)
Balance at December 31, 2005 .................. 168 14 182
2006 charges ................................. 102 15 7 124
2006 usage................................... (134) (15) (8) (157)
Adjustments ................................... (18) - (4) (22)
Balance at December 31, 2006.................. $ 118 $ - $ 9 $ 127

In 2006, we recognized a charge of $210 million for environmental liabilities deemed probable and
reasonably estimable during the year. We recognized asbestos related litigation charges, net of
insurance, of $126 million which are discussed in Note 21. We recognized other charges of $51 million
related to our Corporate segment primarily for the settlement of a property damage claim litigation
matter in Brunswick, GA and our entrance into a plea agreement related to an environmental matter at
our Baton Rouge, LA facility. See Note 21 for discussion of these matters. We recognized impairment
charges of $12 million related to the write-down of property, plant and equipment held for sale in our
Specialty Materials reportable segment. We also recognized a credit of $18 million in connection with
an arbitration award for overcharges by a supplier of phenol to our Specialty Materials business for
2005 transactions.

In 2005, we recognized a charge of $186 million for environmental liabilities deemed probable and
reasonably estimable during the year. We recognized asbestos related litigation charges, net of
insurance, of. $10 million which are discussed in Note 21. We recognized a credit of $67 million in
connection with an arbitration award for overcharges by a supplier of phenol to our Specialty Materials
business from June 2003 through the end of 2004. We recognized impairment charges of $23 million
related to the write-down of property, plant and equipment held and used in our Specialty Materials
reportable segment. We also recognized other charges of $18 million principally related to the
modification of a lease agreement for the Corporate headquarters facility ($10 million) and for various
legal settlements ($7 million).

In 2004, we recognized a charge -of $536 million for probable and reasonably estimable
environmental liabilities primarily related to the estimated costs of the court-ordered excavation and
transport for offsite disposal of approximately one million tons of chromium residue present at a
predecessor Honeywell site located in Jersey City, New Jersey, and environmental conditions in and
around Onondaga Lake in Syracuse, New York. Both of these environmental matters are discussed in
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further detail in Note 21. We recognized asbestos related litigation charges, net of insurance, of $76
million which are discussed in Note 21. We recognized an impairment charge of $42 million in the
second quarter of 2004 related principally to the write-down ,of property, plant and equipment of our
Performance Fibers business in our Specialty Materials reportable segment. This business was sold in
December 2004. We also recognized other charges of $33 million consisting of $29 million for various
legal settlements including property damage claims in our Automation and Control Solutions reportable
segment, $14 million for the write-off of receivables, inventories and other assets net of a reversal of a
reserve of $10 million established in the prior year for a contract settlement.

Note 4-Other (Income)/Expense

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Gain on sale of non-strategic businesses and assets ................ $ (30) $ (36) $(255)(1)
Equity (income)/loss of affiliated companies ......................... (13) (134)(2) (82)(2)
Interest incom e .................................................... (94) (84) (100)
Foreign exchange ................................................. 18 21 28
O ther (net) ........................................................ 8 2 (20)(3)

$(111) $(231) $(429)

(1) Includes pretax gains on the sales of our Security Monitoring and VCSEL Optical Products
businesses of $215 and $36 million, respectively.

(2) Includes equity income of $107 million in 2005 and $71 million in 2004 from UOP (acquisition to full
ownership in November 2005).

(3) Includes recognition of a gain of $27 million related to the settlement of a patent infringement
lawsuit.

Note 5-Interest and Other Financial Charges
Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Total interest and other financial charges .................. $396 $373 $349

Less- capitalized interest ................................. (22) (17) (18)

$374 $356 $331

The weighted average interest rate on short-term borrowings and commercial paper outstanding at
December 31, 2006 and 2005 was 5.67 percent and 4.48 percent, respectively.

Note 6-Income Taxes

Income from continuing operations before taxes
Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

United States ............................................ $1,882 $1,530 $ 821
Foreign .................................................. 916 766 802

$2,798 $2,296 $1,623
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Tax expense
Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

United States' ........................................... $ 412 $ 427 $ 148
Foreign ................................................... 308 305 229 ,

$ 720 $ 732 $ 377

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Tax expense consist of:
Current:

United States . ...................................... $ (39) $ 395 $ 26
S tate ................................................ 26 19 16
Foreign .............................................. 283 276 134

270 690 176

Deferred:
United States ........................................ 376 19 90
S tate ................................................ 49 (6) 16
Foreign .............................................. 25 29 95

450 42 201

$ 720 $ 732 $ 377

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

The U.S. statutory federal income tax rate is reconciled to
our effective income tax rate as follows:

Statutory U.S. federal income tax rate ................ 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Taxes on foreign earnings below U.S. tax rate (1) ..... (4.0) (1.4) (7.4)
Asset basis differences ............................... - (3.6) (.6)
Nondeductible amortization ........................... - .6 1.1
State income taxes (1) ............................... 1.7 .7 1.3
Tax benefits on export sales ......................... (1.9) (3.3) (4.6)
ESOP dividend tax benefit ........................... (.7) (.9) (1.2)
Tax credits .......................................... (.7) (.5) (.6)
Equity incom e ....................................... - (.5) (.6)
Repatriation expense related to American Jobs

Creation Act of 2004 - 6.8 -

Audit Settlements .......... ............ .... (2.9) (.6) -
All other item s- net .................................. (.8) (.4) .8

25.7% 31.9% 23.2%

(1) Net of changes in valuation allowance.
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Deferred tax assets (liabilities)

Deferred income taxes represent the future tax effects of transactions which are reported in
different periods for tax and financial reporting purposes. The tax effects of temporary differences and
tax carryforwards which give rise to future income tax benefits and payables are as follows:

December 31,

2006 2005'

Property, plant and equipment basis differences ................... $ (608) $ (582)
Postretirement benefits other than pensions and postemployment

be nefits ......... .............................................. 747 77 1
Investment and other asset basis differences .... : ................. (396) (31)
O ther accrued item s ............................................. 1,567 642
Net operating and capital losses .................................. 786 841
Tax credits . ................................. ..................... 3 15 408
Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries ............................. (40) (40)
A ll other item s- net .............................................. 43 8

2,414 2,017
Valuation allowance ........................................ (516) (477)

$1,898 $1,540

The Company's effective tax rate decreased by 6.2 percentage points in 2006 compared with
2005, due principally to the absence of the 2005 one-time tax charge of $155 million for the repatriation
of foreign earnings under the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the "Act"), offset, in part, by $64
million of tax benefits associated with the 2005 sale of our Industrial Wax business which h ad a higher
tax basis than book basis. In addition, in 2006, there were benefits recognized from the favorable
resolution of certaih tax audits offset by a tax charge for an up-front licensing of certain in-process
research and development.

The amount of U.S. federal tax net operating losses available for carryforward at December 31,
2006 was $35 million that were generated by certain subsidiaries prior to their acquisition and have
expiration dates through 2024. The use of pre-acquisition operating losses is subject to limitations
imposed by the Internal Revenue Code. We do not anticipate that these limitations will affect utilization
of the carryforwards prior to their expiration. Various subsidiaries have state tax net operating loss
carryforwards of $3.2 billion at December 31, 2006 with varying expiration dates through 2025. We also
have foreign net operating and capital losses of $2.4 billion which are available to reduce future income
tax payments in several countries, subject to varying expiration rules. Included in these losses is $32
million of loss carryforwards related to businesses purchased by Honeywell in 2006.

We have U.S. tax credit carryforwards of $94 million at December 31, 2006, including
carryforwards of $41 million with various expiration dates through 2026 and tax credits of $53 million
which are not subject to expiration. In addition, we have $221 million of foreign tax credits available for
carryback or carryforward on the U.S. federal tax return at December 31, 2006 with varying expiration
dates through 2015.

The valuation allowance against deferred tax assets was increased by $39, $139 and $39 million
in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The 2006 increase in the valuation allowance was primarily due
to an increase in foreign net operating losses attributable to acquired businesses not expected to be
realized and a partial valuation allowance against a deferred tax asset established in connection with
the adoption of SFAS No. 158 partially offset by a decrease in state tax net operating loss
carryforwards (net of federal impact). The 2005 increase in the valuation allowance was primarily due
to an increase in foreign net operating and capital losses and net deferred tax assets attributable to
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acquired businesses not expected to be realized, that was partially offset by a decrease in state tax net
operating loss carryforwards (net of federal impact) and the disallowance of foreign net operating
losses for which a valuation allowance had previously been provided. The 2004 increase in the
valuation allowance was primarily due to an increase in state tax net operating loss carryforwards (net
of federal impact) and foreign net operating and capital losses that are not expected to be realized,
partially offset by a decrease for foreign tax credits which we now believe will be utilized due to the
extension of the foreign tax credit carryforward period from five to 10 years under the Act.

Federal income taxes have not been provided on undistributed earnings of the majority of our
international subsidiaries as it is our intention to reinvest these earnings into the respective businesses.
At December 31, 2006 Honeywell has not provided for U.S. federal income and foreign withholding
taxes on approximately $2.9 billion of such earnings of our non-U.S. operations. It is not practicable to
estimate the amount of tax that might be payable if some or all of such earnings were to be remitted,
and foreign tax credits would be available to reduce or eliminate the resulting U.S. income tax liability.

In 2005, the Company was effected by actions taken relating to certain provisions in the Act which
was signed into law in October 2004 and provides for a variety of changes in the tax law including
incentives to repatriate undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries, a phased elimination of the extra-
territorial income exclusion, and a domestic manufacturing benefit. More specifically, the Act created a
temporary incentive for U.S. corporations to repatriate accumulated income earned outside the U.S. by
providing an 85 percent dividends received deduction for certain dividends from controlled foreign
corporations. In 2005, we repatriated approximately $2.7 billion of foreign earnings, of which $2.2
billion received the benefit under the Act, with an income tax provision of $155 million. No additional
amounts were repatriated under the Act in 2006.

Note 7-Earnings (Loss) Per Share

The following table sets forth the computations of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share:
2006

Assuming
Basic Dilution

2005

Assuming
Basic Dilution

2004

Assuming
Basic Dilution

Income
Income from continuing

operations .................
Income from discontinued

operations, net of taxes .....
Cumulative effect of accounting

change, net of taxes ........

Net incom e ..................

Average shares
Average shares outstanding ...
Dilutive securities issuable in

connection with stock plans..

Total average shares .........

Earnings (loss) per share of
common stock
Income from continuing

operations .................
Income from discontinued

operations, net of taxes .....
Cumulative effect of accounting

change, net of taxes ........

Net incom e ..................

$ 2,078 $ 2,078 $ 1,564 $ 1,564 $ 1,246 $ 1,246

5 5 95 95

- -- (21)

$ 2,083 $ 2,083 $ 1,638

(21)

$ 1,638

820,845,838 820,845,838 848,740,395 848,740,395

$ 1,246 $ 1,246

858,857,721 858,857,721

- 3,475,613

858,857,721 862,333,334

- 5,432,435

820,845,838 826,278,273

- 3,594,592

848,740,395 852,334,987

$ 2.53 $ 2.51 $ 1.85 $ 1.84 $ 1.45 $ 1.45

0.01 0.01 0.11 0.11

- - (0.03)

$ 2.54 $ 2.52 $ 1.93

(0.03)

$. 1.92 $ 1.45 $ 1.45
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In 2006, 2005 and 2004, the diluted earnings per share calculation excludes the effect of stock
options when the options' exercise prices exceed the average market price of the common shares
during the period. In 2006, 2005 and 2004, the number of stock options not included in the
computation were 22,749,056, 17,793,385 and 41,656,606, respectively. These stock options were
outstanding at the end of each of the respective years.

Note 8-Accounts, Notes and Other Receivables
December 31,

2006 2005

Trade ................................................................. $5,373 $4,623
O the r ................................................................ 584 573

5,957 5,196
Less- Allowance for doubtful accounts ................................ (217) (179)

$5,740 $5,017

Trade Accounts Receivable includes $808 and $565 million of unbilled balances under long-term
contracts as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. These amounts are billed in accordance
with the terms of the customer contracts to which they relate.

We sell interests in designated pools of trade accounts receivables to third parties. The sold
receivables are over-collateralized by $171 million at December 31, 2006 and we retain a subordinated
interest in the pool of receivables representing that over-collateralization as well as an undivided
interest in the balance of the receivables pools. New receivables are sold under the agreement as
previously sold receivables are collected. Losses are recognized when our interest in the receivables
are sold. The retained interests in the receivables are shown at the amounts expected to be collected
by us, and such carrying value approximates the fair value of our retained interests. We are
compensated for our services in the collection and administration of the receivables.

December 31,
2006 2005

Designated pools of trade receivables ................................. $1,250 $1,251
Interest sold to third parties .......................................... (500) (500)

Retained interest .................................................. .. $ 750 $ 751

Losses on sales of receivables were $27, $18 and $9 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
No credit losses were incurred during those years.

Note 9-Inventories
December 31,

2006 2005

Raw m aterials ............. ............................................ $1,625 $1,438
W ork in process ..................................................... 808 695
Finished products .................................................... 1,342 1,427

3,775 3,560
Less-
Progress paym ents ................................................... (17) (14)
Reduction to LIFO cost basis ......................................... (170) (145)

$3,588 $3,401
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Inventories valued at LIFO amounted to $205 and $258 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Had such LIFO inventories been valued at current costs, their carrying values would have
been approximately $170 and $145 million higher at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Note 10-Investments and Long-Term Receivables
December 31,

2006 2005

Investm ents .......................................................... $ 49 $ 64
Long-term trade and other receivables ................................ 333 306

$ 382 $ 370

Long-Term Trade and Other Receivables includes $68 and $137 million of unbilled balances under
long-term contracts as of December '31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, These amounts are billed in
accordance with the terms of the customer contracts to which they relate.

Note 11-Property, Plant and Equipment
December 31,

2006 2005

Land and improvements ............................................ $ 408 $ 352
Machinery and equipment .......................................... 9,888 9,381
Buildings and improvements ........................................ 2,056 2,120
Construction in progress ........................................... 447 433

12,799 12,286
Less-Accumulated depreciation and amortization ................... (8,002) (7,628)

$ 4,797 $ 4,658

Depreciation expense was $650, $578 and $572 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Note 12-Goodwill and Other Intangibles-Net

The change in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
by reportable segment are as follows:

Currency
December 31, Translation December 31,

2005 Acquisitions Divestitures Adjustment 2006

Aerospace ..................... $1,723 $ - $ - $22 $1,745
Automation and Control

Solutions .................... 4,333 572 - 54 4,959
Specialty Materials ............ . 1,066 80 (4) 9 1,151
Transportation Systems ........ 538 - - 10 548

$7,660 $652 $ (4) $95 $8,403

64



HONEYWELL INTERNATIONAL INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued)

(Dollars in millions, except. per share amounts)

Currency
December 31, Translation December 31,

2004 Acquisitions Divestitures Adjustment 2005

Aerospace ...................... $1,721 $ 11 $ - $ (9) $1,723
Automation and Control

Solutions .................... 2,954 1,407 - (28) 4,333
Specialty Materials ............. 779 353 (48) (18) 1,066
Transportation Systems ........ 559 - - (21) 538

$6,013 $1,771 $ (48) $ (76) $7,660

Intangible assets are comprised of:

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Gross Net Gross Net

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount

Intangible assets with
determinable lives:

Patents and technology $ 895 $(395) $ 500 $ 821 $(329) $ 492
Customer relationships... 462 (60) 402 260 (15) 245
Trademarks ............. 101 (16) 85 75 (6) 69
Other ................... 418 (265) 153 505 (245) 260

1,876 (736) 1,140 1,661 (595) 1,066
Trademarks with indefinite

lives ...................... 107 - 107 107 - 107
$1,983 $(736) $1,247 $1,768 $(595) $1,173

Intangible assets amortization expense was $144, $75 and $42 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Estimated intangible assets amortization expense for each of the next five years
approximates $150 million in 2007, $140 million in 2008, $140 million in 2009, $130 million in 2010 and
$120 million in 2011.

Note 13-Accrued Liabilities
December 31,

2006 2005

Compensation, benefit and other employee related .......... $1,138 $ 996
Customer advances and deferred income ................... 1,067 932
Incom e taxes .............................................. 418 633
Environm ental costs ........................................ 251 237
Asbestos related liabilities .................................. 557 520
Product warranties and performance guarantees ............. 347 322
R estructuring .............................................. 127 182
Other taxes (payroll, sales, VAT etc.) ........................ 124 102
Insurance .................................................. 110 127
A ccrued interest ........................................... 116 110
Other (primarily operating expenses) ........................ 1,200 1,198

$5,455 $5,359
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Note 14-Long-term Debt and Credit Agreements

85/8% debentures due 2006 .................................
5.25% notes due 2006 .....................................
51½ % notes due 2006 ......................................
7.0% notes due 2007 ......................................
71/8% notes due 2008 ......................................
6.20% notes due 2008 .....................................
Floating rate notes due 2009 ...............................
Zero coupon bonds and money multiplier notes,

13.0% -14.26% , due 2009 ...............................
Floating rate notes due 2009-2011 ..........................
7.50% notes due 2010 .....................................
61/8% notes due 2011 ......................................
5.40% notes due 2016 .....................................
Industrial development bond obligations, floating rate

maturing at various dates through 2037 ...................
65/8% debentures due 2028 .................................
9.065% debentures due 2033 ..............................
5.70% notes due 2036 .....................................
Other (including capitalized leases), 0.53%-16.40%,

maturing at various dates through 2016 ...................

Less- current portion ......................................

December 31,
2006 2005

$ - $ 100
-- 336
-- 500

350 350
200 200
200 200
300

100
239

1,000
500
400

65
216

51
550

161

4,332
(423)

$3,909

100
249

1,000
500

65
216

51

210

4,077
995)

$3,082

The schedule of principal payments on long-term debt is as follows:
At December 31,

2006

2 0 0 7 ............................................................... $ 4 2 3
2 0 0 8 ......................................... ...................... 4 1 6
2 0 0 9 ............................................................... 5 1 1
2 0 10 ............................................................... 1 ,13 0
2 0 1 1 ............................................................... 5 2 6
T hereafter .......................................................... 1,326

4,332
Less- current portion ............................................... (423)

$3,909

We maintain a $2.3 billion five year revolving credit facility with a group of banks, arranged by
Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and J.PMorgan Securities Inc. This credit facility contains a $500 million
sub-limit for the issuance of letters of credit. The $2.3 billion credit facility is maintained for general
corporate purposes, including support for the issuance of commercial paper. We had no borrowings
outstanding under the credit facility at December 31, 2006. We have issued $145 million of letters of
credit under the credit facility at December 31, 2006.

The credit agreement does not restrict our ability to pay dividends and contains no financial
covenants. The failure to comply with customary conditions or the occurrence of customary events of
default contained in the credit agreement would prevent any further borrowings and would generally
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require the repayment of any outstanding borrowings under the credit agreement. Such events of
default include: (a) non-payment of credit agreement debt, interest or fees; (b) non-compliance with the
terms of the credit agreement covenants; (c) cross-default to other debt in certain circumstances; (d)
bankruptcy; and (e) defaults upon obligations under Employee Retirement Income Security Act.
Additionally, each of the banks has the right to terminate its commitment to lend additional funds or
issue letters of credit under the agreement if any person or group acquires beneficial ownership of 30
percent or more of our voting stock, or, during any 12-month period, individuals who were directors of
Honeywell at the beginning of the period cease to constitute a majority of the Board of Directors (the
Board).

Loans under the $2.3 billion credit facility are required to be repaid no later than April 27, 2011.
We have agreed to pay a facility fee of 0.06 percent per annum on the aggregate commitment.

Interest on borrowings under the $2.3 billion credit facility would be determined, at Honeywell's
option, by (a) an auction bidding procedure; (b) the highest of the floating base rate publicly announced
by Citibank, N.A., 0.5 percent above the average CD rate, or 0.5 percent above the Federal funds rate;
or (c) the Eurocurrency rate plus 0.14 percent (applicable margin).

The facility fee, the applicable margin over the Eurocurrency rate and the letter of credit issuance
fee, are subject to change, based upon a grid determined by our long term debt ratings. The credit
agreement is not subject to termination based upon a decrease in our debt ratings or a material
adverse change.

A 364-Day Canadian dollar credit facility arranged by Citibank, N.A., Canadian Branch was
renewed on September 8, 2006, for 220 million Canadian dollars. The facility was established for
general corporate purposes, including support for the issuance of commercial paper in Canada. There
are no borrowings outstanding under this credit facility at December 31, 2006. We have agreed to pay
a facility fee of 0.06 percent per annum on the commitment amount. Interest on borrowings under this
facility would be determined, at Honeywell's option, by (a) the highest of the floating base rate publicly
announced by Citibank, N.A., 0.5 percent above the average CD rate, or 0.5 percent above the Federal
funds rate; (b) the highest of the Canadian dollar prime rate publicly announced by Citibank, N.A. or
0.5 percent above the Canadian dollar bankers' acceptance; or (c) the Eurocurrency rate or bankers'
acceptance plus 0.24 percent (applicable margin).

In March. 2006, the Company issued $300 million of floating rate (LIBOR + 6 bps) Senior Notes
due 2009, $400 million 5.40% Senior Notes due 2016 and $550 million 5.70% Senior Notes due 2036
(collectively, the "Notes"). The Notes are senior unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of
Honeywell and rank equally with all of Honeywell's existing and future senior unsecured debt and
senior to all Honeywell's subordinated debt. The offering resulted in gross proceeds of $1,250 million,
offset by $11 million in discount and closing costs relating to the offering.

During the first quarter of 2006, the Company made a cash tender offer and repurchased $225
million of its $500 million 5.125% Notes due November 2006. The costs -relating to the early
redemption of the Notes were immaterial.
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Note 15-Lease Commitments

Future minimum lease payments under operating leases having initial or remaining noncancellable
lease terms in excess of one year are as follows:

At December 31,
2006

2007 ...................................................... $ 304
2008 ........................................................ 222
2 0 0 9 ................................................................ 15 5
2010 ......................................................... 100
2 0 1 1 . . .. . . .. . . . . . .. . . . .. . . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . . .. . . . 7 4
T he reafte r .............. ............................................ 223

$1,078

We have entered into agreements to lease land, equipment and buildings. Principally all our
operating leases have initial terms of up to 25 years, and some contain renewal options subject to
customary conditions. At any time during the terms of some of our leases, we may at our option
purchase the leased assets for amounts that approximate fair value. We do not expect that any of our
commitments under the lease agreements will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated
results of operations, financial position or liquidity.

Rent expense was $341, $326 and $321 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Note 16-Financial Instruments

Credit and Market Risk-Financial instruments, including derivatives, expose us to counterparty
credit risk for nonperformance and to market risk related to changes in interest or currency exchange
rates. We manage our exposure to counterparty credit risk through specific minimum credit standards,
diversification of counterparties, and procedures to monitor concentrations of credit risk. Our
counterparties in derivative transactions are substantial investment and commercial banks with
significant experience using such derivative instruments. We monitor the impact of market risk on the
fair value and cash flows of our derivative and other financial instruments considering reasonably
possible changes in interest and currency exchange rates and restrict the use of derivative financial
instruments to hedging activities.

We continually monitor the creditworthiness of our customers to which we grant credit terms in the
normal course of business. While concentrations of credit risk associated with our trade accounts and
notes receivable are considered minimal due to our diverse customer base, a significant portion of our
customers are in the commercial air transport industry (aircraft manufacturers and airlines) accounting
for approximately 21 percent of our consolidated sales in 2006. The terms and conditions of our credit
sales are designed to mitigate or eliminate concentrations of credit risk with any single customer. Our
sales are not materially dependent on a single customer or a small group of customers.

Foreign Currency Risk Management-We conduct our business on a multinational basis in a
wide variety of foreign currencies. Our exposure to market risk for changes in foreign currency
exchange rates arises from international financing activities between subsidiaries, foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities and anticipated transactions arising from international
trade. Our objective is to preserve the economic value of non-functional currency denominated cash
flows. We attempt to have all transaction exposures hedged with natural offsets to the fullest extent
possible and, once these opportunities have been exhausted, through foreign currency forward and
option agreements with third parties. Our principal currency exposures relate to the U.S. dollar, Euro,
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the British pound, the Canadian dollar, the Hong Kong dollar, the Chinese renminbi, and the Singapore
dollar.

We hedge monetary assets and liabilities denominated in non-functional currencies. Prior to
conversion into U.S dollars, these assets and liabilities are remeasured at spot exchange rates in effect
on the balance sheet date. The effects of changes in spot rates are recognized in earnings and
included in Other/(Income) Expense. We hedge our exposure to changes in foreign exchange rates
principally with forward contracts. Forward contracts are marked-to-market with the resulting gains and
losses similarly recognized in earnings offsetting the gains and losses on the non-functional currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities being hedged.

We partially hedge forecasted 2007 sales and purchases denominated in non-functional
currencies with currency forward contracts. When a functional currency strengthens against non-
functional currencies, the decline in value of forecasted non-functional currency cash inflows (sales) or
outflows (purchases) is partially offset by the recognition of gains (sales) and losses (purchases),
respectively, in the value of the forward contracts designated as hedges. Conversely, when a functional
currency weakens against non-functional currencies, the increase in value of forecasted non-functional
currency cash inflows (sales) or outflows (purchases) is partially offset by the recognition of losses
(sales) and gains (purchases), respectively, in the value of the forward contracts designated as hedges.
Market value gains and losses on these contracts are recognized in earnings when the hedged
transaction is recognized. All open forward contracts mature by December 31, 2007.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, we had contracts with notional amounts of $2,572 and $1,998
million, respectively, to exchange foreign currencies, principally in the Euro countries and Great Britain.

Commodity Price Risk Management-Our exposure to market risk for commodity prices can
result in changes in our cost of production. We primarily mitigate our exposure to commodity price risk
through the use of long-term, fixed-price contracts with our suppliers and formula price agreements
with suppliers and customers. We also enter into forward commodity purchase agreements with third
parties designated as hedges of anticipated purchases of several commodities. Forward commodity
purchase agreements are marked-to-market, with the resulting gains and losses recognized in
earnings when the hedged transaction is recognized.

Interest Rate Risk Management-We use a combination of financial instruments, including
long-term, medium-term and short-term financing, variable-rate commercial paper, and interest rate
swaps to manage the interest rate mix of our total debt portfolio and related overall cost of borrowing.
At December 31, 2006 and 2005, interest rate swap agreements designated as fair value hedges
effectively changed $700 and $681 million, respectively, of fixed rate debt at an average rate of 6.38
and 6.15 percent, respectively, to LIBOR based floating rate debt. Our interest rate swaps mature
through 2028.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments-The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, trade
accounts and notes receivables, payables, commercial paper and short-term borrowings contained in
the Consolidated Balance Sheet approximates fair value. Summarized below are the carrying values
and fair values of our other financial instruments at December 31, 2006 and 2005. The fair values are
based on the quoted market prices for the issues (if traded), current rates offered to us for debt of the
same remaining maturity and characteristics, or other valuation techniques, as appropriate.
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December 31, 2006 December 31, 2005
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair

Value Value Value Value

Assets
Long-term receivables ............... $ 333 $ 306 $ 306 $ 285
Interest rate swap agreements ....... 3 3 9 9
Foreign currency exchange contracts 3 3 3 3
Forward commodity contracts ....... - - 18 18

Liabilities
Long-term debt and related current

maturities ......................... $(4,332) $(4,521) $(4,077) $(4,291)
Foreign currency exchange contracts (3) (3) (5) (5)
Forward commodity contracts ........ (9) (9) (1) (1)

Note 17-Other Liabilities

Other liabilities consist of the following:
December 31,

2006 2005

Pension and other employee related .......................... $1,748 $2,010
Environmental ................. 580 642
Incom e taxes ................................................ 575 569
Insurance ................................................... 134 55
Asset retirement obligations (1) ............................... 92 88
Deferred incom e ............................................. 56 28
O ther ....................................................... 288 298

$3,473 $3,690

(1) Asset retirement obligations primarily relate to costs associated with the future retirement of nuclear
fuel conversion facilities in our Specialty Materials reportable segment and the future retirement of
facilities in our Automation and Control Solutions reportable segment.

A reconciliation of our liability for asset retirement obligations for the year ended December 31,
2006, is as follows:

Balance at December 31, 2005 ......................................... $ 88
Liabilities settled ........................................................ (3 )
A djustm e nts ............................................................ 2
Accretion expense ...................................................... 5

Balance at December 31, 2006 ......................................... $ 92

Note 18-Capital Stock

We are authorized to issue up to 2,000,000,000 shares of common stock, with a par value of one
dollar. Common shareowners are entitled to receive such dividends as may be declared by the Board,
are entitled to one vote per share, and are entitled, in the event of liquidation, to share ratably in all the
assets of Honeywell which are available for distribution to the common shareowners. Common
shareowners do not have preemptive or conversion rights. Shares of common stock issued and
outstanding or held in the treasury are not liable to further calls or assessments. There are no
restrictions on us relative to dividends or the repurchase or redemption of common stock.
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In November 2005, Honeywell's Board authorized the Company to repurchase up to $3 billion of
its common stock. As of December 31, 2006, $709 million of additional shares may yet be purchased
under this program. The amount and timing of repurchases may vary depending on market conditions
and the level of other investing activities.

We are authorized to issue up to 40,000,000 shares of preferred stock, without par value, and can
determine the number of shares of each series, and the rights, preferences and limitations of each.
series. At December 31, 2006, there was no preferred stock outstanding.

Note 19-Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) is included in the Consolidated Statement
of Shareowners' Equity. The changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) are as
follows:

After-
Pretax Tax Tax

Year Ended December 31, 2006
Foreign exchange translation adjustments ..................... $ 233 $ - $ 233
Change in fair value of effective cash flow hedges ............ (5) 2 (3)
Minimum pension liability adjustment ......................... 268 (72) 196
Pension and postretirement benefit adjustment ................ (2,620) 912 (1,708)

$(2,124) $842 $(1,282)

Year Ended December 31, 2005
Foreign exchange translation adjustments ..................... $ (147) $ - $ (147)
Minimum pension liability adjustment ......................... (26) 10 (16)

$ (173) $ 10 $ (163)

Year Ended December 31, 2004
Foreign exchange translation adjustments ..................... $ 351 $ - $ 351
Change in fair value of effective cash flow hedges ............ (15) 6 (9)
Minimum pension liability adjustment ......................... (19) 4 (15)

$ 317 $ 10 $ 327

The components of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) are as follows:
December 31,
2006 2005

Cumulative foreign exchange translation adjustments ................... $ 575 $ 342
Fair value of effective cash flow hedges ............................... 5 8
Pension and postretirement benefit adjustment ......................... (1,887) -
Minimum pension liability ............................................ - (375)

$(1,307) $(25)
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Note 20-Stock-Based Compensation Plans
We have stock-based compensation plans available to grant non-qualified stock options, incentive

stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted units and restricted stock to key employees. Under
the 2006 Stock Incentive Plan of Honeywell International Inc. and its Affiliates (the Plan), which was
approved by the shareowners at the Annual Meeting of Shareowners and became effective on April 24,
2006, a maximum of 43 million shares of common stock may be awarded. We expect that common
stock awarded on an annual basis will be between 1.0 and 1.5 percent of total common stock
outstanding. Following approval of the Plan on April 24, 2006, we will not grant any new awards under
any previously existing stock-based compensation plans. Additionally, under the 2006 Stock Plan for
Non-Employee Directors of Honeywell International Inc. (the Directors Plan), which was approved by
the shareowners at the Annual Meeting of Shareowners and became effective on April 24, 2006,
500,000 shares of Honeywell common stock may be awarded. The Directors Plan replaces the 1994
Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors of Honeywell International Inc.

Stock Options-The exercise price, term and other conditions applicable to each option granted
under our stock plans are generally determined by the Management Development and Compensation
Committee of the Board. The exercise price of stock options is set on the grant date and may not be
less than the fair market value per share of our stock on that date. The fair value is recognized as an
expense over the employee's requisite service period (generally the vesting period of the award).
Options have generally vested over a three-year period and expire after ten years. Starting with 2007
option grants the vesting period will be extended to four years.

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model. Expected volatility is based on implied volatilities from traded options on
Honeywell stock. We used a Monte Carlo simulation model to derive an expected term. Such model
uses historical data to estimate option exercise activity and post-vest termination behavior. The
expected term represents an estimate of the time options are expected to remain outstanding. The
risk-free rate for periods within the contractual life of the option is based on the U.S. treasury yield
curve in effect at the time of grant.

The fair value of each stock option grant made during 2006 was estimated on the grant-date using
the Black-Scholes model using the following weighted-average assumptions consistent with the
requirements of SFAS No. 123R.

Year Ended
December 31, 2006

Expected volatility ............................................................ 22.32%
Expected annual dividend yield ............................................... 2.15%
Risk-free rate of return ....................................................... 4.63%
Expected option term (years) ................................................. 5.0
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The following table summarizes information about stock option activity for the three years ended
December 31, 2006:

Outstanding at December 31, 2003 .............................
G ra nte d ...................................................
E xe rc ised .................................................
Lapsed or canceled .......................................

Outstanding at December 31, 2004 .............................
G ra nte d ...................................................
E xe rc ised .................................................
Lapsed or canceled .......................................

Outstanding at December 31, 2005 .............................
G ra nte d ...................................................
E xe rcise d .................................................
Lapsed or canceled .......................................

Outstanding at December 31, 2006 .............................

Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2006(1) ..........

Exercisable at December 31, 2006 .............................

Number of
Options

54,444,346
9,469,800

(2,955,232)
(2,433,985)

58,524,929
10,327,350
(5,372,501)
(4,261,523)

59,218,255
9,193,200

(11,466,491)
(2,712,287)

54,232,677

52,076,411

37,902,956

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

$37.68
35.49
21.20
39.41
38.09
36.75
29.07
40.46
38.50
42.35
33.61
42.27

$39.98

$39.76

$40.16

(1) The expected to vest options are the result of applying the pre-vesting forfeiture rate assumption to
total .outstanding options.

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at
December 31, 2006:

Range of exercise prices

$21.75-$32.63 ......................
$33.00-$49.50 ......................
$49.97-$74.95 ......................

Number
Outstanding

5,197,055
42,845,66g

6,189,953

54,232,67

Options Outstanding
Weighted

Weighted Average
Average Exercise
Life(l) Price

5 6.07 $24.07
9 6.08 38.66
3 2.79 62.60

7 5.70 39.98

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value

$111
295

$406

Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Aggregate

Number Exercise Intrinsic
Exercisable Price Value

5,151,345 $24.03 $110
26,561,771 38.08 200

6,189,840 62.60 -

37,902,956 40.16 $310

(1) Average remaining contractual life in years.

There were 42,416,585 and 43,343,099 options exercisable at weighted average exercise prices of
$40.01 and $40.36 at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. There were 43,341,460 shares
available for future grants under the terms of our stock option plans at December 31, 2006.

The weighted average fair value of options granted in 2006 was $9.44. The total intrinsic value of
options (which is the amount by which the stock price exceeded the exercise price of the options on the
date of exercise) exercised during 2006 was $92 million. During 2006, the amount of cash received
from the exercise of stock options was $385 million with an associated tax benefit realized of
$34 million. Consistent with the requirements of SFAS No. 123R, we classified $31 million of this
benefit as a financing cash inflow in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, and the balance was
classified as cash from operations.

At December 31, 2006, there was $90 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to
non-vested stock option awards which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of
1.59 years. The total fair value of options .vested during 2006 was $70 million.
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Restricted Stock Units-Restricted stock unit (RSU) awards entitle the holder to receive one
share of common stock for each unit when the units vest. RSU's are issued to certain key employees at
fair market value at the date of grant as compensation. RSUs typically become fully vested over
periods ranging from three to seven years and are payable in Honeywell common stock upon vesting.

The following table summarizes information about RSU activity for the three years ended
December 31, 2006:

Non-vested at December 31, 2003 .......................................
G ra nte d ............................................................
V e ste d .............................................................
F o rfe ite d ...........................................................

Non-vested at December 31, 2004 .......................................
G ra nte d .................. ..........................................
V e ste d .............................................................
F o rfe ite d ...........................................................

Non-vested at December 31, 2005 .......................................
G ra nte d ................. ..........................................
V e ste d .............................................................
F o rfe ite d ...........................................................

Non-vested at December 31, 2006 .......................................

As of December 31, 2006, there was approximately $113 million

Weighted
Average

Grant Date
Number of Fair Value
Restricted Per

Stock Units Share

3,103,513 $30.10
980,706 $35.63

(205,463) $34.91
(187,200) $32.14

3,691,556 $31.20
1,163,984 $37.39
(424,175) $32.84
(465,834) $30.11

3,965,531 $32.97
1,948,650 $39.11
(759,015) $30.04
(403,167) $34.25

4,751,999 $35.85

of total unrecognized
compensation cost related to non-vested RSUs granted under our stock plans which is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.36 years. Compensation expense related to RSUs was
$29, $24 and $24 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. At December 31, 2006, the Company
reclassified $112 million of obligations to equity for restricted and deferred stock awards that are settled
in equity.

Non-Employee Directors' Plan-Under the Directors' Plan each new director receives a one-
time grant of 3,000 shares of common stock, subject to specific restrictions.

The Directors' Plan also provides for an annual grant to each director of options to purchase 5,000
shares of common stock at the fair market value on the date of grant. Options have generally become
exercisable over a three-year period and expire after ten years. Starting with 2007 option grants the
vesting period will be extended to four years.

Note 21-Commitments and Contingencies

Environmental Matters

We are subject to various federal, state, local and foreign government requirements relating to the
protection of the environment. We believe that, as a general matter, our policies, practices and
procedures are properly designed to prevent unreasonable risk of environmental damage and personal
injury and that our handling, manufacture, use and disposal of hazardous or toxic substances are in
accordance with environmental and safety laws and regulations. However, mainly because of past
operations and operations of predecessor companies, we, like other companies engaged in similar
businesses, have incurred remedial response and voluntary cleanup costs for site contamination and
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are a party to lawsuits and claims associated with environmental and safety matters, including past
production of products containing toxic substances. Additional lawsuits, claims and costs involving
environmental matters are likely to continue to arise in the future.

With respect to environmental matters involving site contamination, we continually conduct studies,
individually or jointly with other potentially responsible parties, to determine the feasibility of various
remedial techniques to address environmental matters. It is our policy to record appropriate liabilities
for environmental matters when remedial efforts or damage claim payments are probable and the costs
can be reasonably estimated. Such liabilities are based on our best estimate of the undiscounted future
costs required to complete the remedial work. The recorded liabilities are adjusted periodically as
remediation efforts progress or as additional technical or legal information becomes available. Given
the uncertainties regarding the status of laws, regulations, enforcement policies, the impact of other
potentially responsible parties, technology and information related to individual sites, we do not believe
it is possible to develop an estimate of the range of reasonably possible environmental loss in excess
of our accruals. We expect to fund expenditures for these matters from operating cash flow. The timing
of cash expenditures depends on a number of factors, including the timing of remedial investigations
and feasibility studies, the timing of litigation and settlements of remediation liability, personal injury and
property damage claims, regulatory approval of cleanup projects, remedial techniques to be utilized
and agreements with other parties. The following table summarizes information concerning our
recorded liabilities for environmental costs:

Years Ended
December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Beginning of year ....................................................... $ 879 $ 895 $593
Accruals for environmental matters deemed probable and reasonably

estim able ............................................................. 218 186 536
Environmental liability payments .......................................... (264) (247) (248)
O ther adjustm ents(1) .................................................... (2) 45 14

End of year ............................................................. $ 831 $ .879 $895

(1) In 2005, $45 million principally relates to reclassification of the carrying value of land to property,
plant and equipment with a corresponding increase to environmental liabilities.,

Environmental liabilities are included in the following balance sheet accounts:

December 31,
2006 2005

A ccrued liabilities ................................................................ $251 $237
O the r liabilities ............................................... ................... 580 642

$831 $879

Although we do not currently possess sufficient information to reasonably estimate the amounts of
liabilities to be recorded upon future completion of studies, litigation or settlements, and neither the
timing nor the amount of the ultimate costs associated with enVironmental matters can be determined,
they could be material to our consolidated results of operations or operating cash flows in the periods
recognized or paid. However, considering our past experience and existing reserves, we do not expect
that these environmental matters will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial
position.
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New Jersey Chrome 'Sites-Provisions have been made in our financial statements for the
estimated costs of the court-ordered excavation and transport for offsite disposal of approximately one
million tons of chromium residue present at a predecessor Honeywell site located in Jersey City, New
Jersey, which are expected to be incurred evenly over a five-year period that started in April 2006. We
do not expect implementation of this remedy to have a material adverse effect on our future
consolidated results of operations, operating cash flows or financial position. Provision also has been
made in our financial statements for the estimated costs of implementing groundwater and sediment
remedial plans, which have been proposed for the site and are presently under review by the court in
which litigation concerning the site is pending. The ultimate cost of remediating the river sediments
may be reduced as numerous third parties could be responsible for an as yet undetermined portion of
these costs.

The above-referenced site is the most significant of the twenty-one sites located in Hudson
County, New Jersey which are the subject of an Administrative Consent Order (ACO) entered into with
the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (NJDEP) in 1993. Remedial investigations
and activities consistent with the ACO have been conducted and are underway at the other sites (the
"Honeywell ACO Sites"). We have recorded reserves for the Honeywell ACO Sites where appropriate
under the accounting policy described above.

On May 3, 2005, NJDEP filed a lawsuit in New Jersey Superior Court against Honeywell and two
other companies seeking declaratory and injunctive relief, unspecified damages, and the
reimbursement of unspecified total costs relating to sites in New Jersey allegedly contaminated with
chrome ore processing residue. The claims against Honeywell relate to the activities of a predecessor
company which ceased its New Jersey manufacturing operations in the mid-1950's. While the
complaint is not entirely clear, it appears that approximately 100 sites are at issue, including 17 of the
Honeywell ACO Sites, sites that the other two companies have agreed to remediate under separate
administrative consent orders, as well as approximately 53 other sites (identified in the complaint as
the "Publicly Funded Sites") for which none of the three companies has signed an administrative
consent order. In addition to claims specific to each company, NJDEP claims that all three companies
should be collectively liable for all the chrome sites based on a "market share" theory. In addition,
NJDEP is seeking treble damages for all costs it has incurred or will incur at the Publicly Funded Sites.
Honeywell believes that it has no connection with the sites covered by the other companies'
administrative consent orders and, therefore, has no responsibility for those sites. At the Honeywell
ACO Sites, we are conducting remedial investigations and activities consistent with the ACO; thus, we
doý not believe the lawsuit will significantly change our obligations with respect to the Honeywell ACO
Sites. Lawsuits have also been filed against Honeywell in the District Court under the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) by two New Jersey municipal utilities seeking the cleanup of
chromium residue at two Honeywell ACO sites and by a citizens' group against Honeywell and thirteen
other defendants with respect to contamination on about a dozen of the Honeywell ACO Sites.
Discovery is underway in these cases. For the reasons stated above, we do not believe these lawsuits
will significantly change our obligations with respect to the Honeywell ACO sites.

Although it is not possible at this time to predict the outcome of the litigation and administrative
proceedings discussed above, we believe that the allegations are without merit and we intend to
vigorously defend against these lawsuits. We do not expect these matters to have a material adverse
effect on our consolidated financial position. While we expect to prevail, an adverse litigation outcome
could have a material adverse impact on our consolidated results of operations and operating cash
flows in the periods recognized or paid.

Onondaga Lake, Syracuse, NY-A predecessor company to Honeywell operated a chemical
plant which is alleged to have contributed mercury and other contaminants to the Lake. In July 2005,
the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation (the DEC) issued its Record of
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Decision with respect to remediation of industrial contamination in the Lake. In October 2006,
Honeywell entered into a Consent Decree with the State of New York to implement the remedy set
forth in the Record of Decision. In January 2007, the Consent Decree was approved by the United
States District Court for the Northern District of New York.

The Record of Decision calls for a combined dredging/capping remedy generally in line with the
approach recommended in the Feasibility Study submitted by Honeywell in May 2004. Based on
currently available information and analysis performed by our engineering consultants, we have
accrued for our estimated cost of implementing the remedy'set forth in the Record of Decision* Our
estimating process considered a range of possible outcomes and the amounts recorded reflect our
best estimate at this time. Given the scope and complexity of this project, it is possible that actual costs
could exceed estimated costs by an amount that could have a material adverse impact on our
consolidated results of operations and operating cash flows in the periods recognized or paid. At this
time, however, we cannot identify any legal, regulatory or technical reason to conclude that a specific
alternative outcome is more probable than the outcome for which we have made provisions in our
financial statements. The DEC's aggregate cost estimate, which is higher than the amount reserved, is
based on the high end of the range of potential costs for major elements of the Record of Decision and
includes a contingency. The actual cost of the Record of Decision will depend upon, among other
things, the resolution of certain technical issues during the design phase of the remediation. We do not
believe that this matter will have a material adverse impact on our consolidated financial position. In
December 2006, the United States Fish and Wildlife Service published notice of its intent to pursue
natural resource damages related to the site. It is not possible to predict the outcome or timing of its
assessments, which are typically lengthy processes lasting several years, or the amounts of or
responsibility for these damages.

Dundalk Marine Terminal, Baltimore-Chrome residue from legacy chrome plant operations in
Baltimore was deposited as fill at the Dundalk Marine Terminal ("DMT"), which is owned and operated
by the Maryland Port Administration ("MPA"). Honeywell and the MPA have been sharing costs to
investigate and mitigate related environmental issues, and have entered into a cost sharing agreement
under which Honeywell will bear a 77 percent share of the costs of developing and implementing
permanent remedies for the DMT facility. The investigative phase (which began in April 2006) is
expected to take approximately 18 to 36 months, after which the appropriate remedies will be identified
and chosen. We have negotiated a Consent Decree with the MPA and Maryland Department of the
Environment ('MDE") with respect to the investigation and remediation of the DMT facility, and that
Consent Decree was filed with the Maryland state court for Baltimore County, Maryland. BUILD, a
Baltimore community group, together with a local church and two individuals, have intervened and are
challenging the Consent Decree. We do not believe that this matter will have a material adverse impact
on our consolidated financial position or operating cash flows. Given the scope and complexity of this
project, it is possible that the cost of remediation, when determinable, could have a material adverse
impact on our results of operations in the periods recognized.

Asbestos Matters

Like many other industrial companies, Honeywell is a defendant in personal injury actions related
to asbestos. We did not mine or produce asbestos, nor did we make or sell insulation products or other
construction materials that have been identified as the primary cause of asbestos related disease in
the vast majority of claimants. Products containing asbestos previously manufactured by Honeywell or
by previously owned subsidiaries primarily fall into two general categories: refractory products and
friction products.

Refractory Products-Honeywell owned North American Refractories Company (NARCO) from
1979 to 1986. NARCO produced refractory products (high temperature bricks and cement) that were
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sold largely to the steel industry in the East and Midwest. Less than 2 percent of NARCO'S products
contained asbestos.

When we sold the NARCO business in 1986, we agreed to indemnify NARCO with respect to
personal injury claims for products that had been discontinued prior to the sale (as defined in the sale
agreement). NARCO retained all liability for all other claims. On January 4, 2002, NARCO filed for
reorganization under Chapter 11 of the U.S Bankruptcy Code.

As a result of the NARCO bankruptcy filing, all of the claims pending against NARCO are
automatically stayed pending the reorganization of NARCO. In addition, the bankruptcy court enjoined
both the filing and prosecution of NARCO-related asbestos claims against Honeywell. Although the
stay has remained in effect continuously since January 4, 2002, there is no assurance that such stay
will remain in effect. In connection with NARCO's bankruptcy filing, we paid NARCO's parent company
$40 million and agreed to provide NARCO with up to $20 million in financing. We also agreed to pay
$20 million to NARCO's parent company upon the filing of a plan of reorganization for NARCO
acceptable to Honeywell (which amount was paid in December 2005 following the filing of NARCO's
Third Amended Plan of Reorganization), and to pay NARCO's parent company $40 million, and to
forgive any outstanding NARCO indebtedness to Honeywell, upon the effective date of the plan of
reorganization.

We believe that, as part of NARCO plan of reorganization, a trust will be established for the benefit
of all asbestos claimants, current and future, pursuant to Trust Distribution Procedures negotiated with
the NARCO Asbestos Claimants Committee and the Court-appointed legal representative for future
asbestos claimants. If the trust is put in place and approved by the Court as fair and equitable,
Honeywell as well as NARCO will be entitled to a permanent channeling injunction barring all present
and future individual actions in state or federal courts and requiring all asbestos related claims based
on exposure to NARCO products to be made against the federally-supervised trust. Honeywell has
reached agreement with the representative for future NARCO claimants and the Asbestos Claimants
Committee to cap its annual contributions to the trust with respect to future claims at a level that would
not have a material impact on Honeywell's operating cash flows.

The vast majority of the asbestos claimants have voted in favor of NARCO's Third Amended Plan
Of Reorganization (NARCO Plan). The court conducted its evidentiary hearing on confirmation issues
on June 5 and 6, 2006. All objections to the NARCO Plan have either been resolved or dismissed by
the Bankruptcy Court. The Court's confirmation order for the NARCO Plan may be delayed, howeveri,
due to additional evidentiary requirements relating to the confirmation of a plan of reorganization for
one of NARCO's affiliates. Although we expect the NARCO Plan and the NARCO trust to be ultimately
approved by the Court, no assurances can be given as to the Court's ruling or the time frame for
resolving any appeals of such ruling.

Our consolidated financial statements reflect an estimated liability for settlement of pending and
future NARCO-related asbestos claims as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 of $1.3 and $1.8 billion,
respectively. The estimated liability for pending claims is based on terms and conditions, including
evidentiary requirements, in definitive agreements with approximately 260,0,00 current claimants, and
an estimate of the unsettled claims pending as of the time NARCO filed for bankruptcy protection.
Substantially all settlement payments with respect to current claims are expected to be completed by
the end of 2007. Approximately $90 million of payments due pursuant to these settlements is due only
upon establishment of the NARCO trust.

The estimated liability for future claims represents the estimated value of future asbestos related
bodily injury claims expected to be asserted against NARCO through 2018 and the aforementioned
obligations to NARCO's parent.•In light of the uncertainties inherent in making long-term projections we
do not believe that we have a reasonable basis for estimating asbestos claims beyond 2018 under
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SFAS No. 5, "Accounting for Contingencies". The estimate is based upon the disease criteria and
payment values contained in the NARCO Trust Distribution Procedures negotiated with the NARCO
Asbestos Claimants Committee and the NARCO future claimants' representative. Honeywell projected
the probable number and value, including trust claim handling costs, of asbestos related future
liabilities based upon historical experience with similar trusts. The methodology used to estimate the
liability for future claims has been commonly accepted by numerous courts and is the same
methodology that is utilized by an expert who is routinely retained by the asbestos claimants committee
in asbestos related bankruptcies. The valuation methodology includes an analysis of the population
likely to have been exposed to asbestos containing products, epidemiological studies to estimate the
number of people likely to develop asbestos related diseases, NARCO claims filing history, the pending
inventory of NARCO asbestos related claims and payment rates expected to be established by the
NARCO trust. In December 2006, (as a result of significantly varying experiences of asbestos claims
filing rates in the tort system and in certain operating asbestos trusts) and the changing claims
experience in those forums (as a result of more clearly defined proof requirements and possible
enactment of state medical criteria bills), we updated the range of estimated liability for future NARCO7
related claims. Such update resulted in a range of estimated liability for future claims of $743 to
$961 million. We believe that no amount within this range is a better estimate than any other amount.
Accordingly, we recorded the minimum amount in the range which resulted in a reduction of
$207 million in our estimated liability for future NARCO-related asbestos claims.

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, our consolidated financial statements reflect an insurance
receivable corresponding to the liability for settlement of pending and future NARCO-related asbestos
claims of $955 million and $1.1 billion, respectively. This coverage reimburses Honeywell for portions of
the costs incurred to settle NARCO related claims and court judgments as well as defense costs and is
provided by a large number of insurance policies written by dozens of insurance companies in both the
domestic insurance market and the London excess market. At December 31, 2006, a significant
portion of this coverage is with insurance companies with whom we have agreements to pay full policy
limits based on corresponding Honeywell claims costs. We conduct analyses to determine the amount
of insurance that we estimate is probable of recovery in relation to payment of current and estimated
future claims. 'While the substantial majority of our insurance carriers are solvent, some of our
individual carriers are insolvent, which has been considered in our analysis of probable recoveries. We
made judgments concerning insurance coverage that we believe are reasonable and consistent with
our historical dealings with our insurers, our knowledge of any pertinent solvency issues surrounding
insurers and various judicial determinations relevant to our insurance programs.

In the second quarter of 2006, Travelers Casualty and Insurance Company ("Travelers") filed a
lawsuit against Honeywell and other insurance carriers in the Supreme Court of New York, County of
New York, disputing obligations for NARCO-related asbestos claims under high excess insurance
coverage issued by Travelers and other insurance carriers. Approximately $370 million of coverage
under these policies is included in our NARCO-related insurance receivable at December 31, 2006.
Honeywell believes it is entitled to the coverage at issue and has filed counterclaims in the Superior
Court of New Jersey seeking, among other things, declaratory relief with respect to this coverage.
Although Honeywell expects to prevail in this matter, an adverse outcome could have a material impact
on our results of operations in the period recognized but would not be material to our consolidated
financial position or operating cash flows.

Projecting future events is subject to many uncertainties that could cause the NARCO related
asbestos liabilities or assets to be higher or lower than those projected and recorded. There is no
assurance that a plan of reorganization will be confirmed, that insurance recoveries will be timely or
whether there will be any NARCO related asbestos claims beyond 2018. Given the inherent
uncertainty in predicting future events, we review our estimates periodically, and update them based on
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our, experience and other relevant factors. Similarly we will reevaluate our projections concerning our
probable insurance recoveries in light of any changes to the projected liability or other developments
that may impact insurance recoveries.

Friction Products-Honeywell's Bendix friction materials (Bendix) business manufactured
automotive brake pads that contained chrysotile asbestos in an encapsulated form. There is a group of
existing and potential claimants consisting largely of individuals that allegedly performed brake
replacements.

From 1981 through December 31, 2006, we have resolved approximately 105,000 Bendix related
asbestos claims including trials covering 124 plaintiffs, which resulted in 116 favorable verdicts. Trials
covering eight individuals resulted in adverse verdicts; however, two of these verdicts were reversed on
appeal, three are or shortly will be on appeal, and the remaining three claims were settled. The
following tables present information regarding Bendix related asbestos claims activity:

Years Ended
December 31,

Claims Activity 2006 2005

Claims Unresolved at the beginning of year .......................... 79,502 76,348
Claims Filed ................... 4,391 7,520
Claim s Resolved ........... .......................................... (26,785) (4,366)(a)
Claims Unresolved at the end of year ................................ 57,108 79,502

Disease Distribution of Unresolved Claims

Mesothelioma and Other Cancer Claims ..............................
O ther C laim s ...........................................

Total Claims ........................................

December 31,
2006 2005

4,843 4,810
52,265 74,692
57,108 79,502

(a) Excludes 2,524.claims which were inadvertently included in resolved claims as of December 31,
2005 which had no impact on the recorded values for such claims and has been corrected for
purposes of this presentation.

Approximately 45 percent of the approximately 57,000 pending claims at December 31, 2006 are
on the inactive, deferred, or similar dockets established in some jurisdictions for claimants who allege
minimal or no impairment. The approximately 57,000 pending claims also include claims filed in
jurisdictions such as Texas, Virginia, and Mississippi that historically allowed for consolidated filings. In
these jurisdictions, plaintiffs were permitted to file complaints against a pre-determined master list of
defendants, regardless of whether they have claims against each individual defendant. Many of these
plaintiffs may not actually have claims against Honeywell. Based on state rules and prior experience in
these jurisdictions, we anticipate that many of these claims will ultimately be dismissed. During 2006
approximately 16,000 cases were dismissed. More than 85 percent of these dismissals occurred in
Mississippi as a result of judicial rulings relating to non-resident filings and venue. We anticipate
additional dismissals in this jurisdiction.

Honeywell has experienced average resolution values per claim excluding legal costs as follows:
Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
(in whole dollars)

Malignant claims ......................................... $33,000 $58,000 $90,000
Nonmalignant claims ..................................... $ 250 $ 600 $ 1,600

It is not possible to predict whether resolution values for Bendix related asbestos claims will
increase, decrease or stabilize in the future.
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Our consolidated financial statements reflect an estimated liability for resolution bf pending.ahd
future Bendix related abestos claims at December 31, 2006 of $528 million. Prior to December 2006,
we only ;accrued for the estimated cost of pending Bendix related abestos claims as we could not
reasonably estimate losses which could arise from future Bendix related abestos claims. Due to the
steady three-year decline in the rate of Bendix related asbestos claims filed and reduced volatility in
those ra•tes, we believe that it is now possible to determine a reasonable estimate of the costs that will
be incurred for claims filed oveý the next five years. Accordingly during the fourth quarter of 2006, we
recorded a reserve of $335 million for the estimated cost of future Bendix related asbestos •claims
based on the. number of pending claims at December 31, 2006, disease classifications, and expected
resolution values and historic dismissal rates. Prior to December 2006, we have historically valued
Bendix claims 'at the average resolution value of the previous five years. In December 2006, based on
the Bendix related experience over the last five years we now believe that the average of the prior two
years, is.a more accurate indicator of future resolution values, and accordingly, we have applied this
two-year resolution -value in calculating both the reserves for pending and future Bendix related
asbestos claims'. This change resulted in a reduction of $118 million in the reserve for pending Bendix
claims in the fourth quarter of 2006. We will update the expected resolution values used to estimate the
cost of pending and future Bendix claims during the fourth quarter each year.

The estimated liability for future claims represents the estimated value of future asbestos related
bodily injury claims expected to be asserted against Bendix through 2011. In light of the uncertainties
inhereht in making long-term projections, as well as certain factors unique to friction product asbestos
claims,. we do.not believe that we have a reasonable basis for estimating asbestos claims beyond 2011
under., SFAS No. 5, "Accounting for Contingencies". The estimate is based upon Bendix historical
experience in the tort system for the two years ended December 31, 2006 with respect to claims filing
and resolution. The methodology used to estimate the liability for future claims has been commonly
accepted by numerous courts. It is substantially similar to that used to estimate the future NARCO
related asbestos claims liability, with the exception that the valuation methodology for Bendix includes
paymnent rates based on Bendix resolution history, rather than expected trust payment rates.

Honeyweil currently has approximately $1.9 billion of insurance coverage remaining with respect to
pending and potential future Bendix related asbestos claims, of which $302 and $377 million are
reflected as receivables in our consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. This coverage is provided by a large number of insurance policies written by dozens of
insurance companies in both the domestic insurance market and the London excess market. Insurance,
receivables are recorded in the financial statements simultaneous with the recording of the liability for
the estimated value of the underlying asbestos claims. The amount of the insurance receivable
recorded is based on our ongoing analysis of the insurance that we estimate is probable of recovery.
This determination is based on our analysis of the underlying insurance policies, our historical
experience' with our insurers, our ongoing review of the solvency of our insurers, our interpretation of
judicial determinations relevant to our insurance programs, and our consideration of the impacts of any
settlements, reached with our issuers. Insurance receivables are also recorded when structured
insurance settlements provide for future fixed payment streams that are not contingent upon future
claims or other events. Such amounts are recorded at the net present value of the fixed payment
stream.

On: a cumulative historical basis, Honeywell has recorded insurance receivables equal to
approximately 5.0 percent of the value of the underlying asbestos claims recorded. However, because
there are gaps in our coverage due to insurance company insolvencies, certain uninsured periods, and
insurance settlements, this rate is expected to decline for any future Bendix related asbestos liabilities
that may be recorded. Future recoverability rates may also be impacted by numerous other factors,
such as future insurance settlements, insolvencies and judicial determinations relevant to our coverage
program, which are difficult to predict. Assuming continued defense and indemnity spending at current
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levels, we estimate that the cumulative recoverability rate could decline over the next five years to
approximately 40 percent.

Honeywell believes it has sufficient insurance coverage and reserves to cover all pending Bendix
related asbestos claims and Bendix related asbestos claims estimated to be filed within the next five
years. Although it is impossible to predict the outcome of either pending or future Bendix related
asbestos claims, we do not believe that such claims would have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial position in light of our insurance coverage and our prior experience in resolving
such claims. If the rate and types of claims filed, the average resolution value of such claims and the
period of time over which claim settlements are paid (collectively, the "Variable Claims Factors") do not
substantially change, Honeywell would not expect future Bendix related asbestos claims to have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations or operating cash flows in any fiscal year. No
assurances can be given, however, that the Variable Claims Factors will not change.

Refractory and Friction Products-The following tables summarize information concerning
NARCO and Bendix asbestos related balances:

Asbestos Related Liabilities
Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Bendix NARCO Total Bendix NARCO Total Bendix NARCO Total

Beginning of year ............... $ 287 $1,782 $2,069 $ 355 $2,395 $2,750 $ 249 $2,760 $3,009
Accrual for claims filed and

defense costs incurred ........ 125 - 125 170 - 170 186 - 186
Accrual for estimated cost of

future claims ................. 335 - 335 -

Reduction in estimated cost of
future claim s ................. - (207) (207) -....

Asbestos related liability payments (103) (316) (419) (153) (597) (750) (153) (365) (518)
Settlement with plaintiff firms of

certain pending asbestos
claims(I) ................... . - 32 32 - (21) (21) - - -

Update of expected resolution
values for pending claims ...... (118) - (118) (85) - (85) 73 - 73

Other .......................... 2 2 - 5 5 -- -

End of year ................... $ 528 $1,291 $1,819 $ 287 $1,782 $2,069 $ 355 $2,395 $2,750

(1) In 2006, charge of $32 million reflects a settlement of certain pending asbestos claims.,In 2005,
consists of a charge of $52 million to reflect a settlement of certain pending asbestos claims during
the year and a credit of $73 million related to a re-estimation of asbestos reserves in connection
with an additional settlement.
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Insurance Recoveries for Asbestos Related Liabilities
Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005
Bendix NARCO Total Bendix NARCO Total

Year Ended December 31,
2004

Bendix NARCO Total

$209 $1,238 $1,447Beginning of year ............... $ 377
Probable insurance recoveries

related to claims filed ......... 11
Probable insurance recoveries

related to annual update of
expected resolution values for
pending claims ............... 39

Insurance receipts for asbestos
related liabilities .............. (166)

Insurance receivables settlements
and write-offs(1) .............. . 34

O ther(2) ....................... 7

End of year .................... $ 302

$1,096 $1,473 $336 $1,226. $1,562

11 34 - 34 96 - 96

- 39 (15)

(100) (266) (33)

(15) 39 - 39

(127) (160) (8) (59) (67)

(41)

$ 955

(7)
7

$1,257

41 -
14 (3)

$377 $1,096

41
11

$1,473

-- 47

$336 $1,226

47

$1,562

(1) In 2006, $34 million reflects gains from settlements with two Bendix insurance carriers and $41
million represents the write-down of the NARCO insurance receivable to reflect the reduction in the
estimated cost of future claims. In 2005, consists of gains from insurance settlements of $172
million principally related to a structured insurance settlement with a carrier which converted a
policy into a future, fixed, non-contingent payment stream, and charges of $131 million for write-
offs of certain amounts due from insurance carriers.

(2) In 2004, $47 million related to additional probable insurance recoveries identified in the second
quarter of 2004 based on our ongoing evaluation of the enforceability of our rights under the
various insurance policies.

NARCO and Bendix asbestos related balances are included in the following balance sheet
accounts:

Other current assets ....................................
Insurance recoveries for asbestos related liabilities ...................

Accrued liabilities .......... ........ .....................
A sbestos related liabilities ...........................................

December 31,
2006 2005

$ 157 $ 171
1,100 1,302

$1,257 $1,473

$ 557 $ 520
1,262 1,549

$1,819 $2,069

Other Matters

Baton Rouge, LA-As previously reported, three incidents occurred during 2003 at Honeywell's
Baton Rouge, Louisiana chemical plant, including a release of chlorine, a release of antimony
pentachloride (which resulted in an employee fatality), and an employee exposure to hydrofluoric acid.
The United States Environmental Protection Agency and the United States Department of Justice have
conducted investigations of these incidents, including a federal grand jury convened to investigate the
employee fatality. As a result of that investigation, we have signed a plea agreement with the U.S.
Attorney under which Honeywell will plead guilty to a misdemeanor charge and pay $12 million in
combined restitution and fines. The plea agreement has been filed, but the plea and the sentence still
are subject to Court acceptance, which we expect to receive. Honeywell has been served with several
civil lawsuits regarding these incidents, for which we believe we have adequate insurance coverage to
the extent that there is any liability. We are also engaged in discussions with the Louisiana Department
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of Environmental Quality (LADEQ) to resolve alleged civil environmental violations at our Baton Rouge
and Geismar, Louisiana facilities that, in part, overlap with the subject of the federal investigation.

Brunswick, GA-Honeywell has reached settlements with Glynn County, Georgia and with a
group of private individuals who own or owned properties near the Allied Chemical (a predecessor
company) chlor-alkali plant, in Brunswick, Georgia in various related cases. The plaintiffs had alleged
that mercury and PCB discharges from the plant devalued their property, and caused them loss of use
and enjoyment of that property. They were seeking compensatory, injunctive and punitive damages.
The settlement with Glynn County was for $25 million and that amount has been paid. The settlement
with the private property owners was also for $25 million and the money has been placed into the
plaintiffs' attorney trust account pending confirmation that none of the private landowners have opted
out of the settlement and allocation of the proceeds among the parties by a special master appointed
by the court. Honeywell and the private landowners will ask the court to confirm the settlement as final
in a hearing set for April 6, 2007.

Allen, et, aL v. Honeywell Retirement Earnings Plan-This represents a class action lawsuit in
which plaintiffs seek unspecified damages relating to allegations that, among other things, Honeywell
impermissibly reduced the pension benefits of employees of Garrett Corporation (a predecessor entity)
when the plan was amended in 1983 and failed to calculate certain benefits in accordance with the
terms of the plan. In the third quarter of 2005, the U.S. District Court. for the District of Arizona ruled in
favor of the plaintiffs on these claims and in favor of Honeywell on virtually all other claims. We strongly
disagree with, and intend to appeal, the Court's adverse ruling. A class was certified by the Court in
September 2006. In light of the merits of our arguments on appeal and our substantial affirmative
defenses which have not yet been considered by the Court, we continue to expect to prevail in this
matter. Accordingly, we do not believe that a liability is probable of occurrence and reasonably
estimable and have not recorded a provision for this matter in our financial statements. Given the
uncertainty inherent in litigation and the wide range of potential remedies, it is not possible to estimate
the range of possible loss that might result from an adverse resolution of this matter. Although we
expect to prevail in this matter, an adverse outcome could have a material adverse effect on our results
of operations or operating cash flows in the periods recognized or paid. We do not believe that an
adverse outcome in this matter would have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial
position.

We are subject to a number of other lawsuits, investigations and disputes (some of which involve
substantial amounts claimed) arising out of the conduct of our business, including matters relating to
commercial transactions, government contracts, product liability, prior acquisitions and divestitures,
employee benefit plans, and health and safety matters. We recognize a liability for any contingency that
is probable of occurrence and reasonably estimable. We continually assess the likelihood of adverse
judgments of outcomes in these matters, as well as potential ranges of probable losses (taking into
consideration any insurance recoveries), based on a careful analysis of each matter with the
assistance of outside legal counsel and, if applicable, other experts.

Given the uncertainty inherent in litigation, we do not believe it is possible to develop estimates of
the range of reasonably possible loss. in excess of current accruals for these matters. Considering our
past experience and existing accruals, we do not expect the outcome of these matters, either
individually or in the aggregate, to have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position.
Because most contingencies are resolved over long periods of time, potential liabilities are subject to
change due to new developments, changes in settlement strategy or the impact of evidentiary
requirements, which could cause us to pay damage awards or settlements (or become subject to
equitable remedies) that could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or operating
cash flows in the periods recognized or paid.
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Warranties and Guarantees-We have issued or are a party to the following direct and indirect
guarantees at December 31, 2006:

Maximum
Potential

Future
Payments

Operating lease residual values .......................................... $38
O ther third parties' financing .............................................. 6
Unconsolidated affiliates' financing ........................................ 9
C ustom er financing ....................................................... 22

$75

We do not expect that these guarantees will have a material adverse effect on our consolidated
results of operations, financial position or liquidity.

In connection with the disposition of certain businesses and facilities we have indemnified the
purchasers for the expected cost of remediation of environmental contamination, if any, existing on the
date of disposition. Such expected costs are accrued when environmental assessments are made or
remedial efforts are probable and the costs can be reasonably estimated.

In the normal course of business we issue product warranties and product performance
guarantees. We accrue for the estimated cost of product warranties and performance guarantees
based on contract terms and historical experience at the time of sale. Adjustments to initial obligations
for warranties and guarantees are made as changes in the obligations become reasonably estimable.
The following table summarizes information concerning our recorded obligations for product warranties
and product performance guarantees:

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Beginning of year ............................................ $ 347 $ 299 $ 275
Accruals for warranties/guarantees issued during the year ..... 268 203 236
Adjustment of pre-existing warranties/guarantees .............. (22) 17 1
Settlement of warranty/guarantee claims ...................... (230) (172) (213)
End of year ................................................. $ 363 $ 347 $ 299

Product warranties and product performance guarantees are included in the following balance
sheet accounts:

December 31,
2006 2005

Accrued liabilities ....................................................... $347 $322
O ther liabilities ......................................................... 16 25

$363 $347

Note 22-Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

We sponsor both funded and unfunded U.S. and non-U.S. defined benefit pension plans covering
the majority of our employees and retirees. Pension benefits for substantially all U.S. employees are
provided through non-contributory, qualified and non-qualified defined benefit pension plans. U.S.
defined benefit pension plans comprise 74 percent of our projected benefit obligation. Non-U.S.
employees, who are not U.S. citizens, are covered by various retirement benefit arrangements, some of
which are considered to be defined benefit pension plans for accounting purposes. Non-U.S. defined
benefit pension plans comprise 26 percent ofour projected benefit obligation.
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We also sponsor postretirement benefit plans that provide health care benefits and life insurance
coverage to eligible retirees. Our retiree medical plans mainly cover U.S. employees who retire with
pension eligibility for .hospital, professional and other medical services. All non-union hourly and
salaried employees joining Honeywell after January 1, 2000.are not eligible to participate in our retiree
medical and life insurance plans. Most of the U.S. retiree medical plans require deductibles and
copayments, and virtually all are integrated with Medicare. Retiree contributions are generally required
based on coverage type, plan and Medicare eligibility. Honeywell has limited its subsidy of its retiree
medical plans to a fixed-dollar amount for substantially all future retirees and for almost half of its
current retirees. This cap of retiree. medical benefits underour plans limits our exposure to the impact
of future health care-cost increases. The retiree medical and life insurance plans are not funded.
Claims and expenses are paid from our operating cash flow.

As discussed in Note 1--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, we adopted SFAS No. 158
as of December 31, 2006. SFAS No. 158 requires that we recognize on a prospective basis the funded
status of our defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans on the consolidated
balance sheet and recognize as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net
of tax, the gains or losses and prior service costs or credits that arise during the period but are not
recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost. Additional minimum pension liabilities and
related intangible assets are also derecognized upon adoption of the new standard. The adjustment for
SFAS No. 158 affected our Consolidated Balance Sheet as follows:

Decrease in prepaid pension benefit cost ...................................... $(2,071)
Decrease in intangible asset ................................ ........... (79)
Decrease in accrued and minimum pension liability ............................ 138
Increase in postretirement benefit obligations other than pensions ............... (340)

Increase in accumulated other comprehensive loss, pre-tax .................... (2,352)
Increase in incom e tax benefit ................................................ 840
Increase in accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax(l) ............... $(1,512)

(1) Represents $1,708 million reduction of shareowners' equity including a $196 million adjustment
related to our additional minimum liability.
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The following tables summarize the balance sheet impact, including the benefit obligations, assets
and funded status associated with our significant pension and other postretirement benefit, plans at
December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Pension Benefits
2006 2005

Other
Postretirement

Benefits
2006 2005

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year ...............
S ervice cost ........................................
Inte rest cost ........................................
Plan am endm ents ..................................
Actuarial (gains) losses .............................
A cquisitions ........................................
B enefits paid .......................................
Settlements and curtailments ........................
O th e r ..............................................
Benefit obligation at end of year .....................

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year .......
Actual return on plan assets ........................
Com pany contributions ..............................
A cq uisitio ns ........................................
B enefits paid .......................................
O th e r ..............................................
Fair value of plan assets at end of year .............
Funded status of plans .............................

Net obligation at transition(I) .................. ....
N et lo ss(1) .........................................
Prior service cost (credit)(1) .........................

Net amount recognized(I) ...............................

Amounts recognized in Consolidated Balance Sheet
consist of:

Prepaid pension benefit cost ........................
Intangible asset(2) ..................................
Accrued liabilities ......... ..................
Postretirement benefit obligations other than

pensions(3) .......................................
Accrued pension liability(4) ...... * ....................
Additional minimum liability(4) ....... ............
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) .....

Net amount recognized .................................

$16,168
274
908

7
(183)

75
(1,070)

(15)
844

17,008

14,653
1,897

347
65

(1,070)
686

16,578

$ (430)

$13,587
236
815

(2)
685

1,940
(965)

(1)
(127)

16,168

13,070
1,229

105
1,317
(965)
(103)

14,653

(1,515)

9
3,444

119
$ 2,057

$ 2,318
17

122
(11)
(14)

(186)

19

2,265

$(2,265)

$ --

(197)

(2,068)

$(2,265)

$ 2,353
17

120
(20)
(74)
121

(199)

2,318

(2,318)

552
(175)

$(1,941)

$ --

(197)

(1,744)

$(1,941)

$ 685 $ 2,716
- 79

(1,115)

$ (430)

(767)
(518)
547

$ 2,057

(1) Disclosure is not applicable in 2006 as a result of SFAS No. 158.

(2) Included in Other Assets-Non-Current on Consolidated Balance Sheet.

(3) Excludes Non-U.S. plans of $22 and $42 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

(4) Included in Other Liabilities-Non-Current on Consolidated Balance Sheet.
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Pension
Benefits

2006

Amounts recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (loss)
at December 31, 2006

Transition obligation ................................................. $ 11
Prior service cost or (benefit) ....................................... 98
A ctuarial losses .................................................... 2,423

Net am ount recognized ................................................. $2,532

Other
Postretirement

Benefits
2006

(146)
486

$ 340

The accumulated benefit obligation for our defined benefit pension plans was $16.2 and $15.4
billion at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Net periodic pension and other postretirement benefit costs for our significant plans include the
following components:

Service cost ..........................................
Interest cost ..............................................
Expected return on plan assets ............................
Amortization of prior service cost ..........................
Recognition of actuarial losses .............................
Settlements and curtailments ..............................
Net periodic benefit cost ..................................

Pension Benefits
Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

$ 274 $ 236 $ 222
908 815 755

(1,251) (1,104) (1,042)
27 30 '38

348 392 413
(13) - -

$ 293 $ 369 $ 386

Other Postretirement Benefits
Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

$ 17 $ 17 $ 17
122 120 -138
(40) (39) (37)
52 .63 101

$ 151 $ 161 $- 219

S ervice cost ..............................................
Inte rest cost ..............................................
Amortization of prior service (credit) .......................
Recognition of actuarial losses .............................
Net periodic benefit cost ..................... ............

The estimated net loss and prior service cost for pension benefits that will be amortized from
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year
are expected to be $193 and $27 million, respectively. The estimated net loss and prior service credit
for other postretirement benefits that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income
(loss) into net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year are expected to be $45 and $(40) million,
respectively.

Major actuarial assumptions used in determining the benefit obligations and net periodic benefit
cost for our U.S. benefit plans are presented in the following table. For non-U.S. benefit plans, no one
of which was individually material, assumptions reflect economic assumptions applicab!e to each
country.
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Actuarial assumptions used to determine
benefit obligations as of December 31:

D iscount rate .........................
Expected annual rate of compensation

increase ............................
Actuarial assumptions used to determine

net periodic benefit cost for years ended
December 31:

D iscount rate .........................
Expected rate of return on plan assets
Expected annual rate of compensation

increase ............................

Pension Benefits
2006 2005 2004

6.00% 5.75% 5.875%

4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

Other Postretirement
Benefits

2006 2005 2004

5.70% 5.50% 5.50%

5.75% 5.875%
9.00% 9.00%

6.00%
9.00%

5.50% 5.50% 6.00%

4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

To select a discount rate for our retirement benefit plans, we use a modeling process that involves
matching the expected cash outflows of our benefit plans to a yield curve constructed from a portfolio
of double A rated fixed-income debt instruments. We use the average yield of this hypothetical portfolio
as a discount rate benchmark. The discount rate used to determine the other postretirement benefit
obligation is lower due to a shorter expected duration of other postretirement plan. obligations as
compared to pension plan obligations.

Our expected rate of return on plan assets of 9 percent is a long-term rate based on historic plan
asset returns over varying long-term periods combined with current market conditions and broad asset
mix considerations. The expected rate of return is a long-term assumption and generally does not
change annually. For our U.S. pension plans, we use the market-related value of plan assets reflecting
changes in the fair value of plan assets over a three-year period.

For our U.S. benefit plans, actuarial losses in excess of 10 percent of the greater of the market-
related value of plan assets or the plans projected benefit obligation are amortized over a six-year
period.

Mortality assumptions for our U.S. benefit plans were updated as of December 31, 2005 using the
RP2000 Mortality table for all participants.

Pension Benefits

Pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations exceeding the fair value of plan assets were as
follows:

December 31,
2006 2005

Projected benefit obligation ............................................ $2,055 $2,746
Accumulated benefit obligation ........................................ 1,875 2,541
Fair value of plan assets ............................................. 1,321 1,511
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Our U.S. pension plans assets were $12.8 and $12.0 billion and our non-U.S. pension plans
assets were $3.8 and $2.6 billion at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Our asset allocation
and target allocation for our pension plans assets are as follows:

Percentage

of Plans
Assets at Long-term
December Target

31, Allocation
Asset Category 2006 2005

Equity securities ............................................... 63% 63% 40-65%
Debt securities, including cash .................................. 29 31 25-45
R eal estate ..................................................... 5 4 2-8
O the r .......................................................... • 3 2 2 -6

100% 100%

Our asset investment strategy focuses on maintaining a diversified portfolio using various asset
classes in order to achieve our long-term investment objectives on a risk adjusted basis. Our actual
invested positions in various securities change over time based on short and longer-term investment
opportunities. To achieve our objectives, our U.S. investment policy requires that our U.S. Master
Retirement Trust be invested as follows: (a) no less than 25 percent be invested in fixed income
securities; (b) no more than 10 percent in high-yield securities; (c) no more than 10 percent in private
real estate investments; and (d) no more than 6 percent in other investment alternatives involving
limited partnerships of various types. There is no stated limit on investments in publically-held U.S. and
international equity securities. Our non-U.S. investment policies are different for each country, but the
long-term investment objectives remain the same.

Our general funding policy for qualified pension plans is to contribute amounts at least sufficient to
satisfy regulatory funding standards. In 2006 and 2004, we made voluntary contributions of $68 and
$40 million, respectively, to our U.S. defined benefit pension plans primarily for government contracting
purposes. Assuming that actual plan asset returns are consistent with our expected rate of 9 percent in
2007 and beyond, and that interest rates remain constant, we would not be required to make any
contributions to our U.S. pension plans for the foreseeable future. We expect to make voluntary
contributions of approximately $52 million in cash in 2007 to certain of our U.S. plans for government
contracting purposes. We also expect to contribute approximately $155 million in cash in 2007 to our
non-U.S. defined benefit pension plans to satisfy regulatory funding standards. These contributions do
not reflect benefits to be paid directly from Company assets.

Benefit payments, including amounts to be paid from Company assets, and reflecting expected
future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid as follows:

2 0 0 7 ......................................................................... $ 1 ,0 7 4
2 0 0 8 ......................................................................... 1 ,0 8 3
2 0 0 9 ....... ....... ........................................................... 1 ,0 9 2
2 0 10 ......................................................................... 1 ,10 0
2 0 1 1 . . . .. . . .. . . . . .. . . . .. . . . . .. . . . . .. . . . . . .. . . .. . . . . .. . . . .. . . . . .. . . . . . .. . . . .. . 1 ,1 1 1
2 0 12 -20 16 .................................................................... 6 ,327

Other Postretirement Benefits
Effective December 31, 2004, we adopted FASB Staff Position No. 106-2 "Accounting and

Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization
Act of 2003" (FSP No. 106-2). FSP No. 106-2 provides guidance on accounting for the effects of the
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Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization. Act of 2003 (the Act) for employers that
sponsor postretirement health care plans that provide prescription drug coverage that is at least
actuarially equivalent to that offered by Medicare Part D. The impact of the Act reduced other
postretirement benefits expense by approximately $37 and $45 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively.

December 31,
2006 2005

Assumed health care cost trend rate:
Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year ................... 9.0% 9.0%
Rate that the cost trend rate gradually declines to ................... 5.5% 5.0%
Year that the rate reaches the rate it is assumed to remain at ....... 2014 2010

The assumed health care cost trend rate has a significant effect on the amounts reported. A one-
percentage-point change in the assumed health care cost trend rate would have the following effects:

1 percentage point
Increase Decrease

Effect on total of service and interest cost components ............... $ 6 $ (5)
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation ............................ $87 $(78)

Benefit payments reflecting expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be paid as
follows:

Without Impact
of Net of

Medicare Subsidy Medicare Subsidy

2007 ................................................ . $ 2 11 $ 189
2 008 ................................................ 2 12 192
2009 ................................................ 2 14 193
20 10 ................................................ 2 14 193

011 ................................................. 215 195
2012-2016 ........................................... 1,016 930

Employee Savings Plans-We sponsor employee savings plans under which we match, in the
form of our common stock, savings plan contributions for certain eligible U.S. employees. Shares
issued under the stock match plans were 4.5, 4.1 and 4.3 million at a cost of $179, $153 and $151
million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Note 23-Segment Financial Data

We globally manage our business operations through four reportable segments serving customers
worldwide with aerospace products and services, control, sensing and security technologies for
buildings, homes and industry, automotive products and chemicals. Segment information is consistent
with how management reviews the businesses, makes investing and resource allocation decisions and
assesses operating performance. Our four reportable segments are as follows:

* Aerospace is organized by customer end-market (Air Transport and Regional, Business and
General Aviation and Defense and Space) and provides products and services which include
auxiliary power units; propulsion engines; environmental control systems; engine controls; repair
and overhaul services; hardware; logistics; electric power systems; flight safety, communica-
tions, navigation, radar and surveillance systems; aircraft lighting; management and technical
services; advanced systems and instruments; and aircraft wheels and brakes.

" Automation and Control Solutions includes Products (controls for heating, cooling, indoor air
quality, ventilation, humidification and home automation; advanced software applications for
home/building control and optimization; sensors, switches, control systems and instruments for
measuring pressure, air flow, temperature and electrical current; security, fire and gas detection;
access control; video surveillance; and remote patient monitoring systems); Building Solutions
(installs, maintains and upgrades systems that keep buildings safe, comfortable and productive);
and Process Solutions (provides a full range of automation and control solutions for industrial
plants, offering advanced software and automation systems that integrate, control and monitor
complex processes in many types of industrial settings).

" Specialty Materials includes fluorocarbons, specialty films, advanced fibers, customized
research chemicals and intermediates, electronic materials and chemicals, and catalysts and
adsorbents.

" Transportation Systems includes Honeywell Turbo Technologies (turbochargers and charge-air
and thermal systems); and the Consumer Products Group (car care products including
anti-freeze, filters, spark plugs, and cleaners, waxes and additives; and brake hard parts and
other friction materials).

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in Note 1. Honeywell's
senior management evaluates segment performance based on segment profit. Segment profit is
business unit income (loss) before taxes excluding general corporate unallocated expenses, other
income (expense), interest and other financial charges, pension and other postretirement benefits
(expense), stock option expense, repositioning and other charges and accounting changes.
Intersegment sales approximate market prices and are not significant. Reportable segment data
follows:
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Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Net sales
Aerospace .......................................... $11,124 $10,496 $ 9,740
Automation and Control Solutions .................... 11,020 9,416 8,031
Specialty Materials .................................. 4,631 3,234 3,497
Transportation Systems .............................. 4,592 4,505 4,323
C orporate ........................................... - 1 2

$31,367 $27,652 $25,593

Depreciation and amortization
Aerospace ....................... $ 195 $ 188 $ 199
Automation and Control Solutions .................... 240 202 .159
Specialty Materials .................................. 221 137 141
Transportation Systems .............................. 101 93 80
Corporate ........................................... 37 33 35

$ 794 $ 653 $ 614

Segment profit
Aerospace ......................................... $ 1,892 $ 1,676 $ 1,422
Automation and Control Solutions ...... * .............. 1,223 1,065 894
Specialty Materials .................................. 568 257 184
Transportation Systems ............................... 574 557 575
Corporate ........................................... (177) (173) (158)

$ 4,080 $ 3,382 $ 2,917

Capital expenditures
Aerospace .................................. $ 178 $ 178 $ 168
Automation and Control Solutions .................... 165 136 106
Specialty Materials .................................. 186 155 156
Transportation Systems .............................. 109 143 137
Corporate ........................................... 95 72 62

$ 733 $ 684 $ 629

December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Total assets
Aerospace ............................................ $ 7,914 $ 7,696 $ 7,949
Automation and Control Solutions .................... 11,287 10,080 8,128
Specialty Materials .................................. 4,674 4,732 3,239

* Transportation Systems .............................. 3,038 2,880 3,131

Corporate ........................................... 4,028 6,245 8,123

$30,941 $31,633 $30,570
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A reconciliation of segment profit to consolidated income from continuing operations before taxes
is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Segment profit .............................................. $4,080 $3,382 $2,9.17
Other income (expense) ...................................... 111 231 429
Interest and other financial charges .......................... (374) (356) (331)
Stock option expense(I) ..................................... (77) - -

Pension and,0ther postretirement benefits (expense)(1) ....... (459) (561) (628)
Repositionin g and other charges(I) .......................... (483) (400) (764)

Income fr6m continuing operations before taxes .............. $2,798 $2,296 $1,623

(1) Amounts included in cost of products and services sold and selling, general and administrative
expenses.

Note 24-Geographic Areas-Financial Data

Net Sales(l) Long-lived Assets(2)
Years Ended December 31, Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004

United States ............. $19,821 $17,956 $16,625 $11,438 $10,842 $ 8,307
Europe .................... 7,781 6,552 6,097 2,161 1,958 2,044
Other International ......... 3,765 3,144 2,871 848 691 458

$31,367 $27,652 $25,593 $14,447 $13,491 $10,809

(1) Sales between geographic areas approximate market and are not significant. Net sales are
classified according to their country of origin. Included in United States net. sales are export sales of
$3,493, $2,780 and $2,399 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

(2) Long-lived assets are comprised of property, plant and equipment, goodwill and other intangible assets.

Note 25-Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Payments for repositioning and other charges:
Severance and exit cost payments ................... $(142) $ (171) $(164)
Environmental payments ............................ (264) (247) (248)
Proceeds from sale of insurance receivable .......... 100 - -
Insurance receipts for asbestos related liabilities ..... 166 160 67
Asbestos related liability payments ................... (419) (750) (518)

$(559) $(1,008) $(863)

Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized ................. $ 361 $ 397 $ 330
Income taxes paid, net of refunds ...................... 471 235 178
Non-cash investing and financing activities:

Common stock contributed to U.S. savings plans ..... 179 153 151
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Note 26-Unaudited Quarterly Financial Information

Mar. 31

Net sales .................... $ 7,241
Gross profit .................. 1,641
Income from continuing

operations .................. 431
Income from discontinued

operations .................. 5
Cumulative effect of accounting

change(1) .................. -
Net income ................... 436
Earnings per share-basic:"

Income from continuing
operations ................ ..51

Income from discontinued
operations ................ ..01

Cumulative effect of accounting
change .................. -

Net income ................. ..52
Earnings per share-assuming

dilution:
Income from continuing

operations ................ ..51
Income from discontinued

operations ................ .. 01
Cumulative effect of accounting

change .................. -
Net income ................. ..52

Dividends paid ................ .226875
Market price(2) ..............

High ............ ......... 42.85
Low ...................... 35.84

June 30

$ 7,898
1,871

2006
Sept. 30

$ 7,952
1,841

Dec. 31

$ 8,276
1,918

Year Mar. 31

$31,367 $6,449
7,271 1,367

2005
June 30 Sept. 30

$7,028 $6,900
1,525 1,598

Dec. 31

$7,275
1,638

Year

$27,652
6,128

521 541 585 2,078 358 274 427 505 1,564

- - - 5 - 28 37 30

521 541 585 2,083 358 302 464
(21)

514

95

(21)
1,638

.63 .66 .72 2.53 .42 .33 .50 .60 1.85

- - - .01 - .03 .04 .04 .11

- - - - - - - (.03) (.03)
.63 .66 . .72 2.54 .42 .36 .54 .61 1.93

.63 .66 .72 2.51 .42 .33 .50 .60 1.84

- -- -- .01 - .03 .04 .04 .11

.63
.226875

.66
.226875

.72
.226875

2.52 .42
.9075 .20625

.36
.20625

- (.03)
.54 .61

.20625 .20625.

(.03)
1.92

.8250

39.30
33.21

44.16 41.37 45.46 45.46 39.30 38.12 39.29 37.96
37.62 36.21 41.35 . 35.84 34.00 35.17 35.41 33.21

(1) Represents the net of tax effect of adopting FIN 47 as of December 31, 2005.
(2) From composite tape-stock is primarily traded on the New York Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREOWNERS OF

HONEYWELL INTERNATIONAL INC.:

We have completed integrated audits of Honeywell International Inc.'s consolidated financial
statements and of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, in accordance
with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions,
based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under
Item 15(a)(1.) present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Honeywell International
Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in our opinion,
the financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(2.) presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits. We conducted our audits of
these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of
financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the
manner in which it accounts for stock-based compensation and defined benefit pension and other
postretirement plans in 2006 and the manner in which it accounts for conditional asset retirement
obligations in 2005.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management's assessment, included in Management's Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A, that the Company maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 based on criteria established in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria.
Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. The Company's management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on management's
assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal
control over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, evaluating management's assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.
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A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of.the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance With authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the c0ompany's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Florham park, New Jersey
February 15, 2007
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting
and Financial Disclosure

Not Applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Honeywell management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of
the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer concluded that such disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K in
alerting them on a timely basis to material information relating to Honeywell required to-be included in
Honeywell's periodic filings under the Exchange Act. There have been no changes that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, Honeywell's internal control over financial
reporting that have occurred during the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Honeywell management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-1 5(f) and 15d-1 5(f) under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934. Honeywell's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Honeywell's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of Honeywell's assets;

(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of Honeywell's management and directors; and

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of Honeywell's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of Honeywell's internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2006. In making this assessment, management used the criteria set forth by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Con-
trol-Integrated Framework.

Based on this assessment, management determined that Honeywell maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006.

Management's assessment of the effectiveness of Honeywell's internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent
registered public accouting firm, as stated in their report which is included in "Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data."
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Item 9B. Other information

Not Applicable.

Part II1.

Item 10. Directors, and Executive Officers-of the Registrant

Information relating to the Directors of Honeywell, as well as information relating to compliance
with Section 16(a) of, the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, will be contained in our definitive Proxy
Statement involving the election of the Directors which will be filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation
14A not later than 120 days after December 31, 2006, and such information is incorporated herein by
reference. Certain other information relating to the Executive Officers of Honeywell appears in Part I of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading "Executive Officers of the Registrant".

The members of the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors are: Scott Davis (Chair), Linnet
Deily, James J. Howard, Russell E. Palmer,, Eric k. Shinseki, John R. Stafford, and Michael W. Wright.
The Board has determined that Mr. Davis is the "audit committee financial expert" as defined by
applicable SEC rules and that Mr. Davis and'Mr. Palmer satisfy the "accounting or related financial
managermentexpertise" criteria established by the NYSE. All members of the Audit Committee are
"independent" as that term is defined in applicable.SEC Rules and NYSE listing standards.

Honeyvwell's Code of Business Conduct is available, free of charge, on our website under the
heading "Investor Relations" (see "Corporate Governance"), or by writing to Honeywell, 101 Columbia
Road, Morris Township, New Jersey 07962, c/o Vice President and Corporate Secretary. Honeywell's
Code of Business Conduct applies to all Honeywell directors, officers (including the Chief Executive
Officer, Chief .Financial Officer and Controller) and employees. Amendments to or waivers of the Code
of Business Conduct granted to any of Honeywell's directors or executive officers will be published on
our website within five business' days of such amendment or waiver.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information relating to executive- compensation is contained in the. Proxy Statement referred to
above in "Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant," and such information is
incorporated herein byreference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
and Related Stockholder Matters,

Information relating to security' ownership of certain. beneficial owners and management, equity
compensation plans and related stockholder matters is contained in the Proxy Statement referred to
above in "Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant," and such information is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related-Transactions

Information relating to certain' r.elationships and related transactions is contained in the Proxy
Statement referred to above in "Item. 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant," and such
information is incorporated hereirfby reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information relating to fees paid 'to and services'performed 'by Pri.ceaterhouseCoopers LLP in
2006 and 2005 and our Audit Committee's pre-approval policies and procedures with respect to non-
audit services are 'contained in the Proxy Statement referred to above 'in "Item 10. Directors and
Executive Officers of the Registrant," and such information is incorporated herein by reference.
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Part IV.
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a)(1.) Consolidated Financial Statements:
Consolidated Statement of Operations for the years ended

December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2006 and 2005
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the years ended

December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
Consolidated Statement of Shareowners' Equity for the years

ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
Notes to Financial Statements
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

(a)(2.) Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules:

Schedule II-Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Page Number
in Form 10-K

45

46

47

48
49
96

Page Number

in Form 10-K

107

All .other financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable to us or
the required information is shown in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.
(a)(3.) Exhibits

See the Exhibit Index on pages 102 through 106 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this annual report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto
duly authorized.

HONEYWELL INTERNATIONAL INC.

February 15, 2007 By: /s/ THOMAS A. SZLOSEK

Thomas A. Szlosek
Vice President and Controller

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this annual report has been
signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date
indicated:

Name Name

David M. Cote
Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer

and Director

Gordon M. Bethune
Director

Jaime Chico Pardo
Director

D. Scott Davis
Director

Linnet F Deily
Director

Clive R. Hollick
Director

/s/ DAVID J. ANDERSON

David J. Anderson
Senior Vice President and

Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

James J. Howard
Director

Russell E. Palmer
Director

Ivan G. Seidenberg
Director

Bradley T. Sheares, Ph.D.
Director

Eric K. Shinseki
Director

John R. Stafford
Director

Michael W. Wright
Director

/s/ THOMAS A. SZLOSEK

Thomas A. Szlosek
Vice President and Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

*By: /s/ DAVID J. ANDERSON

(David J. Anderson
Attorney-in-fact)

February 15, 2007
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No. Description

2 Omitted (Inapplicable)

3(i) Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Honeywell International Inc., as
amended April 25, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(i) to
Honeywell's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005)

3(ii) By-laws of Honeywell, as amended December 8, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3(ii) to Honeywell's Form 8-K filed December 11,
2006)

4 Honeywell International Inc. is a party to several long-term debt instru-
ments under which, in each case, the total amount of securities
authorized does not exceed 10% of the total assets of Honeywell and its
subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. Pursuant to paragraph 4(iii)(A) of
Item 601(b) of Regulation S-K, Honeywell agrees to furnish a copy of
such instruments to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon
request.

9 Omitted (Inapplicable)

10.1* 2003 Stock Incentive Plan of Honeywell International Inc., and its Affiliates
(incorporated by reference to Honeywell's Proxy 'Statement, dated
March 17, 2003, filed pursuant to Rule 14a-6 of, the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934 and amended by Exhibit 10.1 to Honeywell's
Form 8-K filed December 21, 2004 and by, the attached amendment
(filed herewith))

10.2* Deferred Compensation Plan for Non-Employee Directors of Honeywell
International Inc., as amended and restated (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.2 to Honeywell's Form 10-Q.for quarter ended June 30,
2003, amended by Exhibit 10.1 to Honeywell's Form 8-K filed December
21, 2004 and by Exhibit 10.2 to Honeywell's Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2005)

10.3* Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors of AlliedSignal Inc., as amended
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Honeywell's Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 2003) , , ,

10.4* 1985 Stock Plan for Employees of AlliedSignal Inc. and its Subsidiaries, as
amended (incorporated by reference toExhibit 19.3 to Honeywell's Form
10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1991)

10.5* AlliedSignal, Inc. Incentive Compensation Plan for Executive Employees,
as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit B to Honeywell's
Proxy Statement, dated March 10, 1994, filed pursuant to Rule 14a-6 of
the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, and .amended by Exhibit 10.5
to Honeywell's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1999)

10.6* Supplemental Non-Qualified Savings Plan for Highly. Compensated Em-
ployees of Honeywell International Inc. and its Subsidiaries as amended
and restated (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Honeywell's
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended ,September 30, •2005 and by the
attached amendment (filed herewith)) ` pi.

10.7* Honeywell International Inc. Severance Plan for Senior Executives, as
amended and restated (incorporated by 'reference:to Exhibit 10.7 to
Honeywell's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003, and
amended.by, Exhibit 10.7 to Honeywell's Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended June 30,2004)
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Exhibit No. Description

10.8* Salary and Incentive Award Deferral Plan for Selected Employees of
Honeywell International Inc., and its Affiliates, as amended and restated
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Honeywell's Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 30, 2005 and by- the attached amend-
ments (filed herewith))

10.9* 1993 Stock Plan for Employees of Honeywell International Inc. and its
Affiliates, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to
Honeywell's Proxy Statement, dated March 10, 1994, filed pursuant to
Rule 14a-6 of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, and amended
by Exhibit 10.1 to Honeywell's Form 8-K filed December 21, 2004 and by
the attached amendment (filed herewith))

10.10* Honeywell International Inc. Supplemental Pension Plan, as amended and
restated (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Honeywell's Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000, and amended by Exhibit
10.1 to Honeywell's Form 8-K filed December 21, 2004 and by Exhibit
10.2 to Honeywell's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2006)

10.11* Employment Separation Agreement and Release between J. Kevin Gilligan
and Honeywell International Inc. dated February 10, 2004 (incorporated
by reference to Honeywell's Form 10-K for year ended December 31,
2003)

10.12* Honeywell International Inc. Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan for
Executives in Career Band 6 and Above (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.14 to Honeywell's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2004, and amended by Exhibit 10.1 to Honeywell's Form 8-K filed
December 21, 2004 and by Exhibit 10.2 to Honeywell's Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 30, 2006)

10.13* Honeywell Supplemental Defined Benefit Retirement Plan, as amended
and restated (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Honeywell's
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2004, and amended by
Exhibit 10.1 to Honeywell's Form 8-K filed December 21, 2004 and by
Exhibit 10.2 to Honeywell's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September
30, 2006)

10.14* Letter between David J. Anderson and Honeywell International Inc. dated
June 12, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to Honey-
well's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003)

10.15* Employment Separation Agreement and Release between Richard F.
Wallman and Honeywell International Inc. dated July 17, 2003 (incorpo-
rated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Honeywell's Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2003)

10.16* Honeywell International Inc. Severance Plan for Corporate Staff Employ-
ees (Involuntary Termination Following a Change in Control), as
amended and restated (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to
Honeywell's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002)

10.17* Employment Agreement dated as of February 18, 2002 between Honey-
well and David M. Cote (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to
Honeywell's Form 8-K filed March 4, 2002)

10.18* 2003 Stock Incentive Plan for Employees of Honeywell International Inc.
and its Affiliates Award Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to Honeywell's Form 8-K filed February 7, 2005)
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Exhibit No. Description

10.19* 2063 Stock Incentive Plan for Employees of Honeywell International Inc.
and its Affiliates Restricted Unit Agreement (incorporatbd by referehce
to Exhibit 10.21 to Honeywell's Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2005)

10.20* 2003 Stock Incentive Plan for Employees of Honeywell International Inc.
and its Affiliates Growth Plan Agreement (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.22 to Honeywell's Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2005)

10.21* Stock Plan For Non-Employee Directors of Honeywell International Inc.
Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Form
8-K filed April 29, 2005)

10.22* Deferred Compensation Agreement dated August 4, 2006 between
Honeywell and David M. Cote (filed herewith)

10.23* Letter Agreement dated July 27, 2001 between Honeywell and Larry E.

Kittelberger (filed herewith)

10.24* Honeywell Supplemental Retirement Plan (filed herewith)

10.25* Pittway Corporation Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (filed here-
with)

10.26* 2006 Stock Incentive'Plan of Honeywell International Inc. and Its Affiliates
(incorporated by reference to Honeywell's Proxy Statement, dated
March 13, 2006, filed pursuant to Rule 14a-6 of the Securities and
Exchange Act of .1934 and to Exhibit 10.2 to Honeywell's Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 2006, and amended by the attached
amendment (filed herewith))

10.27* 2006 Stock Incentive Plan of Honeywell International Inc. and Its Affiliates
Form of Option Award Agreement (filed herewith)

10.28* 2006 Stock Incentive Plan of Honeywell International Inc. and Its Affiliates
Form of Restricted Unit Agreement (filed herewith)

10.29* 2006 Stock Incentive Plan of Honeywell International Inc. and Its Affiliates
Form of Growth Plan Agreement (incorporated by reference tO Exhibit
10.5 to Honeywell's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006)

10.30* 2006 Stock Incentive Plan of Honeywell International Inc. and Its Affiliates
Form of Performance Share Agreement (filed herewith)

10.31* 2006 Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors of Honeywell International
Inc. (incorporated by'reference to Honeywell's Proxy Statement dated
March 13, 2006, filed pursuant to Rule 14a-6 of the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934 and to Exhibit 10.6 to Honeywell's Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended June 30, 2006, and amended by the attached
amendments (filed herewith))

10.32* 2006 Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors of Honeywell International
Inc.-Form of Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.7 to Honeywell's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006)

10.33* 2006 Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors of Honeywell International
Inc.-Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.8 to Honeywell's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30,
2006)
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Exhibit No. Description

10.34 $2.3 Billion Five-Year Credit Agreement dated as of April 27, 2006 among
Honeywell International Inc., the initial lenders therein, Citicorp USA,
Inc., as administrative agent, Citibank International PLC, as swing line
agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as syndication agent, Bank of
America N.A., Barclays Bank PLC, Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch
and UBS Securities LLC, as documentation agents and Citigroup Global
Markets Inc. and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., as joint lead arrangers and
co-book managers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Honeywell's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006)

10.35 364-Day Canadian Dollar Credit Agreement dated as of September 9,
2005 among Honeywell, Honeywell AsCa Inc., Honeywell Limit-
ed/Honeywell Limitee, and Honeywell Aerospatiale Inc. as borrowers,
and the initial lenders named therein, Citibank, N.A., Canadian branch
as administrative agent and Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and Royal
Bank of Canada as joint lead arrangers and co-book managers
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to Honeywell's Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2005)

10.36 Amendment No. 1 to the 364-Day Canadian Dollar Credit Agreement
dated as of September 8, 2006 among Honeywell, Honeywell ASCa
Inc., Honeywell Limited Honeywell Limitee and Honeywell Aerospatiale
Inc., as borrowers, the lenders named therein and Citibank, N.A.,
Canadian Branch, as agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Honeywell's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006)

10.37 Purchase and Sale Agreement between Catalysts, Adsorbents and
Process Systems, Inc., and Honeywell Specialty Materials, LLC, dated
September 30, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to
Honeywell's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2005)

10.38 Stock Purchase Agreement by and between Honeywell International Inc.
and M&F Worldwide Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to
Honeywell's Form 8-K filed November 1, 2005.)

11 Omitted (Inapplicable)

12 Statement re: Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges (filed
herewith)

16 Omitted (Inapplicable)

18 Omitted (Inapplicable)

21 Subsidiaries of the Registrant (filed herewith)

22 Omitted (Inapplicable)

23 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (filed herewith)

24 Powers of Attorney (filed herewith)

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith)

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith)

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 (filed herewith)
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Exhibit No. Description

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 (filed herewith)

99 Omitted (Inapplicable)

The Exhibits identified above with an asterisk(*) are management contracts or compensatory plans
or arrangements.

106



HONEYWELL INTIERNATIONAL INC
ScHEDULE li--VALUATION:: AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS !

Three Years Ended December .31, 2006
(In millions).

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts:

Balance. Decem ber 31, 2003 ............................................................ $ 150
Provision charged to incom e ........................................................ 100
Deductions from reserves(1) .............................. ......................... (113)

Balance December 31, 2004 .............. ................................... 137
Provision charged to incom e ........................................................ 83
Deductions from reserves(l). .................... ............. * ...... (71)
A cq u isitio ns ....................... .... ........................................... 3 0

Balance Decem ber 31, 2005 ............................................................ 179
Provision charged to incom e ................................... ..................... 111
Deductions from reserves(1 ) ........................................................ . (77)
Acquisitions ................................................................. 4

Balance Decem ber 31, 2006 ............................................................ $ 217

(1) Represents uncollectible accounts written off, less recoveries, translation adjustments and reserves
acquired.

Deferred Tax Assets-Valuation Allowance

Balance Decem ber 31, 2003 ............................................................. $ 299
Additions charged to income tax expense ............................................ 145
Reductions credited to income tax expense .. ....................................... (108)
Additions charged to goodwill, due to acquisitions ................................... . 2

Balance December 31, 2004 ........................................................... 338
Additions charged to income tax expense ........................................... 46
Reductions credited to income tax expense .................................. ...... . (126)
Additions charged to goodwill, due to acquisitions ................................... 219

Balance Decem ber 31, 2005 ............................................................ 477
Additions charged to income tax expense ........................................... 40
Reductions credited to income tax expense ......................................... (3)
Reductions charged to goodwill, due to acquisitions ................................. (24)
Additions charged to other comprehensive income (loss), upon adoption of

S FA S N o. 158 ........................................................ ........... 28
Reductions charged to deferred tax. asset, due to expired NOL ....................... (2)

Balance Decem ber 31, 2006 ................................ ............................. $ 516
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Leadership Team and
Corporate Officers
David M. Cote
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Robert J. Gillette
President and
Chief Executive Officer
Aerospace

Roger Fradin
President and
Chief Executive Officer
Automation and
Control Solutions

Adriane M. Brown
President and
Chief Executive Officer
Transportation Systems

Nance K. Dicciani
President and
Chief Executive Officer
Specialty Materials

David J. Anderson
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Larry E. Kittelberger
Senior Vice President
Technology and Operations

Peter M. KreindLer
Senior Vice President and
General Counsel

Rhonda Germany
Vice President
Strategy and Business
Development

Shane Tedjarati
President
Honeywell China

Timothy J. Keating
Senior Vice President
Government Relations

Thomas L. Buckmaster
Vice President
Corporate Communications
and President
Honeywell Hometown
Solutions

Thomas F. Larkins
Vice President
Corporate Secretary and
Deputy General Counsel

Harsh Bansal
Vice President
Investments

John J. Tus
Vice President and
Treasurer

Shareowner Information
Annual Meeting

.The Annual Meeting of Shareowners will be held at 10:30 a.m.

on Monday, April 23, 2007, at Honeywell's corporate

headquarters, 101 Columbia Road, Morristown, NJ 07962.

Dividends/Shareowners Matters

Honeywell's Dividend Reinvestment and Share Purchase

Plan provides for automatic reinvestment of common stock

dividends at market price. Participants also may add cash for

the purchase of additional shares of common stock without

payment of any brokerage commission or service charge.

Honeywell offers Direct Registration, or paperless stock

ownership. This means that instead of getting a paper stock

certificate to represent your shares, your shares are held in

your name and tracked electronically in our records.

The company has established a Direct Deposit of Dividends

service enabling registered shareowners to have their quarterly

dividend payments sent electronically to their bank accounts on

the payment date.

For more information on these services or for answers to

questions about dividend checks, stock transfers, or other

shareowner matters, please contact Honeywell's transfer

agent and registrar:

American Stock Transfer & Trust Co.

59 Maiden Lane

New York,. NY 10038

1-800-647-7147

http://www.amstock.com

E-mail: info@amstock.com

Thomas W. Weidenkopf
Senior Vice President
Human Resources and
Communications

Honeywell International Inc.
Corporate Publications
P.O. Box 2245
Morristown, NJ 07962-2245
973-455-5402

Stock Exchange Listings
Honeywell's Common Stock is listed on the New York and
Chicago stock exchanges under the symbol HON. It-is also
listed on the London Stock Exchange. Shareowners of record
as of December31, 2006, totaled 74,473.

General Inquiries
For additional shareowner inquiries, please contact

Honeywell's Shareowner Services at 1-800-647-7147 or
Honeywell Investor Relations at 1-973-455-2222.
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